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Al Sheheer Comporation entered the world of meat business in 2008
starting from humble Beninnings and growing into a renowned name
within a short span of time. The powerful fundamental values of teamwaork,
intagrity, sxcellencs, community sarvice and consumer focus form the
foundation of this business which aimed o serve and go beyond the
expeciations of the custoemers.Our meat products have always satisfied
our consumers with the high hygiene and heaith standards we have
abways met, thus enabling us 1o grow and reach top levels in this industry.

Gadap Town-Karachi is home to our class apart abaltoir, designed
customarily as an answer to the giobal need and demand of Halal meat
s lairage area, cold storage and ehillers

imparted from Australia, all make this abattoir one of the very best; and its
capacity of 40 heads per hour makes it the country's largest private
slaughtering facility. Thia has been further cerfified by the dapartments of
haaith and food of Middle Eastern GCC countrias as wall, And if one would
wonder who Jeads the meat export of Pakistan, the answer would be A
Shaheer Comoration veniuring into export markats of Saudi Arabia
Dubai, Kuwait, Oman, Bahrain and Qatar in 2000

m_.-xmm THAT



‘Maat One', the first red misal brand of Al Shaheer came into being in 2010 with the objective of providing innovative and conve-
nient ‘one stop fresh meat solutions’ to consumers, placing us in the center of the fresh meat retail market of Pakistan. This
brand offers various kinds of fresh meat operating through exclusively designed outlets as well as standard shop-in-shap
medels. The quality standards of Meat One are unmatched at every level of the meat selection process. Highest quality caltle is
chosen as the first step of our process. Getting the cattie checked by skilled vets comes next as health and safety are the two
top most priorities. These are then slaughtered in a completely halal way at our abattoir, sectioning and processing them in
large culs before transporting them in hygienic refrigerated frucks to various oullets,

‘Khanas Meat', Al Shaheer's sscond retall brand emerged in 2014. This brand stands for three key slements: quality, hygiens
and affordability. Neighborhood butcher shops were given a whole new look and meaning by 1his brand. The brand's reach
further increased in 2015 through shop-in shop models in busy superstores across the major diies of Pakistan.

It was the same year that Al Shaheer Fonds achieved yat another important milestane and became a corporate [imited compa-
ny, being listed on the Stock Exchange. The company transitionad to Al Shaheer Foods from Al Shahear Corporation in tha first
monih of 2017, with the objective of establishing itself as a “foods' company. Keeping this cbjective in mind, producis like
poultry, ready-to-cook [ ready-to-eat products, fruits and vegetables are now being considered to be further included in the line
of business aswell.

The list of intemalional accreditations to Al Shaheer Foods is nothing less than impressive. These include the IS0 2001:2015,
|SC 22000:2005, HACCF for quality and food safety standards in the preduction process, SAFE Food Award 2008 & 2010 by
URS for quality and hygiene. The Federation of Fakistan Ghambers of Commerce and Industry has also awarded Al Shaheer
Foods with the 'Best Export Performance ' Award in 2008, 2010, 2012 and 2013 for Fresh and Frezen Meat while Exhibitor (Pvt.)
Lid. has awarded us with Brand of the Year Award in 2002 and Best Emerging Brand of the Year 2009.

ASC Foods s certified on following regulatory & intemational standards:

150 80012015

180 22000:2008

IS0 14001 2016

QHSAS 18001: 2007

HACCP

Pakistan Halal standard PS3733:2016
Malaysian Halal standard MS 1500

UAE/GSO Halal slaughtering standard 283:2015

The latest and most anticipated project of ASC Foods is the much awailed pouliry and processed food fine. This preject with
the grace of Allah is in its final stages of completion and will be faunched in the retaill markel very soon Inshallah, Foliowing the
benchmarks set by Meat Cna, the essence of this upcoming brand is yet again innovation and corveniance, meeting consumer
neads with & differsntiated and diverse offering. Just like its predecessor, this brand will also uphold the quality standards of
heallh and hygiens and will bring significant improvemsnt in our customer’s lives not just through delicicus satisfactionto the
taste buds bit also through an asscriment of preduct offering currently unmet in entirety by any other local brand. This will
hence be the perfect opportunity for cur company to expand its presence even further both locally and internationally through
general and medearn trade.

With the grace of Allah, we have always bean able to supersedes the benchmarks creatad every year by ourselves. This has
only been possible because of the astounding support shown by everyone associated with us. It is our key staksholders; be it
our customers, suppliers, employees, agencies, bankers or shareholders, whose unwavering support is whal keeps us
driven. And as this support kesps increasing, se will our dedication to attain even higher standards and ge beyend your sxpects-
tions every yaar.
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CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW

| am pleased by he parformance of Al Shaheer Corporation againsl very challenging circumstances during the last fiscal year
ended 30th June 2018, The Company, with its ambitious plan to build a very large processed frozen food plant and operating
in an environment of increasing compatition in its both, expart and domestic markets, has worked very hard to streamline its
operations and manage costs (o become more efficlent and competilive. The Board has worked with passion and commilment
lo suppart the management In achieving above objectives.

Tha Board of Directors raflects a mix of varied backgrounds and rich experience in the fields of food and industrial business,
finance, banking and regulations. The Board has provided strategic ditection io the management and remains available far
support. The Beard approves the budget and reviews performance on a-quartery basis ensuring that a healthy and effective
business envirgnment s maintained throughout the Company, The Board ensures compliance of all reguiatory requirements
through the Management, imlernal audil as well as external aud(t The Board has set up |15 own performancea evaluation mecha-
nism as required under the Code of Corporate Governanca.

Tha Board Is supported in its tasks by its compatent Commitiees

This Audit Commities reviews financial statements and ensures these fairly regresent the financial pesition of the Company. It
alsa ensures the effectivensss of internal contrals through intemal audit as well as external auditors. It has alse focused onall
impartant Issues that have arisen during the year paricularly relating io cash flows and managemeni thereof.

The HR Commitiee worked diligently to develop and formalize HR policy framework , HR Policies and recommended compen-
sation of senior management team as well as rest of the staff. Best industry practices have been used to set up these policies:
Animportant role of the Commitize is succession planning which will be developed aver the coming months,

The Strategy Steering Committee has provided specifia direction and overview to the management in setting |ts Tuiure plans
and, 1o ensure Company returns to profitability by growing its domestic business and launching a whole hast of delicious
Ready-to-Cook food products. It has also guided management in its financial and marksting plans,

I would like 1o thank the Company’s staff and management who have worked extremely hard againat most challenging cireum-
stances and, of course. the Board lor its guidance and suppaort throughout the year.

| pray that may Allah TaharakwaTaalsh enablas us te succeed in our ambitious plans and bring prosperity and sucsess o the
company, ils staff, its sharehalders and all other stakeholders.

Huur;af Rahman Abid
Chairman
Al Shaheer Corporation Ltd.
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CEQ'S MESSAGE

Al Shaheer Corporalion saw its third year as a publicly listed entity with the blessings of the Almighty. The company
has come to this point after facing many challenges:lgeamingand advancing from them.

Our volumes and margins had been under immense prassure due lo the pricing taclics of local and inlemalional
businesses In export markets, Early currency devaluations by other meat exporting companies made them a signif-
icantly cheaper source, hence adversely impacting meat exports of Pakistan.

Our upcoming mduckion into the poultry and processed foods industry is the enterpnsing new opportunity that we
are very much looking forward 1o launch within the next few months. Substantial planning and subsequent progress
has been made In the unigue product development, technology enablement and the finest talent acquisition for our
plant and we are very optimistic that,Inshallah, the project will create staggering benchmarks yst again in this
industry.

Cost efficiency s a big part of all our organizational operations bringing significant reductions in product spoilage
and streamlined HR. costs. Cost contro| will always remain one of our tap prierities which halps in impraving our
retall business margins. Essential talent and infrasiruciure are necessary faclors for our long-term growlh plan and
will conlinue to be two of our primary investiments.

Hard work and effart s paving way to a strong and bright future for Al Shaheer Foods. | deeply appreciate and
thank our entire team Including our customers, employees, agencies, bankers and sharehalders far their incredible
suppart throughout our joumey, and pray we continue to have their staunch supporl in establishing Al Shaheer
Foods as one of the top Food companies of Pakistan.

\W\\'&

Kamran Khalili
CEO
Al Shaheer Corporation Ltd.
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Vision

k£ Dominate the meal table by
offering delightful food solutions to
consumers. 99
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Mission

Wa will delight and wvitalize our consumens with food products that meat the highest standards of heaith, hygiena

and fulfilment.
« Wawill achiave this by sourcing the best quality of livestock, purest ingredients and world class manufacturing
processes

Wa will have excellence in our Shariah Compllance Standards for all our products, our operations and the way

nd environment around us

we interact with the commumit

- We value diversily & tearmwork and promole a friendly work envirenment.

We will make sure that our actions will ¢clearly exhibit relentless commitment to ethics, product safety and

0

consumer salisfact
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Core
Values

Integrity
We acl honestly, truthfully & fairly with ocur consumers,
suppliers, employees & all stakeholders.

Consumer Focus
We ara consumer-coriented, committed to delivering the best
experiance to our consumers every time.

Teamwork
Wi dovelop & empower our people (o work as a slrong unified
team in an open, informal and disciplined environment

Excellence
We sirive to be the best at whatever we do.

Community
We act as a responsible citizen, protecting the environment
and contnbuting to the community in which we operale.




Code of
Conduct

Introduction

The Company's General Business Principles govern how
Al Shaheer Corporation Limited conducts its affairs. The
objectives of the orgamizahon are to engage efhciently,
rasponsibly and profitably in Halel and hygienic food business
and 1o participate in the search for, and development of, new
products to mest evolving consumer needs and changing

lifestyles

#

5828

Halal and hygienic foed is 2 basic human reguirerment that will
axist forever. Our role is 1o ensura thal we source, process and
dellver this profitably and in envionmentally & soclally
responsible ways. We seek high standards of parformance,
bullding a strong, leng term and growing position in the
competitive anvironmeants in which we choosa to operate. We
aim to work closely with our consumers, partners and
pallcy=-makers to canlinuously strengthen our position and be
recognized as a leader in the food calegories we oparate in
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Sustainable Development

As part of the Business Principles. we commit to contribute to sustainable development. This requires balancing
short and long term interests, integrating economle, ervironmental and social considerations inla business
decision-making, and investing in people, systems-and Infrastructure for sustainable advantage.

Responsibilities
Al Shaheer Corporation Limited recognizes five areas of basic responsibliities, It is the duty of management
cortinmuously o assess the prionties and discharge these inseparable responsibililies.

a. To shareholders: To protect shareholders' investment, and provide a long-term return compstitive with
those of other leading companies in the indusiny.

b. To consumers: To win and maintain consumers by developing and providing preducts and services which
offer valug in terms of price, quality, safety and convenience.

c. Toemployess: To respecl rights of our employees and to provide them with good and safe working
gnvironment and competitive terms and conditions of employment. To develop leadership that
continuously promotes best utilization of talent, to create a conducive work environment where avery
employees has an equal opportunity to develop his or her skills and talents. To encourage the Involvemant
of employees in planning and strategizing their work and to provide them with appropriate channels and
structure. We recognize that commerclal ang sustainable success depends on the commitment of all
employess and disposition of their energies and efforts in the right direction.

d. To business partners: To sesk mutually beneficlal relationships with contractors, suppliers and in joint
ventures and to promote the application of our General Businass Principles in such relationships. Tha
ability lo promote these principles effectively is an important factor in the decision to enter into or remain
insuch relationships.

2. To society: To conduct business as responsible corporate members of society, to comply with applicable
laws and regulations, to support fundamental human rights in line with the legitimate role of businass, and
1o alve proper regard to health, safety, security and the snvironmeant.

Economic

Long-term profitability is as essential for the company as oxygen te the living being, in order to achieve our higher
gual.s. It is a measure of both efficiency and of the value that consumers place on Al Shaheer Corporation Lim/ited
products and services. It supplies the necessary corporate resources for the continuing investment thal is
required to develop and produce Halal and hygienic supplies to meet & excead consumer needs. Without profits
and a strong financial foundation, It would not be possible to fulfll our higher levels of responsibilities.

Competition

Al Shaheer Corporation Limited supports frea enterprise. We believe that healthy compstition always results in
greater opportunities, better products and services, and in turn, banefits the consumer. We seek to compate fairly
and ethically and within the framewerk of applicable competition laws; we will not prevent others from competing
freely with us.

Business Integrity

Al Shaheer Corporation Limited insists on honesty, integrity and fairness in all aspects of our business and
expects the samea in our ralationships with all those with whom wa conduct business, Tha direct or indirect offer,
payment, soliciting or acceptance of bribes in any form is unacceptable. Facilitation payments are alsoc bribes
and should not be made. Employess must avoid confliots of interast betweean their private activities and their role
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In the cenduct of Company business. Employees must declare to their employing Company potential conflicts of
Imterest, If any. All business transactions on behalf of Al Shaheer Corporation Limited must be reflected accurately
and fairly in the accounts of the Company in accordance with established procedures and are subject to audit and
disclosure.

Health, Safety and the Environment

Al Shaheer Carporation Limited has a systematic approach to health, safety and environmental management in
order lo ensure conlinuous well-being of our employees, consumers and public alike. To this end, Al Shaheer
Carporation Limited manages these matters as cntical business acfivilies, sels standards and targets for
improvement. and measures, appraises and reports performance externally. We continually look for ways to
reduce tha environmental impact of our operations, products and services.

Local Communities

Al Shaheer Corporation Limited aims to be a good corporate citizen by continuously improving the ways in which
we contribute, directly or indirectly, to the general well-being of the communities within which we operate, \We
manage the social impacts of our business activities carefully and work with others to enhence the benefits to
local communities, and to mitigate any negative impacts from our activities. In addition, Al Shaheer Corporation
Limitad takes a constructive interest in social matters, directly or indirectly related 1o our business,

Communication and Engagement

Al Shaheer Corporation Limited recognizes thal regular dialogue and engagement with our stakeholders is
essential. We are committed to reporting our performance by providing complete relevant information to
legitimately Interested parties, sublect to any overriding considerations of business confidentiality. In our
interactions with employees, business partners and local communities, we seek to listen and respond to them
honestly and responsibly.

Compliance
We comply with all applicable laws and reguiations of the counfries in which we operate.

Living by Our Principles

Cur shared core values of integrity, teamwork, consumer focus, faimess and excellence underpin all our activities
and are the foundation of our Businass Principles. Tha Business Frinciples apply to all transactions, large or small,
and drive the behavior expected of avery smployee in Al Shahser Comporation Limited in the conduct of its
business at all times. We are judged by how we act. Our reputation will be upheld if we act in accordanca with the
law and the Business Principles. We also encourage our business parmers to live by these principles.

Ws encourags our employees to demonstrate leadership, accountabllity and tsamwork, and through these
behaviors, contributa to the overall success of Al Shaheer Corporation Limited. It is the responsibility of the
leadership o lead by example, to ensure that all employees are aware of these principles, and behave in
accordance with the spirit as well as the letter of this statement,

The application of these principles |s underpinned by a comprehensive set of assurance procedures which are
designed to make sure that our employees understand the principles and confirm that they act in accordance with
them. As part of the assurance system, it Is alsc the responsibility of management to provide employeas with safe
and confidential channels to raise concerns and report instances of noncomplianca. In turn, it is the responsibility
of the Company employees to report suspected breaches of the Business Principles to the management. The
Business Principles are fundamental to how we canduct our business and living by them is crucial to our
continued success.
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Purpose of
Existence

Al Shaheer Foods was crealed in August 2008 after observing the
inorease in demand of Halal meat products globally. |t operates a
custom designed, state-of-the-art plant, Brought in from Australia
with attached chillers, cold storage, ransportation and hygienic
lairage area. This Is the largest private slaughtering facllity in the
pountry with a capacity of 40 heads per hour

Winning several international accreditations like the IS0
8001 :2015, I1S022000:2008, HACCR for ils quality and standards
used in the production process, SAFE Food Award 2009 & 2010
by LIRS for quality and hygiene, the Company has conquerad the
giobal market with a continucus commitment to quality,
Al Shaheer Foods has also won the 'Best Export Performance’
award in 2008, 2010, 2012 and 2013 for Fresh and Frozen Meat
from the Federation of Pakistan Chambers of Commerce and
Industry, Al Shaheer currently possesses municipality licenses to
export meat to soma of the most lucrative markets in the region,
including Dubal and Saudi Arabia.




The year 2010 started with a pledge to make the same quality maat available to local consumers, thersby considerably
raising the benchmark In meat seling. Starting off from our flagship Meat One boutigue on maln
Khayaban-e-Sharmsheer, DHA, Karachi, we have gradually expanded our network of dedicated Meat One outlats across
Pakistan to infroduce customers to the best quality, free range meat possible.

Annusl Report 2017-18 RE



Board of
Directors

Our board of directors play a
significant role in representing the
interest of our shareholders. All
board members are profoundly
experieniced n their respective
sectors and avidly assist in the
company'’s operations.

—= 1
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Noorur Rahman Abid

Neor s a Fellow Chartered Accountant from the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He started
his career In 1276 In UK with KPMG, He has more than 35
years' experience in the profession, across Europe, Middis
East and Africa. Noor was the Assurance Leader for Ernst &
Young in Middle East and North Alfrica from 1998 1o 2012,
Under Noor's leadership, Ermnst & Young audit practice grew
from LSS 35 million in 1999, to US$ 210 million in 2012. He
was also directly invelved in premeting various Corporate
Socig| Responsibility programs at Ernst & Young. He took
ratirement in June 2012.

At Emst & Young, MNoor advised a number of clients
including Industrial and commerclal companies, retall and
investrment banks, lslamic banks and soversign waalth
funds, on accounting matters, guidance on conftrols
framewark and govemance considerstions. In this
capacity, he regularly engaged and advised the board
members, audil commitiees and senior managemenl! ol
clierts across the region. He has had a particular focus on
the Islamic banking Industry,

MNoor is currently 2 member of the Board of Directors of
Kuwalt Finance Housa, the largest Istamic Bank in Kuwail
and Chairman of their Audit Committee, Meszan Bank
Pakistan, Amapiia Investment Managemen! Company in
Bahrain and Chairman of their Audit and Risk Committes,
O Suteiman Fakeeh Hospllal, the largest private hospital in
Jeddah Saudi Arabiz and Chairman of their Audit
Committes. Noaor is also a Member of the Board of Trustees
at Accounting and Auditing COrgamnization for  [slamic
Financial Institutions (AAOIF!) In Bahrain

hoor was declared winner of the World Isiamic Banking
Conference 2012 Industry Leadership Award In recagnition
of his contribution to Islamic Banking.




Kamran Khalili

Kamran Khalili is the CEQ of Al Shaheer Corporation Lid. i
was his vision 1o establish a Halal meat processing
company. Kamran Khallll took the |nitiative and started
Al Shaheer Corporation from scratch, playing a pivotal role
in the company’s growth, Prior to Al Shaheer, Kamran was
a member of the Karachi Stock Exchange for arcund 10
vears and CEQ of Fortune Securities (Pvt.) Ltd. He has also
worked as an Investmant Banker in Muslim Commercial
Bank, Pakistan. After recelving an encouraging response
from exports, Kamran sxpanded his vision o provide
export guality meat products In the local market as well.

In accomplishmeant of this viston, he took the inltiative to
introduce a concept meat shop in the local market, Meat

One.

Kamiran Khalili is an MBA,
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M. Qaysar Alam

On the Board of Directors of G31 and Al Shaheer Corporation Ltd., Mamber Pakistan Advisary Board ISCEA,
President Supply Chain Association of Pakistan. Supply Chain Specialist, Consultant, Trainer and speaker at
various business schools and forums.

Worked for 29 vears at Unilever Pakistan Lid., where, Tor the last B years served as Vice President responsible for
Supply Chain, its strategies and operations. He was on the Board of Directors, Member of Audit Committees and
Manegement Committee of the Company.

Key architect of Unilever Pakistan's Supply Chain struclure and processes making It forward looking, achieving
efficiencias in speed, sarvice and cost.

Earlier worked at Exxon Pakistan, ARAMCO SA and taught Petroleum Enagineering at KLU,

Muhammed Amin

Munammed Amin is a Chartered Accountant by profession wilh 28 work experience of over 30 years al various
management levels in Finance, Strategy, Sales, Marketing and General Management, He served as CEO of
Mondelez Pakistan Limited (previously Cadbury Pakistan Limited) from 2004 to 2074, Prior to Mondelez, he was
associgted with Gillette for eleven yedrs at varlous levels In Pakistan and overseas, the last being Regional
Business Director, Gillette Middle East & Alfrica,

Currently, he heads a startup known as Sunridge Foods (Pvt.) Limited. He is a Director on the Board of Engro
Foods Limited and a Governor on the Board of British Overseas Schodl.




Rukhsana Asghar

For more than 30 years, Rukhsana has been at the forefront in the field of Human Fesources in Pakistan and Is
ore of the leading Human Resource professionals having core experience in senior Human Resource positions
with lop multinational companies (Unilever, Citibank and UBL) coupled with management consulting exparience
in the local corporate, multinational and public sectors.

Praviously held key positions include Group Head Human Resource, SEVP (UBL) & Director Human Resources
(Citibank).

Rukhsana Asghar is the Founder and CED of Fulcrum (Pvt.) Ltd., an HR & Business Corsulting Company founded
in 2015. As CEO she is responsible for providing leadership and strateglc direction for the company. The
Company [3an 150 9001-2008 certlfied Business Consulting Service Company. It meets Internationel Standards
far quality managemant and customer satisTaction, assessed and certified by TUY Austria (External Auditor). It is
also certified as Business Edge Training Pariners for IFC, a member of the World Bank Group. Its service
spectrum Includes HR & Management Consultancy, Qutsourcing, Recruitment & Executive Search and Training &
Development.

Fulerum is serving over 200 clients, and has about 15,000 employeaes outsourced to various organizations in the
fimancial and non-financial sectars, including logal as well as multinational, and private as well as public sector
organizations across Pakistan.

Naveed Godil

Maveed Godil is a seasocned entreprensur and founder of various industries. Ha is a Director of the Al Shaheer
Corporation Board since inception of the company. Besides Al Shaheer, he is CED Universal Packaging Company
Lid., International Packaging Films (Pul.) L1d., 14th Street Pizza Company (Pvt.) Lid., and NAFT Corporation. Mr.
Godil is also Director al Universal Carton Industries LLC LAE and Dazzle FZC0D Oubai.

Mr. Godlil has done his graduation from Preston University, Karachl.
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Rizwan Jamil

Rizwan is a change catalyst and enjoys a track record of having effectively turned around businesses under
pressure. He has been instrumental in bringing about organizational and cultural changes in the companies he has
worked in, improving speed & effectiveness.

His Initial schooling was at St. Patrick’s and Karachl Grammar Schools. He completed his MBA in 1385 from the
Institute of Business Administration, Karach| University.

Having been associated with Unilever for 22 years, Rizwan has gatherad a rich experence of Marketing, Sales and
Business Managemenl! across a large number of business categoriss. In his last six years at Unilever, he was Head
of the Tea Business Unit. Rizwan later joined Lafarge Pakistan, a subsidiary of the Paris based MNC, global
leaders in construction materlals. He worked there for over 6 vears heading Business Strategy, Innovation &
Marketing.

A past Chairman of Pakistan Advertisers Scclety (PAS), Rizwan has been on the PAS Advertising Awards Jury
since its Inception.

Zafar Siddiqui

Zafar Siddiqul has an MBA degrea from the Institute of Business Administration. He alse holds a degree of M.S.
in Markating Communications from Chicagu. Ha has mora than 30 years cf experience with the EM.C.G. sector
both in the field of Sales, Markeling and General Manegement. He wes assoclated with Gillette for 15 years in
Pakistan and Overseas. His last assignment with Gillatte was as Chief Executive for Gillette Pakistan (Pvt.) Ltd.,
and Area Director for Afghanistan, Sri Lanka, Bangladesh, Nepal & Maldives.

Mr. Siddiqul was also on the Board of Engro Foods Limited, Inbox Business Technologies (Pvt.) Limited, Faysal
Assal Management, Mind Sports of Pakistan and Zulliqar Industries Limited.

He has conducted numerous warkshop and training courses for various companias. He has been associated with
SECP asan outside cansultant for the last 4 years, primarily in marketing, management development and public
speaking.

Mr. Siddigui has served as the Director for thae Cenlra for Entreprenaurial Development, and also as the Director
for Alumni and Resource Mobilization for the Institute of Business Administration from the period 2008 - 2014,
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Sarfaraz Rehman

Sarfaraz is both a chartered accountant and business executive having contributed his expertise to multinational
companies such as Unilaver, 5B (GSK), Jardine Matheson/Olayan JV and PepsiCa during his varied carser.

In 2003, Sarfaraz helped establish Engro Foods as Its CEQ. The company vary guickly grew from a greenfield to
the largest liquid dairy company in Pakistan. He took a sabbatical from Engro Foods to eslablish the Karachi
School for Business and Leadership project in 20712, Sarfaraz rejoined Engro Foods as CED in 2013 where he
remalned CEQ till July 2015. Engro Foods has just sold 51% of its shares to Royal Friesland Campina for over half
a billion dellars, This is the biggest private foreign Investment in Pakistan's history.

Sinca Oct 2015, Sarfaraz has been involved in consuitancy projects with ICl, |BL and JSPE. He is also the
designated Executive Coach for Grant Thormton in Pakistan and at the mament 1s working on a cuiture change
praject for a large bank. Recently, he has also been appointed Chalrman of the Joint Industry Council of Pakistan
Broadcasters Association and Pakistan Adveartisers Society, which controls advertising in Pakistan,

Sarfaraz is deeply mterestad in playing his part in giving back to sociely and has worked on an onling interactive
education model for mass education, fo resolve the Issue of literacy in Fakisian over the nexl decade. In the past
he was also gssociated with Shaukat Khanum Hospital as & Board of Governor and with WWF as a Director
involved with the blind dolphinsg’ project. Ha is also heavily associated with Hisaar Foundation and its work an
water/environmental issues in Pakistan,

Sarfaraz also conducts a well-established coaching and mentoring role. with many business executives and
younger university graduates on a private pro bono basis.

Umair Khalili is the youngesl Direclor of Al Shahesr Foods. He is an HR graduate from London School of
Economics and Political Sciences (LSE). He is an enthusiastic individual who has great talent In public speaking
and debating. Umair has been the tearn lead for various events including Model United Nations where he lead
muiti-cultural teams and won the MUMs in the home couniry. Apart from academics, Umair is actively involved
in cricket & football.
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The Directors of your Company are pleasad o present the audited financial resulls of the Company for the yearended June 30,
2018

Operational Performance

Summarized operating perfermance of the company for the year is as follows:

_ Year ending June 30, 2018 Year ending June 30, 2017

(Hupees in 7O0G)

Sales 5,373,148 6,396,642
Cost of Sales (4,151,927) (4,869,940)
Gross Profit 1,221,221 1,526,702
Expenses (1,363,464) (1,553,461)
Other Income 120,638 18.492
Taxation (22,376) (12,535)
Net Loss (43,981) (20,802)
Basic & Diluted EPS (Rs./Shara) {0.31) (0.15)

This was a challenging year where business remained under pressure. Cverall sales declined by 168% comparedto last year
Export Performance

Exparts declined by 25% despile a 7% price carmaction during the vear Tha antire industry has suffarad, due (o several macm-
economic factors affecting both, business valume and margins. Critical among these baing

. Cheaper meal Imports from India, Brazil & Australia (due to aarfier currency davaluations n these countries) o GGG
markels

. Increasing livestosk prices in Pakistan market with rising costs of doing business

* Challenges In the supply chaln of livestock

. An-abnormai growth In exparts of adificial leather from China and |ndia adversely affected leather exports of Pakistan

by 26% This was aggravated with a glut of hides afler Eid ul Azna Qurbani, causing skin [ hida prices to fall significantly
further reducing meal margins.

Maal One

Regrgarzabon of the retall network of cur premium brand, along with the detailed scrutiny of jis oullets’ cost struclures, was

effectively conducted during the year, Cost ratioralization steps, identified by the cost-committes in the first half of the year,

wera carried oul. This business unit's focus remains on growing the topline through shap-in-shop model and keepcosts in contrel
in order o start delivering profits next yaar

Khaas Meal

Khaas Meat was growing by 1 3% at the end of third quarter v2 same perind last yvear In the last quarter, a major custamer chain
withdrew from cur business partnership and Khaas outiefs in the chaln bad {o b2 shut down. Those were the higher footzll
locations for the brand. Thair cdosure conseguenlly eliminated more than 35% of the brand's lopling in |ast guarier. A good parl
of this gap in the business unit's topline was coverad through higher growths from ether locations; howewer, not that profitably.
Profiiabllity presaures an this ecanomy brand will continue naxt year as it will take some time for other locations te start recover-
ing thia higher profitability levals lost dus to closure of the above sustomer

E) s



Institutional Sales

Gompany's B2B business slayed under pressurz as (his channel became very price competitive. Sales increased by 3%.
Margins were impacted adversely. Business medel 1s being restructured o mainlain a client base lhat appreciates, and is
willing to pay for. high guality products, zllowing the company reasonable marging in this ssgment. The start of the new
processed meat and poultry business. will strengthen the topline of this channel in the years ahead. It will help absorb fixed
overheads and improve marging for the channel

Poultry & Processed Foods Business

Our poultry and procezsed foods plant (n Lahore (5 In its very final stages of completion. Launch produet portfolla has been
lnckad Sales leam is ready with already completed Route-to-Market plan. Experienced dlsinbutors are on board and trade
agraamants with relalias in place. Inshor, pur team isin full madiness foran impactiul launch of the processed foods busines-
sin second guarler of next fnancial year.

Future Cutionk

Recan! upward revaluation of US Dollars by approx. 13% has reduced pressures on export margins (hreugh price correction.
We ara confident \hal export business will regain its potential. The domestic business will be re-engineered with a target of
making it profitable in the coming years.

Launch of processed frozen foods In firsthaifl ef 2018-201% s a major milestone fer the Company changing its status-from a
meat company o a Foods business. Building a distnibution natwark for this business, will result in a far wider coverage than
meat, which 1s resincted o Company maraged outletsicounters. This will increase lopJine al an accelerated pace. Value
added porifolio enjaying higher margins will make this line a significant contnbutor o Company profitability in the fong run.

Comporate Sosial Responsibility

The Company makes charllable danations of mezl and funds to welfare and sducational inslilules. We are commitied lo local
sourcing and local employment at our production facilities — creating jabs and supporting small businesses in rural areas

Humsn Resourcs Policips

The Company hires talented and motivated human rescurces and provides them a professional working environment to
efficiently utilize their capabilities. The Company considers people 13 core strength, whe work continuously te mest individual
challenges and help the Company achieve fts fargets. The Company has inplace a pay for performance culture in order to
recoqgnize employeas’ confribution and reward them accordingly.

Consumer Protection Measures

The Company ensures that the meat is packed and dispatched to consumers in a healthy and safe manner. It complies with
majar health and salety standards and ensures that the customers get best value for their money. The company also operates
& customer sarvice halp hme for deliveries and complaints and offers full replacement guaranies to dissabished customers.
Business Ethics and Anti-Cormuption Measures

The Company s committed fo promoling high standards of ethical behavior throughouot its business. The management
condemns corrupl and fraud ulent praclices and ensures lransparency, integrity and honesly in allaspects of work. The Compa-
ny expeacts all is employeeas to perdarm their dulkes with integrily and professionalism. The Company has a whistle-blowing
policy in place where any employee can point oul any perceivad discrapancy in tofal confidence.

Conltritition 1o National Exchequer

The company contributed around Rs, 87 millien to the government treasury In shape of taxes, excise duly, income tax and sales
tan.

Financial Statemeanis

The financial statemants of the company have been audiled and approved without qualffication by the audiors of the company,
M/s. EY Ford Rhodes Chartered Accountants.
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Statemeant on Corpeorate and Financial Reporting Frameawork

a) The financial statements, prepared by the management of the company, present its state of affairs fairly, the result of
its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

k) Proper books of azcount of the company have been maintained.

Gl Approprate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements and accourting
asgtimates are hased on reasonable and prudent judgment

d) International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have besn followed in preparation of financial
statements and any departures therefrom has been adequately disclosed and explained

a) Tha system of internal control Is sound In design and has bean effectivaly implemanted and monitored

fi There are no-significant doubts upon the listed company's ability to cenfinue as a geing coneearn

a) Thare has bean no materal departure from the besgt practices of corporale governance, as detaled in thalisting
regulations.

) Dutstanding liabilities on accaunt of taxes, duties, levies and charges, (Fany, are disclosed in the financial statements.

i} During the year, four meetings of the Board of Directors were held. Attendanne by each director in the meetings of the

Board and ils sub-commitiees s as follows,

Board of | Audit | HR

Steering

e A A Directors | Committee | Committee Chfmitie

Meetings held during YE 2017-18 4 4 2 2
Wr. Karmran Ahmed Khalil 4 e 2 2
Mr. Maveed Godil i T

Wr Noar ur Rebman Abid 4 2 1
Wr, Muhammad Amin 2 2 2
Mr. Rizwan Jamil 4 4 z 2
Mr M. Claysar Slam c 4 |
Ws. Rukhsana Asghar 4 = 2 1
Mr. Sarfaraz Rahman 3 £ 1 2
M Z&far Siddigul 2 - -
Wir, Umair hoed $halili 4 -

il No trad ing in the shares of the company was carnizd out during the year by tha Directors, CEO, CFO, Company Secre-
tary, Exacutives and their spouses and minor childran excepl for the gift of shares by Mramran Ahmed Khalili 1o
Mr, Umair Ahmed Khalli,

k) The company pays gratuity 1o ks employees for which liability as at 30 June 2018 is Rs. 58.5 million.
Iy Pattemn of shareholding is.annexed with the repart.

m) Transactions with related parties are presented in note number 37 of the financial statements.

Sales Tax Refunds

Duririg the year, sales tax refunds of Rs, 45.8 milllon were ¢laimad, Refund Payment Orders (RFO's) of Rs. 35 milion were
receivad and Rs. 28,7 milllon have aiready been creditad in our bank ascounts.

Emwm




Al Shaheer Farms (Pvt.) Ltd.

The company has 51% holding in Al Shaheer Farms {Put.) Lid. amounting to Rs. 55.7 million as at 30June2018.The
subsidiary was incorporated on 2March 2015 as a private limited under Companies Ordinance 1984. Theprincipal
activity of the subsidiary is to carry on all kinds of farming including agricultural, poultry, horticultural anddairy and
to purchase, acquire, maintain, breed, sell or ctherwise dispose of all kinds of cattle and aother form oflivestock.
Bonus Shares

No bonus shares have been (33ued.

Dividend

The company did nol generate any profits during the year, therefore no dividend is declarsd.

Rights Shares

Me right shares have been issued.

Appointment of Auditors

The present auditors M/s. EY Ford Rhodes Charterad Accountants, retire and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment.

Acknowledgment
The Board |s thankful to valuable members and bankers for their trust and continued suppert to the company. The

Board would also like to place an record its appreciation to all employees of the company for their dedication, dili-
-gence and hard work.

\b&‘&_

Noorur Rahman Abid Kamran Ahmed Khalili
Director CEQO
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Kamran Khalili

Kamran Khalili s the CEOQ of Al Shaheer Carporation Lid. |t was his vision 1o establish a Halal meat processing
company. Kamran Khalili took the inftiative and started Al Shaheer Corparation from scraten, playing a plvotal rola
in the company’s growin.

Prior to Al Shaheer, Kamran was a member of the Karachi Stock Exchange for around 10 years and CEO of
Fortune Securities (Pvi) Ltd. He has also worked as an Investrment Banker in Muslim Commercial Bank, Pakistan.

After recelving an encouraging response from exports, Kamran expanded his vision to provide export quality meat
products in the local market as well. In aocomplishment of this vision, he took the initiative to introduce a concept
meat shop in the local market, Meat One.

Kamran Khalili Is an MBA.

Rizwan Jamil

Rizwan Is a change catalyst and enjoys 2 frack record of having effectively turned around businesses under
pressure, He has been Instrumental in bringing about organizational and cultural changes in the companies ha
has worked in, improving speed & effectiveness.

Hlis initial schooling was at 5t. Patrick’s and Karachl Grammar Schools. He completed his MEA in 1985 from thea
Institute of Business Administration, Karachi Unlvarsity.

Having beesn associated with Unilever for 22 years, Rizwan has gathered a rich expérience of Marketing, Sales
and Business Management across a large number of business categories. In his last six years at Unilever, he was
Head of the Tea Business Unit. Rizwan later joined Lefarge Pakistan, a subsidiary of the Paris based MNC, global
leaders in construction materials. He worked there for ovar'6 years heading Business Strategy, Innovation &
Markeling.

A past Chairman of Paklstan Adverlisers Soclety (PAS), Rizwan has been on the PAS Advertising Awards jury
since its inception.
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Maryam Al

GFO

Maryam All s the Chief Financial Officer of &l Shaheer Corporation. She is a gualified Chartered Accountant and
mamber of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP). She possesses extansive experience of
avar { years in the field of financial and management accounting, reporting and audit.

Maryam started her career [n 2009 with A.F Ferguson & Co. where she led statutory audits, interim reviews and
ather asaurarnce sngagamenls for various private, listed and multinational companies. She is associated with Al
Shaheer since 2012,

Shahnawaz Akbar

Head of Factory Operations

Shahnawaz locks after the factory of Al Shaheer Foods. Prior to joining the Company, he has worked in various
concermns in Administration, Production and Procurement, for a period accumulating o 20 years. He has been
with Al Shaheer since its inception whare he started his career as Procuramant Manager.
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Adnan Budhani

Project Head - New Projacts

Adnan Budhan| looks after the upcaming Poultry/Furthar Processing project. He is engaged with the company
since its early days and is parl ol the team that launched Meat One in 2010. Prior to tha cumant assignment,

Adnan was heading Meat One Retaii business till Dec. 2015, He was also responsible for the launch of Khaas
Meat in 2014.

Adnan is an MBA from Lahore University of Managemenl Sciences (LUMS) and is also a Candidate for CFA leval
Il exammabon. Pror to MBA, Adnan worked in TPS Pakistan [Pyt Lid., as Software consultant. He did his
graduation from NUCES-FAST in the faculty of Computer Science.

Adnan Khan

Head of Internal Audit

Adnan Khan is a chariersd certified accountant and commerce graduate having a diversilied track record of 11

years In the field of audit and advisory services. The experience Includes Big four audit firms, manufacturing
concerns, retail, FMCG and the public sector.

He did mandatory training for professional accountants with Emst & Young and then started his eareer as audit

consultant in World Bank’s public sector project. Alter the project, he pursued futura career in internal audit of
corporate sector gntities,
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Hammaad Chishti

Business Analysi

Hammaad Ahmad Chishti is Business Analyst at Al Shaheer Corporation Limited. He has also headed Financial
Reporting and Special Projects function in Al Shaheer Corporation Limited for a period of 4 years. He remained
invalved in enlisting of the company on stock exchange, preparing dynamic financial models fer strategic
business opportunities, and statutory reporting to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

Prior to joining this company, he also served at KFMG in capacity as an Audit Senjor for 3.5 years. His work
included conducting statutory audits, group repotting, reporting on internal caontrols.

Mahmood Khurram

Head of Distribution Sales

Mahmood Khurram is the Head of Distribulion Sales al Al Sheheer Foods. He is an MBA in Markeling fram
Bahauddin Zakanya Unjversity Multan. He 15 a seasoned Sales & Markefir.g professional with a track record of
delivering profitable sales growth, having 14 years of axperience in Locel and Muttinaticnal companies. Over the
years he has been in different managerial roles as Assistant Brand Manager, Area Sales Manager & Channel
Deveiopment Manager at Unilever. His last assignment was Head of Marketing at Dabur Pakistan.
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Najiyeh Akbar

Head of Marksting

Najiyeh is the Head of Marketing at Al-Shaheer Foods. She graduated from Institute of Business Administration
with an MBA in Markeating and MIS, and over 12 years of experience. She has worked at some of tha biggest
names n Pakistan’s corporate sector including Aaj TV and Philip Morris, har last assignment baing the Marketing
Head at Samsung Electranics.

In various capacities, Najiyeh has led brand management, key accounts managemenl and sales innovations and
created seme of the most successful advertising campaigns in recent years. She also has experience as a
technology entrepreneur, running a pionsering O0H startup, which has sharpenad her business acumen further
ta lead Al-Shaheer's marketing sfforts with a uniguely holistic view.

Osama Javed

Head of Human Resource
& Administratian

Oszama Javed Usmani is the Head of Human Resource in Al Ehaheer Foods. Prior 1o this, he worked as Group
Head - Human Resource for Pak-Glatar Takeful Group, where he established organization's structure, HR policies
& procedures and implemanted SAP - HCM.

He also worked in TimelLenders, a management consultancy firm, where he gained the experience of tralning and
Event Management, and attended & number of world renowned tralning pregrams related to Leadership, Strategic
Vislons, etc. Further, he has the experience of working with local and multinational Logistics solution providers,
whera he looked after business development and strategies. Mr. Osama completed his MBA from |BA in 2005, He
is also a certified Neuro-Linguistic Programming Practilioner.
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Shoaib Saleem

Haad of infarmation Technology

Shoaib Saleem ks currently heading IT & Systems depariment of the company. He holds Master Degree in
Computer Sciences. Mr. Shoaib was previously associated with Addvantum Innovative Technologies and was
deputed to Royal Saudi Air Force as Manager Project.

Sheoaib has almost 15 years of experience in Information Technologies & Systems in different positions. He has
handled different projects from ERP implementations to In-house software development and building Database
infrastructure at COC, KASB Securities, Ora-Tech Systems and Venus Distributars.

Soofian Akhter

Head of Retall Operations

Socfian is the Head of Retail Sales (Meat One and Khaas Meat) at Al Shaheer Foods. He has around 16 vears of
experence in retall management at managenal capacities with world renowned fast food and fine dine-in chains
like Pizza Hut, Dominos and Metro Cash & Carry.

Socfian is an MBA.
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Syed Sajjad &8

Company Secretory §

Szjlad is a Lawyer with 8 years of experienze with Law firms, Prier to jeining Al Shaheer Foods, he was associated
with Securities & Exchange Commission of Fakistan, as Deputy Diractor — Prosecutlon & Legal Affairs Divislon,
where he provided legal support to the various divisions of the commission, provided assistance on litigation
matters; coordinated with law enforcement agencies & others matter pertaining to company ordinance 1984,

Sajjad has done LLEB from University of Peshawar,
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Meat has always made meals meore appetizing, more
appealing and even when you think you're not all thal hungry,
the arama of barbecued kabahs is enough to pull you towards
[t. Accesslbillty to meat supposedly 'Halal' and fit for
consumpetion was never a problem in Pakistan, dubious ongins
not withstanding but, whal about cur countrymen and fellow
Muslims living abroad?

Halal meat was barely available In limited regions and Imlted
guantities. Choice of cut and range of taste were luxurias. Poor
Muslims abroad did not even consider to fathom. Reflective of
the relatad notion that access to any meat that was Halal was
primary and quality was a secondany, if at all, consideration,
the term ‘Halal' wes not yet used synonymously with food
tem= nor was ‘Halal’ a brand name that touched the hearts,
minds and palate of voracious Muslims yearning for frash,
healthy meat prepared in a Halal way.




Imagine yourself sitting down for dinner oceans away from home, thinking of mouthwatering mutton chops,
chicken drumsticks or a juicy beef steak but you have to make do with the daal and veggies because there isn't
any Halal meat availabla, a tragedy indeed. But not anymuora!

Halal meat has always been a necessity and its growing global demand makes it one of the fastest growing
segments within the global food trade. The increased demand brought Pakistan into this business, soon making
it the 18th biggest Halal meat exporter in the werld. It was not long before the global market saw the emergence
of Al Shaheer Foods which soon became a trusted supplier of high guality Halal meat to importers across GCC
countries,

Amid significant competition, Al Shaheer Foods has made its mark as one of the leading meat exporters of
Pakistan since its conception In the summer of 2008 answering the prayers of meat lovers all around the world.
The wide range of products offered in besf, prime beef, mutton, chicken, steak stone. ready to cook/marninated
range and lamb (local and Aussie) leaves nathing to be desired.

Baing one of the ieading meat exporters of Pakistan, Al Shaheser Foods plays a major rala in the 27% annual
growth of the Halal meat industry, on its way to meking Pakistan one of the largest players in the meat trade.

In the face of increased competition and devalued currencies of compating countries, Al Shaheer Foods became
even more determined to show what It was made of, boosting its exporl growth by 29% In the FY 2015-2018,
This has been g remarkable achievement proving that export is definitely the backbene of Al Shaheer Foods.

Karachi, Pakistan's largest air and sea port houses cur state-of-the-art abattoir, strategically situated with access
to international frade routes and certified to export to some of the largest regional markets around the globe,
making sure thare Is never any delay in providing tha freshest produce 1o our distributors abroad,

With a determined focus on aur vision of bacoming global leaders in the Halal food sector, we began by exporting
red meat only to Dubal and have now expanded our reach to Saudi Arabia, Oman, Kuwait, Bahrain and Qatar and
strive to widen our reach worldwide.

Having won the ‘Best Export Performance’ award several times for Fresh and Frozen Meat from the Federation

of Pakistan Chambers of Commerce and Industry, we alm and are working towards further such accolades in the
future,

Following are the countries Al Shahesar exports to:

CeOCIIC

KUWAIT MAN SAUDJ ARABIA QATAR BAHRAIN
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Meat One

There is a guagmire that residents of Karachi
find themselves in whan it comes to buying
top quality, healthy and hygienic meat that
can be traced back 1o respectable criging. In
THE MEAT EXPERTS  some ways sadly, the choice is simple.

ERRERLS

st THE WERL

The contest is really betwesn bad meat and worse meat, the
quality being a direct function of how long the meat josiled
around, marirating on the back of a truck, imbuing not only the
sights and sounds of rural Pakistan, but also the urban air
pregnant with lead., mercury and other highly undesirable
elements. Dur meat buying practices are paradoxical to out
ifestyles as most of us are forced to buy substandard meat at
the local roadside butcher or perhaps &t a higher end grocery
store in more civilized surroundings. Either way, the origin of
the meat ramains entirely guestionable
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This is where we come in, Owning and operating one of the largest abattoirs in Pakistan, we recognized that the
practice of exporting good quality meat was a travesty, and realized the need to change this practice - 1o give
Karachi a taste of good quality meat from free range animals on our own farms. This was the obvious way of
giving back to our city.

Al Al Shaheer, the finest free range animals are selecied and then raised on our company farms, strictly on organic
food to ensure the greatest quality of meat that only experts can guarariee. Something as simple as this instantly
makes the meal juicier and tender. We keep these and several other factors in mind while preparing our meat
products to suit your lifestyle and taste preferences.

‘Meat One’ is & meat boutique; a concept which is not allen to most of Karachi, but one currently based on
fantasy. Tha words “boutigue” and “meat shop” do seem |ike two different ideas, but in effect it really transiates
inte a unique opportunity to do something that has not been done befora. Allow us to make thia fantasy a reality.
From nurturing to slaughtering, chilling, transporting and retalling, our products have to undergo stringent guality
checks each step of the way, Halal, nealthy and fresh, this meat is now being made available et various logations
through specially designed Meat One boutigues.

Meat One is a concept meat shop, all about celebrating camivorous yearnings. No more flailing arms like a
banshea in an attempt o ward off the flies, no bagums with their beauliful faces hidden behind duppattas, or
worse yel oontortad inlo ugliness due to the malodorous surraundings. Meat lovers will no longer have ta warry
about the dubious origins of their steak, Buying meat will no longer be the dreaded chore that ks readily delegated
to the errand boy, bul will rather become an enjoyabla weekly ritusl.

Glving priarity to health and hygiene, the shop is custom made, without compromising on aesthatics. The
customer/s wlll be able to follow the whole process of meat preparation behind the glass counters and be
thorouahly convinced of the quality of meat and the effort and honasty that the process entails.
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Khaas Meat

Who doesn't want the best quality in the best
economical price? But is that even possible in
today's day and age, you may ask?

A

e

All you see around you is Inflaled prices and dateriorating
quality. Either the quality keeps felling or the quantity keeps
shrinking and you end up with almaost half of the quantity at
double the price. It's anough to make you give up and Just
accept this as the norm which will keep emptying your pockets
giving you a half filled rumbling stomach and the never ending
frustration ef having to put up with this daylight robbery.

But don't give up hope just yet because this is where Al Shaheer
Foods steps in with their ‘aam’ priced Khaas Meal.

AllTnnRnnEEn

—
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The February of 2014 saw the launching of Khaas Meat, Al Shaheer's second retail brand after the success of
Meat One.

You may bes wondering about the purpose of a second retall brand offering the same as the first with the
difference of a name. Well, the name says it all. At Khaas Meat, there is no compromise on quality or hygiene but
we have chopped the prices to cater to SEC B & C, providing our customers with pramium quality meat
processed in a hygienic environment,

You don't need to go to the local butcher shops and share your meat with the hundreds of flies, having the time
of thedr lives on your overly priced mutton leg. Khaas Meat is an upgrade to the existing butcher shops in the
market providing high guality meat in a clean and hygienic enviranment.

We operate through 15 cutlets spread across Karachi, Lahore and Rawalpindi with standalone outlets and
through CSD shop-in-shops stores. This increases the accessibility of custormers, keeping their convenience one
of our lop priorities.

Kiesk butcher shops being our primary competitors, it took a lot of hard work and dedication to place a firm
foothold in that market but we managed to estabiish and secure our customers' loyaity. Our customers are
offered the best meat of beef, mutton and chicken from animals that have been verified safe and healthy by our
vets and which is compliant with international meat standards.

The best export guality meat can ba found al our retall stores along with great service from competent, courteous
and friendly staff. Qur outlets are designed not only with an aesthetic serse but in a way that our custermers can
follow the whole process of meat preparation leaving no doubts about the quality of meat they are buying.

Our par excellence services and products have helped us make our mark in a significantly short period of time.
The growth of Khaas Msat proves our claims of high guality and affordable prices and this will only keep
increasing with our reputation and sarvice.
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As a pionear in the organized meat indusiry, we take it upan
ourselves o provide our customers with the best of our

L]
DeI Ivery prodicts and services by adding the prime valde of home

delivery. An ideal hassle free delivery service not only
and contributes to the convenience of our consumers but also

follows an effective timely response meeting all goals keeping
E-commerce

Karachi ¥ |

shop Products +* sook? % Deals and Promotions Gontact Us

The Meat Experts

Our Meat Experts offer you with
Wholesome, Fresh and Trimmed meat
with cashback guarantee
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SHOP PRODUCTS

T sd, B, Y v W PN Olinc

| ==

gach business front sabished,

Initially the delivery service was being provided through a
traditional way of call center in which a customer dials
11-11-MEAT-1 and place his/her order. But digitization has
changed consumer buying behavior and people sesk for more
convananca. Keep this bahawvior in mind, Meal One has coma
up with e-commerce anabled website (www.meatona.net) o
add maore valug and experience o consumer's convenianca.
Through e-commerce, the freshest Meat Is |ust clicks away
from the door step of consumers. Meat One's exceptional
Store-to-Door  dalivery  service combined with more
convenient e-commerca facility takes consumer's shopping
exparience o new haights.
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Shop Progducts r Deals and Prametions e Contact 11s
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SHOP PRODUCTS

hicken Qorma Cul F Multton Back Chop Naliun Salad

Fis 1349 pet Ko R 399 pet Pacloet

FROM STORE-T0-DOOR!
CALL NOW
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Professional

_ Traveling by air? Dining at a
o"o restaurant? Having lunch at vour
50 office cafetera? What is ona of
m yvaur lop concams?
FOODS

= The hyglene and freshness of the
Professional Line food they are senving, right?

Well, that will be the least of your wornes naw because the
meat providers are none other than Al Shaheer Foods.

Meat has always baen tha main issue of concerm regarding its
origin, freshness, quality and distribution with Al Shaheer
Foods ticking all these boxes every single time. This s
especially important at the institutional level because they in
turn have to serve the best to their customers. We raalize that
along with the institution’s reputation it is mainly the provider’s
which Is al stake, which is why Al Shaheer makes no
compramisas in providing the best quality of meat.
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The overwhelming success of Meat One retall outlets and the massive positive response from Household
consumers encouraged us to widen our reach and serve consumers at the institutional level, In 2013, with a firm
footheld in export and retall buginess, Al Shaheer ventured to serve local B2B customers, mainly Hotels,
Restaurants, Hospitals and Corporatss.

Having a start with shared retail rescurces, our Institutional S3ales Unit gradually grew into a separate department,
keeping in mind the requiremants of bulk consumers. Fulfilling the neads of corporate clients baing our primary
objective, our clients In various citles have increased In a short span of time and the number keeps on Increasing.

We don't belleve in overpricing our products which Is why our iocal clients with bulk orders are served premium
products at cost efficient rates. We are a one stop solution to all our clients whose complete meat procuremeant
requirements are satistactorily and conveniently fulfilled by Al Shaheer Foods.,

Our clients are primarily from threa differant channels. The first channal is HoReCa which includes Haotsls,
Hestaurants, Cafes, Clubs and Caterers which consumes meat 1o make thelr primary offering I.e. food. They are
pltched an the basis of food guality and taste

Tha second channel is In-house Kitchens, Airlines, Hospitals & Ship Chandlers — These custormers are pltched on
the basis of price consclousness and value for money.

The third channe! s Educational Institutions — In-house cafsterias which prepare fresh food for children and staff,
These customiers are targeted on tha basis of nutrition and health benefits.

Our 205 customers in Karachi, Lahore, Isiamabad and Hyderabad include major corporate clients like Dalda,
Huawel, Amreli Steels, Abboll Pharmaceuticals, Getz Pharma , US Consulate: Medical Institutes like Aga Khan

University. Hospital and Patel Hospital: and Fast Food joints like Burger Lab, Big Thick Burgerz, Pizza Hut, Tha
Sauce, and many more.

Major clients:

Thesacs | v
- xﬂllmﬂnnda
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Qur state-ol-the-art abaltoir is siluated on the oulskirs of Pakistan'a
largest city of Karachl, it Is strategically situated with access to
F acto ry international trade routes via the country's largest airport and sea
port. The abattoir, which is one of the most modern of its kind in
Pakistan, is certified o export to some of the largest regional

markets around the globe and qualifies as a high throughput facility
with a daily staughtering capacity of 700 cattle and 1000 mutton.

Certificates & Accreditations

1. HALAL certification on Pakistan HALAL standard PS 3733:2016
2. HALAL certification an international HALAL standard MS 1500
3. HALAL cearlification on UAE f GSO 993:.2015

(HALAL slaughtering standard)

ISO 22000:2005

HACCP

130 14001:2015
OHSAS 18001:2007
IS0 8001:2015
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From spariding, air-conditioned stores thal &liminate the nek of
meat going bad on the shelves, to a clossly-monitored supply
chain, Al Shaheer Foods is rapldly changing meat shopping in
Pakistan, transforming the once-drerded experisnce of
visiting the butcher into a comfortabla, hygienie expariance.
We take care to ensure only the best, export-quality meat
makes it to the consumer’s table. Before the Halal slaughtering
of the meat, it is ensured that all animals are examined by
veterinarians and are thomoughly cleaned. The meat |s
examined once again after slaughter, to ensure that only the
frashest and healthies! meat make it to the stores. All our
oullets are based on international hygiene standards, with a
state-of-the-art abattoir in Karachi receiving a HACCP (Hazard
Analysis and Critical Control Peints) certification. Indeed, even
in transport, every step is taken to ensure the quality of the
meat is not compromised. A spegial fieet of chilled trucks
lransports all meal o our retail oullels, in all the cities wa
cperate in, keeping it fresh in controlied temperature, but
naver frozen so [t retains the nutrition and reaches the
consumer in best way possible, as fresh as [t could gel

PROCUREMENT OF LIVESTOCK
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Corporate Stakeholder Interests
G 0 V e r n a n C e Al Shaheer Corporation Lid adopts the best corporate govarmance practic-
es to maintain the proper balance in the allocation of nghts. powers, dulies

and responsibilities among managers, the Board of Directors and shars-
holders

GOVERNANCE
“cuick

The faremost objective of our business is to create econamic and social
value for our stakeholde s, The exiended cantribution of our stakehold
ers lowards our growth and exislence (s valuable for the Company. We
cannot hold our purpase without inpud from the stakeholders

Shareholders

Safeguarding our sharsholders interest is our prime responsibility Our
shareholders’ interest revolves around gaod returns, profitabliity, growth
and regulatory compliances. We respond o cur sharaholders’ expects
tions through improvement in business mechanics, effeclive govern-
ance and corporate reparting framework: Annual Genaral Meetings and
stalutory ¢ rting are the most effective means of our engagement with
our sharsholders. Support of shareholders is onitical in achieving the
Company ohjectives
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Investor Relations
The Company has a policy which sats out the principles In providing the sharsholders and prospective fnvestors with necessary
information 1o maxe well nformed investiment decisions and 10 ensuré a level playing field,

To keep transparency in the relation between the Company and is shareholders, the website of Al Shaheer Cerporation Lid.
comalns all the major financial information neesded for invesiors' decision making In 8 separate tab of “Investor Relations®
[ http:fwevw aishaheer nelinvestor-ralations/).

Customers and Suppliers

Sustaining and developing long term ralationship with our customers and suppliers forms the key of our business success. Our
zales and marketing team remain in close contact to cur stakeholders lo reschve issues an a prionty basis. We continue o
engage with our customers and suppliers through meetings. market visits and communications.

Our procuremeant leams are In continuous contact with suppliers and venders thorough meetings and correspondence 1o
resolve all gueras for an lime deliveres of livestock and ether supplies. Cooperation of our suppliers gives us an exlra edage
over our competitors

Banks and Other Lenders
We value our reiationship with our financial pariners and |=ncers. Pericdic briefings, quarterly financial reporting, head office
and Tactory visits are the main means for aur engagement with this eategory of stakeholders.

Regulators

Cur commitment to compliance with laws and requlations is evident from our Corporate team's continued efforts for efficlent
and effective legai and regulatory obedience. The engagement includes submission of perindic repons, responding to enquiries
and meetings as and when required. Active engagement with regulators improves level of compliance.

Employees

Ciur company has extensive employee engagement achemes in place. The employees’ |ssues ravelve arolnd wark [if2
balance, training and development and rewards. Employes meetings are on regular intervals in the farm of quaredy town hall
mestings, celebrating sports day and team building activities. Employee engagament mproves the level of dedication and hard
Work,

Media
Ads and campalgns are launched in media based on marketing requirements, Interaction with media Improvas the brand image
of the Company

Board of Directors

The Board of Diracters consists of qualified individuals possessing knowledge, exparience and skilis in various professions,
with the leadership and vision to provide oversiaht 1o the Company. Tha Board is assisted by two Committees. name(y the Audit
Committes-and the Human Resource Commitiee, o support its decision-making (n their respective domalns:

Audit Commitiee

Mr. Muhammad Qlaysar Alam Chairman
Mr. Noorur Rahman Abid IMember
M. Muhammad Amin Member

The Audit Committes comprizes of one Mon-Executive and two Indepandent Non-Executive Directors, The membars of the
audit commitiee possess relevant financial expertise and experience. The Chief Executive Officer (CEQ]. the Chief Financial
Dfficer (CFO), the Chief Internal Auditor {T1A) and the external a uditor attend Audit Committes meetings by mvitation. The Audit
Committee alsn separately meets the Chiaf internal Auditor (ClA&) and extarnal auditors at least once 8 year withaut the

presance of tha Manatemeanl.

Megtings of the Audit Commities are held at least once every quarer. The Commitiee reviews the annual financial siatements
inthe presence of external audilore. The rezommendations of the Audil Committee are then submitted fer approval of financial
results of the Company by the Board. Duning the year 2017-18, the Audit Commitise hald four {4 meatings. The minutes of the
mestings of the Audit Committee are provided to all the-members, Directors and the CFO. The ClA attends the Audit Committes
meetings reqularly and meers the Audit Committee without the presence of the Management, at least once a year, to paint out
varlaus risks, thelr infensity and suggestions for mitigating risks and improvemant areas. The business risks dantified are
referred lo the respeclive departments and mitigaling actions are then implemeniad.
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Human Resource Commitiee

Ms. Rukhsana Asghar Chairparson
Mr. Sarfaraz Rehiman Member
Mr. Zafar Siddiqui Member
Mr Rizwan Jamil Membear

The Human Resource Commiltes (HRC) comprises of four members. The HRC comprises three Independant Non-Exscutive
Directors and one Executive Director. The Chairperson of the HRC is an Independent Non-Executive Dirsctor. HRC mestings
ara conducted at such frequency as the Chairperson may determine. The minutas of the meetings are provided to all members
and Directars. The Committes held two meetings duning the year.

Offices of the Chairman & CEO

Belng a corporate governance compliznt company. Al Shahser Comp, Lid. designatss separate parsons for the positions of the
Chaiman of the Board of Directors and the office of the Chiel Executive with clear craision of roles and responsibility

Roles of the Chairman & CEO

The Chairman and the Chiaf Executive have separate and distinet roles: The Chaliman has all the powars vested under the
Code of Corporate Governance and presides over Board meetings: The Chief Executive Officer performs his duties under the
powers vestad by the law and the Board and recommends ang implements the business plans and Is respansible for overall
eontral and operaticn of the Company.

Directors' Orientation and Training

The Directors of the Company are well experenced and have diverse backgrounds. At the time of induction of any new director,
he or she is given proper orientation aboul the eperalions of the Company and his or her fiduclary responsibilities. Seven Direc-
tors of the Company are also certified under the Dimsctors Training Program offered by Institule of Chartered Accountants of
Fakistan (ICAP) and Institute of Business Administration (18A).

Evaluation of Board Performance

Baoard Evaluation Mechanism facililates the Board of Diraclors to evaluale and assess its performancs for providing strategic
leadership and oversiaht to'the management, Ascordingly, procedure s In place 1o assist in the self-asseszment of individual
director and the full Board’s perfarmance

Report of the Audit Committee

Mestings of the Board Audit Gommittee are held at least once every guarter, Four mestings of the Audit Commities were held
during the year 2017-2018 Based on reviews and discussions in hese mesatings, the Audit Committee reporls that

¢«  The Company hasadhered, without any material depanure, with both the mandatory and voluntary provisions of the
Pakistan Slock Exchange, Code of Corporate Govarnance, Company's Code af Conduct and valuas and the best
practices of governance throughout the year,

. The Company has issued a Statement of Compliance with the Cede of Corporate Governance which has also been
reviewed and certified by the external audilors of the Company.

L The Audit Committes reviewed and approved the gquarerly, hall yearly and annual financial siatemants of the
Campany and recommended them for approval of the Board of Directors

=  Appropriate accounting policles have been consistantly applied, Applicable Intermational Accounting Standards and
International Financial Reporiing Standards were followed in preparation of financlal statements of the Company ona
going concern basis, which present fairly the state of affairs, results of operations, cash flows and changes In equity
of the Company,

« Accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment. Proper and adequate accounting records have
been maintained by the Company in accordance with the Companies Acl, 2017 and the external reporling is consistent
with management processes and adequate for shzrsholder nesds.

=  The financial stataments eomply with the requirements of the Fourth Schadule to the Gompanies Act, 2017 and
applicable Inlemational Accounting Standards and Intemational Financlal Reporting Standards notified by SECP.

Hmmm




The Chief Exsoutive Officer and the Chief Financial Gfficer have signed the financial statements of the Company. They
acknowledge their responsibility for the trus and falr presentation of the financial statements, accuracy of reporting,
compliance with regulalions and applicable accounting & reporling standard and eslablishment & mainlenance of
sound intarnal control system of the Company.

The Audit Committes has raviewsd and approved 3l ralated party transactions

The Company's system of inlemal control is sound in design and is continually evaluated for effectivensss and
adaquacy.

For appraisal of internal contrels and menltonng compliance, the Company has in place an Internal Audit departiment.
The Audit Committes reviewed the resources of the Internal Audit department to ensure that they were adequate for
the planned scope of the Internal Audit funchon

The Audit Committes on the basis of the Internal audit reports reviewed the adequacy of controls and compliance
shortcomings in areas audited and discussed cormective actions in the light of managemeant responses. This has
ensured the continual evaluation of controls and impreved compliance.

Head of Internal Audit Department hias direct access to the Audit Committee.

The external auditars Nis, Ernst & Young Ferd Rhodes SidatHyder, Chartered Accountants were allowed direct

access to the Audit Commitiee and necessary coordination with internal auditors was snsured. Major findings arising
frorm audits and any matters that the external auditors-wished to highlight were freely discussed with them

|

Muhammad Qaysar Alam
Chairman - Audit Committee
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Statement of Compliance

With the Code of Carporate Governance
Al Shaheer Corporation Lid,

Year ended 30th June 2018

The Company has applied the principles contained in the CCG in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are ten as per the following:
a. Male: B
b. Female: 1

2. The composition of board is as fellows:

I Independent Directors Mr. Noorur Bahman Abid
Mr. Sarfaraz Retiman

Mz, Rukhsana Asghar

Mr. Muhammad Claysar Alam

Mr. Zafar Almed Siddigui

Exécutive Directors Mr. Kamran Ahmed Khafill (CEQ)

Mr. Rizwan femil [Deputy CED)

Non-Executive Directors Mr. Muhammed Amin
Mr. Naveed Godil
Mr. Umair Ahmed Khalii

3. The diractars have confirmed thal none of them is serving as a directar on more than five listed
companies, including this Campany

4. The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have
been taken to disseminate || throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and proce-
dures.

5. The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strateay and sianificant
policies of the Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates
on which they were approved er amended has been maintained.

6. All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have
been taken by board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant pravisions of the Act and these
Regulations.

7. The meetings of the board were presidad over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a direc-
tor elected by the board for this purpose. The board has complied with the requirements of Act and
the Regulations with respect to freguency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of board.
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8. The board of directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of
directors in accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

8. The board has arranged Directors’ Training program for the following:

Mr. Umair Khalili Non-Executive Director

10. The beard has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit,
including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant
requirements of the Regulations.

11. CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the hoard.

12 The board has formed committees comprising of members given balow:

Audit Committee Mr. Muhammad Qaysar Alam (Chairman of the Audit
Committee)

Mr. Noorur Rahman Abid

Mr. Muhammad Amin

Human Resource & | Ms. Rukhsana Asghar (Chairperson of the Human
Remuneration Committee | Resource and Remuneration Committes)

Mr. Sarfaraz Rehman

Mr. Zafar Siddigui

Mr. Rizwan lamil

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and
advised to the commitiee for compliance,

14 The frequancy of mestings (quartarly/half yearly/yearly) of the committes wera as per follawing:

Audit Committee Quarterly

HR & Remuneration Committee Biannually,
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15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function which is considered suitably qualified
and experienced for the purpose and is canversant with the policies and procedures of the Compa-

ny.

16. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the quality control review program of the ICAP and registered with Audit Oversight
Board of Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm. their spouses and minor children do
not hold shares of the Company and that tha firm and all its partners are in compliance with Inter-
national Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP.

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide
other services except in accardance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatary require-
ment and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18. We confirm that all olher requiremenls of the Regulations have been complied with,

‘ \UN‘&,

NOORUR RAHMAN ABID KAMRAN KHALILI
Chairman / Director CEOQ
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REVIEW REPORT

To the members of Al Shaheer Corporation Limited (the Company)

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 {the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directars
of Al Shaheer Corporation Limited for the year ended 30 June 2018 in accordance with the
requirements of requiation 40 of the Requlations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Requlations is that of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Qur respansibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of
the Company's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to
highlight any nan-compliance with the requirements of the Requlations. A review is limited primarily to
Inguiries of the Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to
comply with the Regulatians.

As a part of our audlt of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach, We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on Internal
contral covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal
controls, the Company's corparate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committes, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and
approval, its related party transactions and also ensure campliance with the requirements of
section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this
requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of
Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out procedures to
assess and determine the Company's process for identitication of related parties and that whether
the related party transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material
respects, with the reguirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the
year ended 30 June 2018.

My 1t
Charlered Accountanis

Place: Karachi

Date: 26 September 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the members of Al Shaheer Corporation Limited
Report on the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Opinlon

We have audited the annexed unconsolldated financial statements of Al Shaheer Corporation
Limited (the Company), which comprise the unconsolidated statement of financial position as at 30
June 2018, and the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the uncensolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of cash flows, the unconsolidated statement of
changes in equity for the year then ended, and notes to the unconsolidated financial statements,
Including @ summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state
that we have obtained all the Information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the
unconsoclidated statement of comprehensive incame, the unconsolidated statement of cash fiows
and the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity together with the nates forming part thereof
conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the
information reguired by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and
respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 30 June 2018 and
of the profit, comprehensive Income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year then
ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted cur audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable
in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Fthics Standards Board for
Accountants® Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan (the Code)and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our apinion,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the uncensolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do net provide a separate apinion an these matters.

e
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Following are the key audit matters:

™ Capital work-in-progress and related jong-term financing facllity

As disclosed in note 9.5 (o the accompanying
unconsolidated financial statements, the Company
has incurred significant amount of capital
expenditure for Its new Chicken Processing Plant,
which is expected to be operational by next year.
The expenditure capitalized to date in relation to
this new Chicken Processing Plant has been
Elstﬁjsgiied as capital wark-in-progress as of 30 Jung

Furthier, as disclosed in note 22 to the
accompanying unconsolidated financial statements,
the Company has obtained iong-term financing
facilities from commercial banks amounting to s,
G20 million to finance the capital expenditure.

We considered material additions in capital work-in-
progress and |ong-term financing as key area of
focus during aur audit as the amounts reported are
material to the unconsolidated statement of
financial gosition and therefore, we have [dentified
these as a key audit matter,

Dur key audit procedures in these areas includzad,
amongst others, obtaining an understanding of
the Company’s process with respect to capital
gxpenditure and controls relevant to such
process,

We performed substantive audit procedures
through inspection of relaled contracts and
documents supporting various components of
the capitalized cosls,

We also considered whether the items of cost
capitalized, including berrowing costs. meet the
recognition criteria of an asset in accordance
with the applicable financial reparting standards.

In relation ta the long-term financing facility, we
reviewed the significant terms and conditions
contained in the financing agresment executed
during the year.

We alsp inguired management in respect of
future compliance with the loan covenants and
any challenges expected in this regard.

We circularized and received confirmation from
the banks financing the Company. We have alsa
reviewed the maturity analysis of the financing to
ascertain the classification of lcan as per the
remaining maturity.

We further assessed the adequacy of
unconsolidated financial statement disclasures in
accordance  with the applicable  financial
reporting framework.

Preparation of financial statements under the Companies Act, 2017

As refarred to In note 3.1 to the accompanying
unconsolidated financial statements, the Companies
Act, 2017 became applicable for the first time for the
preparation of the Company's annual financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2018.

The Companles Act, 2017 forms an integral part aof
the statutory financial reparting framework as
applicable to the Company and amongst others,
|prescribes the nature and content of disclosures in
(relation to wvarious elements of the financial
statements.

In the case of the Company, specific additional

\disclosures and changes to the existing disclosures
jhave been Included In the unconsolidated financial

statements as referred fo note 3.2 fo the

uncansafidated financial statements.

Further, the Company has changed its accounting
palicy relating to presentation and measurement of
revaluation surplus on property, plant and eguipment
dsaconsequence of the application of the Companias
Act, 2017 with retrospective effect. The Impart of
the said change In accounting policy has been
disclosed In note 8 to the unconsolidated financial
slatements.

Ve assessed (he procedures applied by [he
managerment for identification of the changes
required in  the unconsolidated financial
statements due to application of the Companies
Act, 2017. We considered the adequacy and
appropriateness of the additional disclosures and
changes to the previous disciosures based on the
new requirements, We also evaluated the
sources of information used by the management
for the preparation of the above referred
disclosures and the internal consistency of such
disclosures with other elements of the
lunconsolidated financial statements.

|In respect of the change in accounting policy far
|the accounting and presentation of revalustion
surplus  as referred to note 8 fo the
unconsclidated  financial  statements; we
|assessed the accounting implications In
|accordance  with  the applicable  financial
reporting standards and evaluated its application
in the context of the Company.
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ﬂ_awu&uam




EY

Buliding & bettar Palen Euams
warking world

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the members of Al Shaheer Corporation Limited
Report on the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated finaricial statements of Al Shaheer Corparation
Limited (the Company), which comprise the unconsclidated statement of financial position as al 20
June 2018, and the unconsolidatad statement of profit ar loss, the unconsolidated statement of
comprehensive incame, the unconsolidated statement of cash flows, the unconsolidated statement of
changes in equity for the year then ended, and notes to the unconselidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatary Information, and we state
that we have obiained all the Information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit,

In Gur opiniun and to the best of our Infarmation and according te the explanations glven to us, the
unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the
unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsclidated statement of cash flaws
and the uncorisolidated statement of chanaes in eguity together with the notes forming part theraof
conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give tha
information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (X1X of 2017), In the manner so required and
respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs 25 at 30 June 2018 and
of the profit, comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year then
ended,

Basis for Dpinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable
in Pakistan. Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in Lthe Auditar’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsalidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards 8eard for
Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan (the Code)and we have fulfilled our other ethical rezponsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We belleve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matlers that, in our prefessional judgment, were of most slonificance in
our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements as a whale, and in
ferming our opinion thereon, and we da not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

[y SN
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Information Cther than the Unconsclidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information, The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the uncansolidatad financial
statements and our auditer's report thereon,

Our opinion on the unconsalidated financial stalements does not cover the other Information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion therean,

In connection with our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements, our respansibility is to read
the other information and, in doing 40, consider whether the other information is materiaily
Incensistent with the Unconsolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained In the audil or
atherwise appears to be materlally misstated. It, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstalement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Unconsalidated Financlal
Statements

Management [s responsible far the preparation and lair presentation of the unconsalidated
financial statements.in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as atpp!icabLe in
Fakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XX of 2017y and for such internal control
as management detarmines Is necessary to enzble the preparation of unconselidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the unconsclidated financlal statements, management Is responsible for assessing the
Cempany's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no reafistic alternative but to do so.

Beard of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reparting process,
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the unconsolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion: Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not & guarantee that an audit conducted In accordance with 1SAs as applicable in Pakistan will
always detect a material misstatement when It exists. Misstatements can arlse from fraud or error and
are cansidered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
inflrencaithe economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these unconsolidated financial
shatemenis.

As part of an audlt in accardance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism thraughout the audit, We alsa:

« |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the unconsalidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or errar, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basls for
our opinion. The risk of not detecling a material misstatement resufting from fraud |s higher
than for ane resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, fargery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal cantral.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
qucpdures thal are appropriate In the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
apinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal contral.

» Evaluate the approprialeness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
eztimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Canclude an the appropriateness ol management’s use of the golng concern basis of
etcounting and, based on the audit evidence ohtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or condftions [hat may cast significant doubt an the Company's ability to
continue as 8 going concern. |F we conclude Lhal a material uncertainty exlsts, we are reguired ta
draw attentlon In aur auditor's report to the related disclosures in the unconsolidated financial
stalements or, If such disclosures are Inadequata, to modify our opinion. Dur conclusions are

e Page 4
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based on the audit avidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, struclure and content of the unconsolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the unconsolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, amang other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies i internal
control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and ta cammunicate with them all relaticnships and ather matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those mattars that were of
most significance in the audit of the unconsolldated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditer's report Unless law
or regulation precludes public disclasure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstiances,
we determine that a matter should net be communicated In our report because the adverse
l;unsequgncgs_uf doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communicatian.

Report on Other Legal and Requlatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report thatl in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as reguired by the Companies Act,
2017 (XK of 2017);

b} the unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of profit or
loss, the unconselidated statement of comprahensive inceme, the unconsolidated statemeant
af cash flows, the unconsolicated statement of changes (n equity and together with the
notes thereon have been drawn up In conformity with the Companies act, 2017 (XX of 2017)
and are in agreement with the books of account and returns:

¢} investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for
the purpose of the Company's business; and

d) r;ogé’:gﬁat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIil of

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Shabbir Yunus.

Lo g < ¢ 7

-
Chartered Accountants

h-—\.-'
Place: Karachi

Date: 27 Septemibrer 2018
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Unconsolidated Statement of Financial Position

AS AT 30 JUNE 2018
NOE  mmerermmee sz s |RUPEES i1 DO0) =mrmrmm e e
ASSETS Restated Restated
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Froperty. punt and equipment 8 4,731,490 3368 189 2,581,433
Inangible asser h[¢] 5219 4 BE3 3,840
Long-term nvastment 11 55.700 55,700 55.700
Defarrad tax asset 12 192,815 177,563 120,078
4,985,224 2.606.315 2,770,051
CURRENT ASSETS
Stock-in-frade 13 107.959 116618 167 554
Fuel and litbricants 286 442 503
Trade debts 14 1,211,870 1.181 152 1,096 588
Laans and advances 18 586,350 483018 421,584
Trade deposits end short-term prepaymanis 18 21.365 20614 22,300
Short-term irvestment 1T 500 566 215,823
Other receivatles 18 233.910 234,045 179,501
Taxation - nst 141,858 108,138 T8, 228
Cash and bark balances 16 52,004 27.833 26,064
2,356,482 2193720 2,206,523
TOTAL ASSETS 7.341.706 5 800041 4 575,574
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorised capital
50,000,000 (2047 150,000, 000) ordinary
shares of Rs. 10/~ each 1,500,000 1.500 000 1,500,000
Issued, suhaeribad and paid-up capital 20 1,421,175 1.421,175 1,235,804
Shara pramium 1,507.706 1 507,705 1,693,078
Unappropriated profil 634,687 &78.841 668,587
Revaluation surplus on property, plant and aquipmeant 21 B52.139 186,922 197,078
Tatal Equity 4,415,706 3.794,743 3,824,545
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-term fmancing 2d TOB.OTT 400414 29,552
Cieferrad liabilties 23 50,639 43 526 28,287
767.716 443, 540 &7 ,8a8
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payablas 24 565,037 450,739 214,187
Shert-term borrewings 25 1,123,374 1.044.918 734,583
Accruad mark-up 26 21,543 11,758 577
Due toa relaled parly 27 260,147 13.627 7.554
Current portisn of leng-term financing 22 179,183 40416 33,188
2,156,264 1.561.353 1,093,180
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 7341, 706 5.800.041 4 875,574
COMMITMENTS 28

The annexed notes 1 to 41 form an integral part of these unconsalidated financial statemants,

Chief Executive Director Chiel Financal Officer
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Unconsolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

Turnover - nat

Costof sales

Gross profit

Administrative and distribution costs
Oter income

Operating profit

Finance costs

Loss hetore taxation

Taxation

Net lass for the year

Loss per share - basic

NOte  wemeeeesaes (Rupees in 000 -meemeam
29 5,373,148 6,396 642
30 (4,151,827) (4.869.940)

1,221,221 1.526,702

31 (1,307,432) (1.472 257)
32 120,638 18,492
34,427 72,937

33 156,032) (81,204)
121,605) (8.267)

34 122,376) (12,535}
(43,981) (20,802}

35 (0.34) (0.15)

The annexed notes 1ta 47 farm an integral part of these uncansol dated financial statements

\m\\&

=
Chief Executive

Director

g

- il
Chief Finandal Officer
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Unconsolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FOR THE YEAR EMDED 30 JUNE 2018

Note

Met loss for the year
Other comprehensive income:
[tems not to be reclassified to statement of profit or loss
account in subsequent years
Remeasurarmeant lose on defined banalit plan 231

Income fax effect

Items that may be reclassified to statement of profit or loss
account in subseguent years

Revaluation surpius on property, plantand equipment
Ircome lax effect

Total comprehensive income [ (loss) for the year

R lRl-I

(43,981)

(10,871) (9.387)
1,450 367
(9,412) {8.000)
673,568 E
788 =
674,356 -
620,963 (29.802)

The annexed nuies 1 to 41 form an integral parl of these uncensolidaled financlal statements.

Chief Execulive Director

i 2

Chief Financial Officer
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Unconsolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
(T [ T

Nots (Y p—
CASH FLOWS FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation {21,605) (8,287
Adjustments for:
Depresiatinn g3 756,680 V8 682
Amortisation 10 1,699 1,168
Provisian far defined benafit plan 232 18,142 15,510
Provigion Ter doubtiul debts 143 8197 iTio
Liagkilities no longer payakle written back a2 13,230) (T 435)
Loss / (gain) on dispazal of property, plant and squipmeant 54 304 (465)
Gain on remeasuremnt of shor-term invastment [24) (7T
Gain on dispogal of shor-term investmant - {2,835
Financa costs 33 56,032 81,204
158,770 168,860
Operating profit before werking capital changes 137,165 180,393
{inerease) | decreass in current assets:
Fuels and ubricants 158 161
Stock-in-trade 8,659 51,036
Trade debits {29,015) (88,174)
Loans and advancas (53,332) (T1.424)
Trade deposits snd short-term prepaymants (551) 1,486
Other receivables 135 (54 54
[113,948) (171,459
Increase | (decrease) in current liabilities:
Trade and sther payables 117,528 144,007
Cue to a related party 255,620 5,963
373148 148,970
Cash generated from operations 396,365 138,904
Taxes pad |68,203) (93,542)
Gratuity paid 2541 {13,870) (8,668)
Not cash generated from operating activities 314,282 35,804
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acditions ta.
- Property, plant and equipment (¥74,7B9) {BES B501)
- intangible assel 10 (2.055) {2189
Zzle procesds from dieposal of proparty. plant and eguipment 8,072 1,674
Ehor-tearm Investmants - net - 218,038
Meat cash Mows used in investing activities {768,772) 548, 126)
CASH FLOWS FROM FIMANCING ACTIVITIES
Long-term financing - nat 446,430 378,089
Shart term borrowings - net 78,456 310,335
Firance cosks paid {46.245) (¥3.123)
Net cash flows from financing activities 478,641 515,307
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 24,161 2,869
Cash and cosh equivalents at the beginning of the year 27,933 25,064
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 52,084 27 933

The annexad notes 1 to 41 ferm an intagral part of ihesa unconsolidated financial atatements

st oy Qe

= Ny

Chief Exzcutive Director Chief Financial Officer
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Unconsolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

Balance as at June 30, 2016 -
as previously reported

Effect of change in accounting policy (note 8}

Balance as at June 30, 2018 - rostated

Met loss for the year

Ciher comprehansive loss

Total comprehenaive loss for the year

Issue of 18,537 156 bonus shares

Revaluation surplus on property, plant
and equipmeant realised on account of
incremental depreciation

Balance as at 30 June 2017 - restated

Met Inss for the y=ar

Ciher comprehansive income

Total comprehansive income for the yaar

Revaluation surplus on property, plant
and equipment realised on account of
Incremental depreciation

Balance as at 30 June 2018

(Rupees in '000)

1 238 804 1 AZA.076 608,587 - ‘3827 467
= & P 197,078 197,078
1,235,804 1,683,078 588,587 197078 3,824 543
- B i20,802) - i20,802)
- - {9,000 - {8,000)
(29,802) - (29,802)

185,371 {185,371} . o =

= . 10,156 (10.156) =
1621175 1,507,705 678,941 186,922 3,794,743
- - (43,987) - (43,981)
= = (9,412) 674,356 664,944
- - (53,393) 674,356 620,963

= = 9,139 (9,139) =
1,421,175 1,507,708 634,687 852,139 4,415,706

The annexed nates 11041 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financizl statemerts,

\t»a:’&

e
Chisf Executive

Director

D‘*-'"”

Chief Financlal Officer




Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statement

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

1 THE COMPANY AND ITS DOPERATIONS

1.

1.2

1.3

Al Shaheer Corporation Limited (the Company) was incorporated on 30 June 2012 and is guoted on Pakistan Stock
Exchange The Company is principelly engaged In trading of differenl kinds of halal maat including gost. cow,
chicken and fish, bath for export market and Iocal sales through chain of retail siores.

Geographical location and address of all the business units are as under.

Locatian Business Unit
Karachi

Suit # Gi%5, 2rd Floor, Manscor Tower, Block B, Shahrah & Registered office
Roami, Clifton, Farachi

Gadap

Plot Beanng Survey No 348 Dsh Shah Mureed, Tappo, Slaughter Houss
Songal, Gadap Town, Karach|

Raiwand

3.Bkm Manga Road Raiwand, Lahare Poultry Plant

Thess ara tha separate financial statemeants of the Company in which investment in subsidiary 2 stated at cast lass
impairment loss, il any,

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS OCCURRED DURING THE YEAR

-

Ouring the yaar, the Company has incured significant amount of capital expendiure smounting to Rs 740 million for
the launch of & new site and a relatad lang term financing was availed amounting to Rs 820 million,

For a detailed discussion aboul the Company's performancs please refer to the Direclors' report.

2 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

3.1

3.2

Thess unconsclidatad lnancial statemeants have bean prepared in accordanca with the accounting and reporting
sfandards as appiicabla in Pakistan. The accounting and reporing standards applicable in Pakisian eomprise af
International Financial Reporfing Standards (IFRSs), issued by International Accounting Standard Board (IA5E) as
nobfied under Companies Act, 2017 (the "Act"), and provisions of and direclives issued under the Act, Where the
provizions of and directives issuad under 1he Act differ from the IFRSs, the provisions of and directives ssuad under
the Act have been followed

The Act hes also brought certain changes with regard to the preparation and presentation cof these unconsolidated
financial statements. These changes, amongst othars, included change in respect of presantabon and measurement
of surplus on revaluation of propery planl and eguipment as fully explained in note B of these unconsclidated
financial statements, change in nomenclaiure of primary stalements, ete. Furthor, the discloswe requiraments
contained in the fourth schedule of the Act hawve been ravised, resulting in elimination of duplicative disclosure with
the IFRS disclosure requirements and incorporation of additional [ amended disclosures as mentioned in notes 1.2,
2,8 9.3 141,151,201, 31.2. 34.3, 35, 371 and 35.

4 BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

4.1

4.2

These uncenselidaled inancial slalsments have been prepared under the historical cust convention excepl for .

a) canain ilems of property, plant and aquipmeant are statad at revalusd amaount,
b)  short term investments are carried at fair value; and
¢} defined benefit plan is measured al present value,

Thess unconsolidated financial siatemants have been presented in Pakistam rupees. which is the Company's
functicral and presantation eurreney,
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statement

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

5 STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS APPLICABLE TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5.1 New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments
The Company has adooied the following amendments fa the accounting standards which necame effective for the current year:

IAS 7 — Statement of Cash Flows - Disclosure Iniliatve - (Amandment)
IAS 12 income Taxes — Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized logses (Amendments)

The adoption of the above amendments to sccounting atandards did not have any materlal effect on these unconsolidated financial
etatements,

52 Standards, intarpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that ara not yet effective

The foliowing standams, amendments and inlerpretations with espect lo fhe approved accounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan would be effeciive from (he dates mentoned below against the respaclive siandard or inlerprelabon:

Effective date
{annual periods
Standard or Interpratation beginning on or after)
IFRS 2 — Skare Based Payments - Classificalion and Measur=sment of
Share Based Payment Transactions [Amendments) 01 January 2018
IFRS 4 — Insurancs Conlracts. Applying IFRS @ Financial Instrurments with
Insuranca Contracts — (Amendments) 01 January 2018
IFRS & — Financial Instrumenta 01 July 2018
IFRS 8 — Prepayment Feafures with Mzgative Compengation — (Amendmenis) 01 January 2018
IFRS 156 — Revenua from Contracts with Customars 01 July 2018
IFRS 16 — Leases 01 January 2019
IAS 18— Plan Amendment, Curlaiiment or Satllament [Amendments) 0 January 2019
IAS 28 - Long-tarm Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures — (Amendmeanis) 01 January 2019
145 40 = Investment Propesty: Transfers of Investmenl Froperty (Amendmenis) 01 January 2018
IFRIC 22 — Foreign Curvency Transactions and Advance Constderation 01 January 2018
IFRIC 23 — Uncartainty over Income Tax Treatments 1 danuary 2015

The abave siandards and amendments are not expected to heve any matenal impact on the Company's unconsohidaied financial
statements in the penod of indtial appication except for IFRS 15 - 'Revenue from Contracts wath Customers' and IFRS 8 - ‘Financiat
Instruments’ The Company s currentiy evaluating the impact of these standards,

In addition to the above stondards and amepdmarts, iImprovements 1o wanous accounting standards have alsc been issued by the
IAES In Becamber 2016 and December 2017 Such improvernents are generally effective for acoounting pariods beginning an or after
01 January 2078 and 01 January 2019 respactivaly. The Company expects that such improvements fo the standards will not have any
rateral impact on the Company's unconsclidatad financial statements in the period of [ntial application

The IASE has also ssued the revised Conceptuzl Framewo s for Financial Reporting (the Conceptual Framework) in March 2018
which is effeclive for annual perods begimning on or after 1 January 2020 for preparers of financal siatements whe develop
accounbing poficies based on the Corceplual Framework, The revised Conceplual Framework ' not & standard, and none of the
concents overnde thase mn any standard or any requirements in a standard The purpose of the Conceplual Framewark |s to assist
IASE in developing standaras, to heip preparers develop consisient accounting policiss if there 15 no applicable standard in place and
tn assist all parties tn undarstand and inlerpret the standards

Further, fellowing new standards have been Bsued by IASE which are yel to be notified by the SECP for the purpose of applicability in

Pakisian
1458 Effoctive date
(annial periods
Standards beginning on or after)
IFRS 14— Regulatory Deferral Accourniis 01 January 2016
IFES 17— Insurance Contracts 01 January 2021
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statement

FOR THE YEAR EMOED 30 JUNE 2018

£ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of unconsolidaied financial statenments in confermity with approved accounting standards requires the use of certain critical
pecaunting estimates, L also requires managemen! lo exercas s judgment in the process of appiing the Company's scoouning policies
Estimates and jisdgments are confinually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factoss, including expectations of
future avents that are believed to be reasonsble under the circumetances: Revisions to accounting estimaies are recognisad in the pericd
in which the eslimate s mvised and in any fulure periods affected. In the process of apphving the Company’s accounting policies,
management has macle the follosng esfimales and judgments which ane significant to the unconsolidated financial slalements

Property, plant and equigment

The Company reviess tha appropriataness of the rate of depraciation, uasful lifs and residual valug used in the caloutation of depraciation.
Further, where appficatble, anesfimate of the recoverable amount of assets e made for posslble impairment on 2n annual basis. In making
these esfimates. the Company usas the lechnical resowees availabie with the Company Any change in estimetes o futues migit afect the
carying amount of respeciive classes of property, plart and equipment, with a coresponding effect on the depreciabon charge and
Impairmeant.

Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment

The Company reviews the appropraieness of the revaluabon of property, plant and equipment (carned at revaiued amounts| penodically
tar the purpose of enaunng {hat the camyng amount of the same does not differ ma!enniry tram e far wale, In I‘I'lBkIl‘!g this assessmeant,
the Company uses the 1echnical resources availabie with the Company, The revaluation exerciss is camied out by incependsnt professional
valuers using varous significant assumplions. Any change in assessment in fulure might affect the camying amount of respective classes of
fixmc! Ansels, wath cormmsponding effect on sirplus on evaluation of foed assels.

Provision for doubtful debis and other receivables

The Company reviews fis doubiful irads debis and other receivable at sach reporling date lo assess whether provision for impairment is
required. in paricular, judgment by management (s required in the eshmation of the amount and bBming of future cash fows when
defermining e level of prevision reqlires Guch estimates are hased on assumpiions abail 8 number of factors and achual resulis may
differ, resulting in future changes 1o the provisions:

Taxation
In applying the sstimate for income tax payable. the Company tekss into account the: applicabie 1ax laws and the decision by appellate
suthorities on cevtain issues in the past. Insiance where the Company's view differs from the view laken by the income tax depariment at

the assessmen) stage and where the Comorny considers that its view on ilems of matenal nafure is n accordance with law, the amounis
ara shawn as conkngency

Post retiremant employee benofits

Tha-cost of defined benciit plan ig determined using sctuarial valustion. Tha -actuarial valuation involves makng assumplions . about
decount rate and future salary increaces, Due to long-term natwe of the plan, such estimates o subject to signifiant uncertainty.

7 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
71 Properly, plant and eguipment

Operating fixed assets

Fucept for camputer and sccessonises Al teme of propary plart z2nd equipment ase stated &l revalued amount leeas aceumiiated
depracation and impairment. Compeders and aceeasarnes are stated at cast Inss sccumulated depreciation and impament,

Depreciaton is chasged 1o unconsolidaled statemant of predit or loss applying the reducing balance method ai the rates menticned in
note 9 o the unconsclidated financial statements. Deoreciation is charged from the month in which an asset is available for use, whiks
ne depeeciabion is charged in the manlh on whick an assel s dispased off

Maintenance and repairs ace charged to profit or loss as and when incumed. Major renewszls and improvements which increase fhe
essel’s remaining useful economic fife or the performance beyond the curent estimaled levels are cepitalized and the assets so
replaced, Il gy, ang relined.
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statement

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

Gains or losses on disposals of operating assets, I7 eny, are recognized in the unconsolidated staiement of profit or loss. The assels
residual valuss, usell lves and depreciation mefhods are réviewsd and adjusied if appropriate, sl each fmancial year snd

Increases v e camying amounts ansing on revaluaton of cenaln items of propery piart and equipment are recognized, in
uncensolidated statemiant of comprehensive income: and accumulated (n resarves in unceneclidated statemeant of changes n gguity.
To the exdent that the increass reverses & decreass praviously recognized in unsonsclidaisd statzment of profit or loss, the
inergass s Nrst recognized in unconsolidated statement of prafit or foss

Decreases that reverse previous incresses of the same assel are firsi recognized in uncorsolidated statement of comprehensive
irescme bo fhe sxiend of the rEmAIning surplus attibutabls o the assst all other decreases are r_hlrged o uireonsolidated sislsmant of
profit o loss,

The carrying values of property, plant and egulpment are reviewed al pach unconsofidated statermant of financal pesibon dale for
impairment when evenis or changes in croumstances indicate ihat camying values may nol be recoverabls

I such indication axists whare: the camyling values excoeod the estimatod recoverable amounts, tha assels are writlen down o thelr
recoverabls amounts.
Capital work-in-prograss

Capital wark-n-progress is siated ai cost less impairment and consists of expenditure incurred and advances made in respect of
cperating fixed assata and intangible aassts in the course of their acquisition, erecton, construction and installation The sssets ane
transfermed to relevant category of operating fixed assets or intang ble assets when they are available for use,

7.2  intangible asset
These are stated at cost less accumukatas amortisation and impaiment. Amortisation is charged on reducing talance metnod over
the usedul lives of fha sscets al the rates cpacified In nota 10 of thesa unconsolidatad financial stalements, Amortisation & charged
fromm the mondh the aseet is availabie Tor vse uplo the monih of derecognition. &mestication methodg, uealul [veg and meiduz| valugs
e reviewsd ab gach reporling dale and adjusied, if appropriate

7.3  Investments
Irvestment In subsidiary
These are stated al cost Provision is mace for permanent impaiment in the value of investment. if amy.
At fair value through profit or loss

An invesiment |s classified at fair value through profit or boss:if 1 s hebd for trading or le designated as such ugon inltal recognition.
Thase are initially measured al cosl being far value of comsideration given, All bransacton cosls are mecognised directly in
unocnsolidated statement of profit or loss. At subsequent dates, these investments are messured at fair valse, determined an the
basia of prevailing market pices, with any resuiting gain or loas secogrised directly inthe unconaoldated statement of prefit or loss

74  Fuel and lubricants
These are stated &t oost
7.5 Stockdn-trade
These are valued a8 lower of cost and el realizable valse. The cost s determined on weighled average basis and s compuled by

using the averaga cost far the tast month of the reporfing pefiod The cost of stock comprises’ of cost of purchase, cost of conversion
ang other cost incumed In bringing the atock 1o thair present location snd condition

7.6 Trade debts and other recelvables
These are camied af original invoice amounts less an estimale made for deubtlul irade debis and other receivables based on review
of outstanding amcunts. An estimate provision for doubthul debt s made when collection of the full amount B no longer probable
Balances considered bad and imecoverable arm will=n off. as and when denthed.

7.7 Leoans and advances
Thesse are stated at cost

7.8 Cash and cash equivalents

These are stated af eost, Far fhe purpase of unconsclidaled stalerment of cash Aows, cash and cash equivalenis comgarss of cash in
hand and bank balancas net off book overdrafts
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statement

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

7.8 Impairment
Financial assets
The Campany assesses at sach reporling date whether there s any abjective sudence that a financial assst or a group of financial
aszels |8 impaired, A inarcial assel or a group of inancial agseiz is desmed to be impared i, and only if,. there is objective evidence
af impairment as a resulf of one or more evenis that hes occumed after the inifial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss evert’) and
that Ioss avent has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial asssts that can be
reliably satimated. Any imaairment loss on inancial assets is recagnised in unconsolidated siemant of profit or loss
Non-financial assets
The camying velues of assets are reviewsa for Impalment when avents or changes in circumsatanoes: indicate that the carmying value

may nat be racoverabla, [T any such indication exista and whare the camying values excesd the patimatsd rmooverabie amount, the
assels o ralated cash-generating units are written down to their recoverable amount.

7.10 Trade and ather payables

Lianilities far trade and ofher payables are carded at cost which is the fair value of the consideration ta be paid in the future for the
goods and sanices received, whether o not billed 10 the Company,

711 Staff retirement benefits
The Company cperaies an un-approved and unfunded defined gratuity scheme for ail permanant employees who have completed the

mirrmum qualifying year of servios for entitiemeant of gratuity. The contributions to the scheme ar made in accordancs with the
independent actuanal valsation. The latest actuarial valuation was carred out as of 30 June 2018 using Prajscled Unit Credit method

TAZ Taxation
Currant
Frossion for curment tax is based on the taxable incoma in aceardance with income Tax Ordinance, 201
Daferred

Deferred Income tax i provided wsing the lablity mathod for all temporary differences at the reporting date betwean tax bases of
assels 2nd lmbiities and their carmying mounts for financial repoting purposes.

Daferred income tax aseets are recognisad for all decuctible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credils. If any, (o the
extent thal it is probable that taxzable prafits will be available against which such lemporary diferences and tax losses can be utilized.

Deferred incorme tax assels and labiliies are meassued at the Lax rabe thal e expected to apoly to the year when the assel s realized
ar the liabilily is selliled, based on tax rates thal have been enacted or substantively enacted ai the reporling date.

7.13 ljarah contracts

Leases under Shariah compliant farsh coniracts, imespaciive of whether a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership
are retained by the lessor, are classified as (arah. Rentals undaf theze arasgements are changed to unaonzahidatad statement of
profit ar loss on straight line basis over the leasa tenm

7.14 FProvisions

Provisions ‘are. recognized when the Company has a prasent l2gal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and il is
prabable that an cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to setile the obligation and a reliable estimate of
the amount ean be made Provisions are reviewed at esch reporing date and adjusied to refiest the cumant best eafimaie

T.15 Fereign currency transiations

Foredgn currency fransachons are translated into Pak Rupees {functonal cumency) using the exchange rat=s rufing at the date of the
fransaction. Monetary assets and Babilites in foreign currencies are refranslated inte Pak Rupess using the exchange rate at the
reparting date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the setflement of such transactions and from the re-trarslations at
year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabil ties denominaied n foreign currengies are taken to unconsolidated statament
af profit or loas.
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statement

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

7.16 Financial instruments

Finantial assels and financial habilities are recognised at the fime when the Company becomes a party to the cortractual provisions
of the instrument. Financial assels are derscogmised at [he time when the Company loses conbrol of the conlractual nghts that
comprise the financial assels, Financial lzbilities are derecognised af the time when (hey ars extinguished that is, when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancailed, or expired. Any gains or losses on deracognition of financial assats and finarcial
liabilities are taken to unconsolidated statement of profil or lpss.

7.47 Offsetting of financial assets and financial llabilities

A financial asset and a financial llablity Is only offsat and the nat amaunt ks reponad n the unconsalidated statement of financial
position If the Company nas legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amourt and intends ether to settle on a net basks or o
realize the assel and settle the habilly simultanepcusly. Income and expenses ansing from such assets and liabilites are-also offset
accordingly

7.18 Rovenue recognition

Sales are recognized when significan nsks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer which gererally
coincides with dispateh of goods fo customers.

7.19 Borrowing costs

Bowrowing and other related costs directly attribulable to the acguisifion, consiruction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assels thal necessarily lake a subslanbial period of lme lo gel ready for their inlended use, are added 1o the cosl of thees assels, until
such time as the asseis are substanbially ready for their intended use, All other bomowing costs are recognised as an expense in the
pariod in which they are Incumed.

7.20 Dividend and appropriation of resarves

Dividends and appropriation of reserves are recognised to the unconsclidsted financial staterment in the pencd: in which these sre
approved. However, if thess are apgroved after the reporting period but before the financial stzlements are aulhorised for issue, thay
are disclosed in the notes to e unconsolidated financial statemants.

8 CHAMNGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

The speciiic provision [ section In the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 relating to the revaluation surplus on properly, plant and
aquipment has nct been cared forward in the Cermpanies Act, 2017, Praviously, seclion 235 of The repealed Comgpanies Crdinance, 1884
spocifiad the acceunting reatmant and presentation of the sumpius on revaluation of property, plant and equipmant which was not in
aceordance with the requiremenits of IFRS. Accordingly, in accordance with the requirements of International Agcouniing Standard (lAS) 18
Property, Plant and Equipment. revaluation surplus on property, plant snd equipment would now be presented under equity,

Fallowing the application of 1AS 16, the Company's policy for revaluation surpius on property, plant and squipment stands amended as
follows:

- Increases in the carying amoumis arising on revalustion of property, plant and equipment, are recognized in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in reserves in shareholders’ equity. To the exient thal the increase reverses a decrease previousiy
recognized In uncansclidated statement of profit or loss, the Increase s firs! recagnized In unconsoldated statamant of profit or loss
Decreases that reverse previous increases of the same asset are first recagnized in other comprehensive Income ta the axtent of the
remaining surplus aftribitable to the asset all other decreases are charged o unoonsolidated statement of prodfit or loss

The change in aceounting policy has been accounted for retros pectively in accordance with the requirements of 1AS B 'Accounting Policies
Changes in Accounting Eslimates and Erors’ and comparative fgures have been restaled
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statement

FOR THE YEAR EMDED 20 JUNE 2018

The effect of change in accounting policy is summarized bolow,
Effect on unconsclidated

statement of financial pasition

Reyaluabion surphus on
preperty, plant & eauipment 186,922 = {186,922) 197,078 = {187,078)

Share caplial and reserves - 186,822 186,922 - 167,078 187,078

Effect on unconsolidated

statement of changes in

equity

Changea In'equity - 188,922 186,922 - 187,078 187,078

e (Rupoos in'000) —

Effect on unconsolidated statoment of comprehens ve Income
Reualation surplus on property, plan and eguipment - 10,156 10,156

There was no cash flow impact as a result of the retrospeclive application of changs in agcounting policy.

9 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT Mote —— [Rupoos in 000} ——
Operating fixed szssats 91 1,822,109 1,165 775
Capltal work-in-progress a5 2,909,381 2,202 414

ATSA 3316
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statement

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

8. Operating lixed assets

Freefioid land ‘283,227 - . 34513 . 587,840
Lesehoid land 170,418 . - 212,083 E 443,498
Bustings on feahoid land 185,471 20,058 = 20,000 . 205,526
Prani-and machingry 241,168 6,800 (8,215} {12.733) - 21118
Fumiture and fisrs 486,335 15,511 - 13.927) [E7E) 197,043
Winter vehicles “ama208 ¢ 18,372 - - (12,2485 140,420
Offies exupment 186,447 4,623 {18,215 13.798) (218) 168,641
Tools and shulprient 25,014 1,580 - - E 26,894
Compeders and atcesagnes 1,478 781 26,833 2 ikal] 48,722
2018 1414, 148 BT822 - 586 241 (13.511) _2054700

Fresshald land 25T - - . - 83227
Leasahold land 170,418 - : - = 1TRATE
Bulldings on freehold ksnd 156 858 5513 = o - 165471
gt and mashinzry 220162 12004 . * . 241166
Fumiture and fiehurs- 155, 389 20,074 - = = 185,335
Woics vehicles 127448 8263 - . (z1t8 134,203
Offica equpomant 174,525 11507 - - 0 105447
Tools and equipmen 2713 1,601 . - - 25314
Campuers and acoessones 18,720 2,008 . - {109} 21479

017 27 R 27 2 - 7 M— TR

* Inchace assets costing R 52 T34 million (2077 Ra.11, 275 milion) indes Diminisiing Mashaiaks Arangements

G- 20%,

T

15

5%




Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statement

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

Fraehckd land = = = - = E 597 840

Leasehold Eand . : g - : 5 A42499
Buildings on festiold land 44 864 . iz2mE - (54,450) 2482 204,034
Plant and machinery 44,875 - 10,285 - . s4.970 172,145
FLeniture and fidhure 38,245 3 18,185 (188) : 64224 142818
Motor vehices 712 - 14,959 14,797} (32,877 21887 118423
Dffice equipment 83808 (10,862) 17,374 i85} . 70,233 0,408
Tools and equlpment 8272 . 1,898 - . BIET 18627
L ey 588 10,862 3614 187} - 20,408 26 314

e 248373 : 76,680 (6:135) (67.327] Z3a881 LEZLI0E

Fragahetd land i £ Z = E - 283 FAT
Laasehold tand 5 & - - - - 170 416
Eiilldmgs on treshoid fang ;ﬂgﬂ- ; TW - = A4 5G4 m,wf
Phant and machinery TN L 110,565 - - 44075 184 491
Flaniture and fixhire 24428 . 13,807 = = 38 245 148,080
Mutar vilicles 30475 - 15393 {1.158) - 44712 il
Office equipment 42382 & 21463 () = B3506 122 641
Tools and equipment 4232 - 2040 - - BETR 18,042
Computers and sccessatias 4,067 5 1,883 i51) = 5998 15480

o 170047 L JBEE2 {1255 268373 1168778
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statement

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

Frashoid land - o . . . - BET 840
Leasshald land 5 = - . - - 442,495
Buiidings on faeticld land dqpRa - 12,278 - {54,450} 2482 203,034,
Plant and machinzry 44,875 - 10,285 - = 84,970 172,145
Furnitiire and fisdirs 18248 . 18,165 (188) . 54,224 142,819
Wctar vahicles 4TIz - 14,959 14787 132877 21,997 118,423
Office aqupment #3808 (10867 17,374 (88) . 70,233 88,408
Tosls and equipment 272 1,998 & . BIET 857
Ciomputsrs an nscsasaries 5,809 10,862 3614 (a7 . 20,408 28,314

w13 21833 TEER0 (536l (OLaAD._ d3as9l ___1EEI0E

Frasenold land = - : : < - ZE3ZET

L=asehold land = : g - - - 170,416
Buikings on freehaid land 31826 2 13,038 - - 44,684 120,807
Flard and machinery BT - 10,958 - - 44 875 | 5,451
Furriture and finture 24 438 = 13,807 - - 38295 148,050
Muter welicies 475 - 15,303 (1.166) - 24,712 14,50
Office equipiment 42,207 - 21483 (4% E B3,806 122641
Tedlk and equipmsnt 4232 - 2040 - - 6272 19,042
Computars and accessares 4 067 = 1983 (51) * 5859 15,480

T 170847 E 78682 11,2564 248375 1185778




Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statement

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 20 JUNE 2018

§141 The Compary has camied out @ revaluation esaerice through an ndepandent valier namaly Sadmddin Assodisdes [Private) Limited on 30 Jume 2018 Tha revaluation has
resullag insurplug of Rs. 673 5 millicn

4.2 The Compary camies lls beehokl lend feasaheold band, wuibdings: fumilvie and Matures, office equipmenl, moto wehicles and toek. and- squipie, oo evalued smount The
IMESL FRVILINGN WAE CANTUCIEN on 30 Juna 2018, Had Mans TN 10 revaluzmon, tre SOk vakie of Toahsid Bnd woukd nawe baan S 280,717 (3077 Re. 481,137) mikian,
l=azehald land R 17042 2017: R, 170 42F mian, bullding Ra. B0.504 (2017 Re, T8 862} milion, tiant and mashinery Ra, 127 44 (2077 R, 127, 496) milkan, tumdure and
fidres s 1824151 (2077; As 144 784) milkon, offics equigment Ra, 70,957 (2007 Rs. BI.063) milkon, tooks and equipments Rs. 11,813 midion (2017 Rs 11381 mdion)
ard motar vehick s Ra 8 548 (2017 Rs 86 527] wikon,

9.4.3 Foresd Sala v oo of 30 Jne 2018 af rooheid ard ®aca nald iand i€ RE: 458 38 milan and RE. 331 87 millan, respactivaly.

9.2 Deprecaion for e year has bacn ailocetad aa Folows Note -— [Rupoee (A 000} —
Cagl ol calge 30 24 Th 2EEOg
Adminsbaliveand dialobuolion cosis n 54 400 A5 i
TE BE0 TE AT

8.3 Paricalars of Immosatle Assets in the name of the. Company ana a5 Toliows:

Location JLrpe— Total fees
Karachi St 355 Fed Floor, Mensior Tower, Block-B, Chlkon. 5,000 5q Fs
Fama Survay Mo 4B, Teh Shan Muresd Topu Songle. 18,22 Actes
Karash Banglow # [-143 KDA Schesme Mo, 5 Cliftan, 98133 8o Yands
Karazn| Pled Mo GA-55, 55.A, ET-AD Karang| Craek Industizl Park, 678084 Bo. Yars
Ranatpin Pl Mo d, Road Ko M-d RO Rawsi Indusirial Estals. 3400 Bq artie
Lakare Fahmafa Hypeaa. 3.5KENs Mango Rowand Foad T4 Aces

8.4 The deizic of aporasmg Food asesis disposog off turing the year ars as folows:

Motar vehicles
Pwer Sekan Mpy 4T 208 495 400 3% Tender Abaul Samaz
Freaon Trock (BRS-20mM 1218 F 1,008 a5y EY  Tandar Mihammad Moman
Fofet Truck [BRS.T 10} 1,238 26_3 LH-] ara 2 Terubal Bl ll_lrh:n
FAWY PIOWER TRUCK LIY-a844) 240 530 1140 s {404y Tender Muihammad Maman
Tovols Vite (AMA-94) =k 73 358 700 30z heagotition Muhammsd Salman
Toweta WVIGO (KL-1248) 4339 1273 3088 3,088 - Mepstiation Khan Kagh# khan
Teyoks Vite (ALIP-127) GAn 530 450 4B 52 AR e company - Hamed Chishil
palicy Eriployie
1324 FErD T AT 7384 [R50
Bulkiing
Conetruction & Renosations Contract
{Bin Haarim JAchar) ETE 188 BED 1r ) . EETEnEtCn Bin Haanim Ownar
Cifise Eqummment
Agnrenetes smount of Gusels
disnased having hook vaue :
Wsg than Re 500000 ita as 135 3 ma Marimi Wario s
Eomputirs
Agpregaie amounl of gasets
dispaemd ol having book vale :
lnss than R, 500 000 172 6T 104 5 2% Vorimus arious
2018 138 [RITH 3Te 8072 (384)
217 7,408 LS 1209 1,874 4p%
*Mens of the direciors or the Company has-any relationship with the purchaser.
9.5  Capital workdn-prograss i [Aupags in DO -
Land 58430 21
vl warks a0303 A A0
Plart s machineny 1,547.285 1,356,560
Acrance in supalers and oontracton 1,240 96T 53,19
Irtanglbis masel under deveslopment 21, TEG 1B BAS

m 2,51]2.4 &
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statement

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30-JUNE 2018

8.6 The movernand in capital work-in progreas is a2 follows

Rupeas |n 000
Cpenng bamnce 44117 -7, e 1265w TEINS0 1HEIE 2202418
Addition duning the year 15015 34,284 188,845 Ll L] TAD LSS
Transfars Suring tha year . 112 = i 133487
Closing balance 52,130 : 1,847,228 d 21,786 2803

* Include borawing cast amounting R 104 75 milion (7077 1 I8 million | capstalised durng the yearusing capraisslion rabs of 7 14%-10 01% GHT T 30% - 8 13%),

10 INTANGIBLE ASSET

Computer softwire 2056
2014 : 10,226 08 T
07 A0aT 218 10,226
Computer soffwane 538
a0t 5383 1858 ETER EEIE
T 4197 1188 5365 483
I ez
e | RUpESS N 000 | ——meeeme
" LONG-TERM INVESTMENT
i ¥ Company, ung
Al-Bhahser Farms [Prvate) Limted
5670 000 ordinpiy shares of Ra. 10 sich 55,700 55,700
114 lrvgstment i 2 sibeidizey has been Mace e acopckanee witl B reg it of e Acl,
12  CEFERRED TAX ASSET
Caotorred tox assets on deduetibln Iﬂmmdfﬂu‘lﬂur
Unised tax losses [ credts 211,757 201,642
Frovisions 11,477 __saore
233,234 210,721
Cafarred tax l@bilities on taxable temporary dferences:
Acvuleaned tax deprocition I rfiTﬂl" i
Revalistion Surpiis on propily plant and souipment 114,358} (16 865)
130.419) (33,188
RE-E 171500




Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statement

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

STOCK-IN-TRADE

28 207
sescseeees (RUpEES in '000)
Livestock 63,403 a0, 740
Raw and packaging materials 20,577 11,127
Finlehed goods 23,979 24 751
107,959 116,618
TRADE DEBTS - Unsacured
Considered good
COverseas 14.1 974,016 928 281
Local 237,954 262 4M
1,211,970 1,181,152
Considered doubtiul 11,207 3,710
Pravision far doubtful debts 143 (11,907) 13, 710)
14.2 1,211,970 1,181,152
14.1 Particulars of export sales in respect of cutstanding debts: . Contrast = Totad
emmmemenas [RUpees in "000) -eemeeee
Asia
2018 974,016 974,016
Asia
2017 ﬁ 261 928 261

There are no defaulting parties as of 30 June 2018

14.2 As of the unconsalidated statement of financial position date, the ageing analysis of unimpaired trade debts is as
faltows:

aon In '000)
2018 407,188 447,061 266,548 91,173 - 1,211,970
2017 635,627 408 181 122,575 11,338 13,431 1,181,152
S 2018 2017
14.3 Movement of provision for doubtful debts: Note =eemeeeae (RUpees in "000) ——-—---
Opening balance 3,710 -
Charge for the year 8,197 3,710
Closing balance 11,907 3,710
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statement

FOR THE YEAR EMDED 20 JUNE 2018

15  LOANS AND ADVANCES
Loans - considerad good - secured

.._._...:...._._ {Rupees in 'ﬂm" ......_......

Exgculives 18 20,827 19,848
Emplayess 5,824 9876
27,651 26 524
Advances

Supgliers 524,354 |l 362,280
Service providers and other vandors 31,484 98 864
Employess 2,861 || 2050
558,699 463,154

586,350 493,018

151 This inciudes loan extended to an executive amounting to 8318 6 millien (2017: 193 milion) which 15 in the nature of
house lnan The Ioan is secured apgainst his personal property. Thig loan |s recoverable (n 200 monthly Instaliments and
is interest free.

16 TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM FREPAYMENTS

Trade deposits 17,148 17,532
Prepayments

- takaful 2,820 || 1,488

- others 1,387 1.793

4,217 3282

21,365 20,814

17  BHORT-TERM INVESTMENT

Investment at fair vale through profit or loss 590 568

18  OTHER RECEIVABLES

Sales lax receivablies 226,186 193,046
Rensivabie from shareholders 181 1,486 2653
Due from a subsidiary - 21,869
Others 18.2 5,229 15,437

233,810 234,045

18.1 Represants amount receivable from sharehalders on account of tax on bonus shares issued during the year 20175,

16.2 Thia inclutes a sum of Rs 39587 million due from the subsidiary on-aceount of interast on advanoe against shares
which has been st fied aflac (he yesr end.

18  CASH AND BANK BALANCES Note e (RUPEES i1 'DO0) —senee

Cash in hand 13,413 24873
With banks:

Saving accounts 181 3,048 " 1054

Current accourts 36,023 26,9558

1928183 39,077 28,953

Book overdraft (396) (25,8593)

52,084 27.833
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statement

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

20

21

22

1

1

1

i

a1 These camy profit at the rates ranging between 1.7% to 3.7% (2017 1.7% to 3.7% ) per annum.

9.2 Included herein are balances amounting to R3. 1998 million (2017 Ra. 21 52) millisn which arz held in accaunts
mairtained vnder islamic banking

9.3 Includes Rs.1.737 milllon (2017 Rs. 3.201 million) held with Meazan Bank Limited (a related parfy}

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

- 2018 2017

Eerae— |l = e (RUPEES i 000) —--moe
Number of sharos In thousands  Ordinary shares of Ra. 10 each
29 841 20047  Issued for cash 299,407 288,407
28,000 28,000  Iesued for conscerafion
other than cash 260,000 260,000
86 177 BEATT Issued as bonus shares 861,768 BE1, 768
142,118 142,118 1,421,175 1421175

204 As al June 30, 2018, instiutions and others held 28574 487 and 112,542,541 shares, respeclively (June 30, 2017,
36,393,183 and 105,723,835). veling rights. board selection, right of first refusal and block voting are in proportion 1o their

shareholding.
SURPLUS OM REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND MNote ———--- (Rupees in 000} —--—
EQUIPMENT
Opening balance 203,787 215845
Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment during the year 673,668 -
Transfer io unappropriated profit in respect of meremental deprecaion during the year (10,857} (12,158}
BEG,4328 203,787
Related deferred tax liability
Opening balance (16,885} {18,867}
Liability reversed during the year 788 .
Incremental depreciation charged during the year 1,186 1,2e3
Adjustmeant due 1o change in tax rate 562 609
(14,358} (16,865}
8551 38 186.92&
LONG-TERM FINANCING - Secured
Diminishing musharaka
Askar Bank Limited 229 100,000 2,500
Diubal Izlamiz Bank Pakistan Limited 222 764,583 400,000
Habib Matrogoiitan Bank Limited 223 14,180 16,541
Al Baraka Bank 224 8,487 14,788
887,260 440,830
Less! current maturity shown under current liabiities {179,183} {40,416}
708,077 400,414
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statement

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

221 Rapresents diminishing musharaka facility in regpect of purchase of various fixad assels for a period of 5 years including 1
year grace period | |t carrles proft &t the rate of 3 month KIBOR + 2% per annum The facility s secured by exclusive charge
of RBs. 134 million over plant and machinery and Rs. 100 million ranking charge over fixed assels of the Company. The
rmusharaka units are to be purchased commencing from July 2018 on the basis of percentages set aul in the musharaka
agreemant,

222 This includes the following lacilities:

a) Diminishing musharaka faglily amounting to Rs, 38333 million in respect of procurement and installation of chicken
processing plant for 2 pedod of 4 years including 1 year grace period. Il carries profit at the rate of 3 months KIBOR + 1.5%
per annum. The facility is seoured by equitable martgage charge over the Company's bullding.

o) Diminishing musharaka facility amounting to Rs. 31,25 million o retire the usance LC for the procuremen of generator for a
period of 2 years . It carries profit at the rate of 3 months KIBOR + 2% per annum. The facility Is secured by exclusive charge
oves the [eased asseis | generator

£} [Dimintshing musharaka facility ameunting 1o Rs. 350 millisn in respect of procuremant and instaillation of chicken processing
plant for a period of 4.5 years including 1.5 years grace period. |t carnas profit at the rate of & manths KIEOR + 2% per annum.
The facility is secured by sxclusive charge over land & building and plant & machinery of the Company’s chicken plant located
In Lahora

223 Represents diminshing musharaka facilty in respact of purchase of mater vehicles far a period of 3 years. It carmies profit at
the rate of 6 months KIBOR + 2% per annum. The facllity is securad by registration of vehicles in the mrame of 2 bank and 10%
Company's share for diminishing musharaka

224 Represents diminiahing musharaka facility in respect of purchase of motar vehicles for a periad of 3 years |t carnes profit at
the rate of 6 months KIBOR + 1.8 % per annum. The facility is securad by registration of vehicles in the name of a bank.

i I

23 DEFERRED LIABILITIES Note
Defined benafit plan - gratuity 231 58,639 43 526
231 Amount recognised in unconsolidated statement of financial position
O pening balancs 43,626 28207
Charge for the year 18,112 15,510
Recegnised in other comprehengive incoms 10,871 9387
Benefits paid {13,870) (& 688)
Closing balance 59,639 43 526

23.2 Expense recognised In unconsolidated etatement of profit or loss

Cument service cost 16,642 14102
Net intarast cost 2,470 1408
18,112 15,510

23.3 Principal actuarial assumptions

The following are the significant actugnal assumptions used in the actuanal valuation:

Expecled rale of increass in salary 8.50% 6.75%
Valuation diséaunt rate B.50% 6.75%
Aworage expectad ramaining working life of employees 70% of EFU 61- 70% of EFU 61-
66 mortality 66 mortality
table table
Expacted wilhdrawal rale Age Dependent Age Dependent
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statement

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

23.4 Sensitivity analysis

Present value of defined benefit cbligations

Present value of defined benefit obligations

24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors:
Trade
Man-trade

Aceruad habiditias

Advanse from customers
Withholding tax payable

Warkers' Profits Participation Fund
Workers' Welfare Fund

Retention monsy

Other payabies

241 Workers' Profita Participation Fund

Opening balance
Interest on WRRF
Closing balance

26 SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS - secured

Murabana - islamic banking
Summit Bank Limited
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited
Duba: =lamic Bank Pakistan Limited
Askar| Bank Limited
Faysal Bank Limited

Cirminishing Musharaka - Islamic banking
Running Musharaka - Summil Bank Limited

— in "000)

{1,258) 1,347 1,334 {1,267
8 2017
Nate wemmrmes (RUpEES N '000) —memmeae
57,808 47,281
395 374 311,294
453,287 358,778
35,628 7,863
= o085
20,454 38,524
241 18,370 17 547
12,781 12,751
2,821 2521
21,026 11,763
665,037 450,739
. 28 2017
Note e (RUPEES i1 '000) —-emmme
17,547 15.896
1,823 1.651
18,370 17,547
251 350,000 420.000
252 280,100 275116
253 499,975 199 802
254 400,000 50,000
55 400,000 100,000
2586 23,333 .
257 59,966 ‘
1,123,374 1,044,918
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251 It camies profit at the rate of 6 manths KIBOR + 1% o 3% per annum for local faciiity. Rs.145.02 million is secured by specific
charge over plant and machinery and Hs. 50 million is secured by pan passu charge over recenvables. The remaining faciiity is
secured by first morlgage charge over Gadap Land amouting to Rs. 367 milllon and Rs. 240 millen ranking charge over
stocks and receivables of the Coampany.

25.2 It caries profit at the rate of relevant LIBOR [ KIBOR + 1% per annum The facilty is spcured by first par passu charge over
receivables for Re.234 milion and first exclusive charge over speciic plant and machinery of the Company for Rs. 87 milkion
and Rs.50 million respectively, duly insured in bank's favor,

25.3 This includes local as well as forelgn currency facility carrying profit at the rate of KIBOR + 2% and LIBOR + 2% per annum
respectively. The faciity is secured by the first regstened pari passu hypathecabon charge ouver receivables including trade
recaivables for Rs. 157 million and the remaining facilitiy & secured against exclusive charge over specific plant and machinery
of Rs. 43 million, R 84 million and property of Ra. 50 million.

26.4 It cariies profit at the rate of KIBOR + 1% per annum. The facility is secured against 15t parl passu hypothecation charge of
R&.134 million over recedvables of the Company.

2685 It caries profit at the rate of KIBOR + 1% per annum. The facility is sacured against 15t parl passu hypothecation charge of
Rz.34 million over receivables of the Company and Bs.115 million exclusive charge ever plant and machinery of the Compary.

256 I caries profit at the rate of 6 months KIBOR + 15 per annum for the facility. The facility is secured by sxclusive charge over
plant and machinery of the company of Rs.184.237 millon.

26.7 It camias profit at the rate of 6 montha KIBOR + 1% to 3% per annum for the facllity. The facllity is secured by exclusive
charge over plant and machinery of the Company amounting 1o Hs. 154 237 millian

26 ACCRUED MARK-UP — (Rupees in '000) ———

Accrued mark-up om;

- Long-term financing 5,268 1407
- Shorl-lerm borrowings 186,275 10,351
21,543 11,758

27 DUE TOQ A RELATED PARTY

Includes interest free loan cbigined from Chief Exscutive of the Company. The loan is unsecured and is repayablz on demand.

LI —

28 COMMITMENTS (Rupees in "000) --—o-
- Qutstanding letter of credits . §1.372
- Cubstanding letter of guarantzes 14,006 11,549
- Gapital commitments 215,698 163,077
- Post dated cheques 16,530 33 407

- The Company has entered inte ljarah agreemants with a bank in respect of rental of vehicles for a period of 3 years. Future
minimal rentals payable under jarsh agreemants as at year end are as follows:

MNoate

(Rupess in '000)

Within cre year - 45
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statement

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

29 TURMNOVER - net
Sales
Trade discournt

30 COST OF SALES

Live stack cansumed

Qpening stock

Purchases

Recoyery against livestock residuals - net
Clozing stock

Conversion cost

Salaries, wages and other benefits
Elactricity, diese! and related oxpensos
Repairs and maintenance

Depreciation

Clearing and lerwarding

Packing matenal

Marination

Cthers

Cost of goods available for sale
Finished goods and fuels and lubricants

Opening stock
Closing stock

30.1 Includes Rs. 2.85 million (2017: Rs. 2.21 million) in respest of siaff retirement benafits.

a8z

o oam
—eemeee (RUpEES i1 "000) e
5,495,731 6,495,484
{122,583) (98.842)
5373 148 6,396 647
80,740 118,897
4,065,193 4.730,751
{150,792} (174,969)
(63,403 (B0,740)
3,931,743 4,602,739
60,040 549,002
31,710 27.898
12,049 17857
24,752 23,896
28,087 40.131
43,2, 55,585
11,989 69,360
16,818 15,242
228,706 253,961
4,160,449 4,856,700
36,320 48,560
(44,842) (36,320}
{8,522) 13,240
4,151,927 4 865 540

Annual Report 2077-18 m



Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statement

FOR THE YEAR EMDED 30 JUNE 2018

L e 2097
Nate =ss—ea—- (Rupees in '000) ---s-—--
31 ADMIMISTRATIVE AND DISTRIBUTION COSTS

Salaries, wages and cther benefits 313 328,306 3546822
Electricity, diesel and related expensas 45,473 46,661
Repair and maintenance 13,809 5820
Fuel and vahicle maimenance 15,636 24 690
Travelling and conveyance 12,977 18,379
Telephone and eommunication 11,927 15,092
Cango 464,546 G607 934
Marketing and adverlissment 69,617 29,926
Rent, rates and taxes 168,888 162,766
Food 10,630 12,580
Depreciation a2z 51,928 49,786
Amortization 0 1,689 1,186
Legal and professional 10,501 10478
Software Maintenance & Developmeant Cost 8,112 6,569
Donation N2 17,408 16,518
Office supplies T.579 14,048
Faztage and courier 639 980
Takaful 11,236 13,353
Staff welfare 2,282 15,068
Provision for bad dobls 8,197 3o
Security 1,377 1,107
Training 4,922 963
Cieaning T,525 7983
Commission on cradit care facilities B 84T 8272
Auditors' remuneration 313 2,805 2400
ljarzh rentals 39 1337
Less on disposal of praperty, plant and equipment 304 .

Others 23,163 13,058

1,307,432 1472 257

M1 Include Rs. 1616 million (2017 Rs. 13.3 million) in respect of staff retiremant benefits

31.2 Represents donation made to Indus Hospital, Jamia Darul "Uleom Karachi, Karachi Viocational Training Cenire and

Masjid Jamiat-ul-lslamia. Norne of the directors and their spouses had any interest in these donations.

(Rupees in "000) -—=-—--
31.2 Auditors’ remuneration
Audit fea 1,575 1,400
Half yearly review 500 S00
Cerifications and other services 530 300
Dut af pocket expenses 200 200
2.805 2400




Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statement

FOR THE YEAR EMDED 30 JUNE 2018

32 OTHER INCOME —— m
Rupess in '000) ewee-x
Inceme from financial assets
Gain on forward contracts - 1,106
Profit on saving accounts 149 47
Gain on remeasurement of short-tarm investments 24 Firds
Gain on disposal of short-term investments - 2835
173 4 865
Income from non - financial assets
Exchanges gain - net 97,059 -
[Iabllities no longer payable written back 3,230 7435
Gain on disposal of property. plant and eguipment - 485
Others 20,176 5727
120,465 13 827
120,638 18 492
3% FINANCE COSTS
Prafit on financing 18,030 53,075
Bank charges 16,17 17.288
Exchange loss - 1,230
interest an WPPF 1,823 1,651
Others 20,462 7,860
56,032 81,204
34 TAXATION
Current 35,506 £1627
Prier (126) 8,006
35,380 60,633
Defarred {13,004) (48 .08€)
22,376 12,635
34.1 As the charge for current year taxation is based on Final Tax Regime in case of export sales and minimum tax in case of

34.2

local sales, therefore, tax reconciliation is not presented.

The return of Income for the tax year 2017 has been filed which is deemed to be an assessment order in view of the
provisions of Section 120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001,

Management's assessment of Tax Provision

Tha Campany computes tax based on the generally accopted interpretations of the tax laws to ensure that the sufficient
provision for the purpese of taxation is availzble which can be analvzed as follows.

= o

cammaansmmmmasnn u rs '} smamamnnanamananan

2017 ;!lgé 51,501 126
2016 2,08 54,091 {9,006}

2015 33,345 23,345 -

Annual Regort 2017-18
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Notes to the Unconsalidated Financial Statement

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

s=essecae (RUpees in '000)

35 LOSS PER SHARE - basic

Net loss for the year [43,981) (20,802)
Weghted average ordinary shares

aof R, 10/- gach - (Number in '000) 142,117 142,117
Loss per share (Rupees) — basic (0.31) {0.15)

36 REMUMNERATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

Managerial )

el 28,470 28,575 21,260 20,295 86,676 105,027

S - - - - - 4,898

Gm = - - = 2.355 3’, ?40

Board meeting !

foos - = 2,280 3,090 - x
28,470 28,575 23,510 23.385 £9,062 113,685

MNumber of persons 1 1 10 B 22 26

37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Related paries of the Company comprise major sharefiolders. a subsidiary, directors, companies under common directorship,

kay management personnel and staff provident fund, Details of ransactions with related parties during the year, other than
those which have been disclosed elsewhere in these unconsolidated financial statements are as follows:

| T R 11—
Subsidiary Company

Received from / paymenls inade to a subsidiary 21,869 13,953

Interest on advance against shares 3.937 -

Companies under common directorship

Sales 167 72

Profit on bark accounts - 24

m_ammmm
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statement

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

Key management personnel —-—-— (Rupees in "DOO)
Settlement of liabilities by Chief Executive on behalf of the Company 4,925 5,963
Loan received by CEO during the year 250.695 -

Folinwing are the related parties with wham the Campany had entered inta iransactions ar have arrangament | agreement |n
place.

S.no Company Mame Basis of relationship
1 Al Shaheer Farms (Private) Limited Subsidiary Ta.5%
2 Wr. Kamrzn Ahmed Khalill Key Maragement Personnel -
3 14th Streel Pizza Company (Private) Limitedd  Companies undsr common
directorship -
4 Enrich Foods (P} Lid Campanies Under common
directorship -
5 Meezan Bank Limifed Companiss under common
directorship -

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company's aclivities expose it to a variely of financial risks such as market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Company's overall risk manmagement focuses on the unpradictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential
adverse effects on the Company's financial performance. The Company's Board of Directors oversees the management of
thase risks which are summarized below;

3B.1 Market nisk

Market risk is the risk that the fzir value of future cash flows of & financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
markel prices. Market nsk comprises two types of nsk: interast rate risk and currency nisk.

38.11  Interest rate nisk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the financlal instruments will fluctuate
beeause of shanges in market interest rates The Campany's expasure to the risk of changes in market interast
rales relates primarily to the Company's long-term and shori-tarm financing amangement at floating interest
rates to mest its business operations and working capital requirements. The following table demonstrates the
sansitivity to a reasonably possibie change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant:

2018 +100 (20,108)
-100 20,106
2047 +100 (14,857}
-100 14,857
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statement

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

38.1.2 Currency risk

Currency risk Is the risk that the fair value er future cash flows of 2 financial instrument will fluctuate dus to
change in a foreign exchange rates. The Company's expesure to the risk of changes in foreign currancy
exchange rates risk primanly relates to the Company's operating activities |.e. bank accounts and receivables /
pavables in foreign cumencies. The Company manages iis foreign currency risk by effective fund management
and taking forward contracts, The following table demenstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in
the US Dellar exchange rate;

2018 10% 85,495
-10% {88,435)
2017 10% 52 826
-10% (82:826)

AB2 Creditrisk

Crodit risk Is the risk which arises with the possibility that one party to a financlal instrumant will fail to discharge its
obiigatian and cause the other party to incur a financial lass. Concentrations of eredit risk arise when a number of
counterparties are engaged in similar business activities or have similar ecencmic features that would cause their ability
to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, pohtical of other condtions.
Concantrations of cradlt risk Indicate the relative sansiivity of the Company's pardormaneca o dovelopments affecting a
particular industry.

The Company seeks 1o minimize the credit sk exposure through having exposures only to customers considered eredit
warthy ard oblaining securities where applicable. The maximum exposure o credi risk al the reporting dats is.

Carrying value

aesieeeen (Rupees in '000) ——

[rwestment 530 568
Trade dekts 1,211,970 1,191,152
Loans 27,861 20824
Trade deposits 17,148 17.532
Other receivables T.7128 40,999
Bank balances 39,077 25,953

1,304,161 1,309,026

38.2.1 Credit quality of financial assets

The credit guabty of financial assets that are neither past nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external cradit
ratings or to histerical information about countarparty default rates as shown balow:

RN F: - | S
e (RUpees in 000) semm—eem
Trade debis
Customars with no defaulis in the past ane year 407 188 BAS5 62T
Bank balances
Ratings
A+ 18,629 6.736
A1+ 5,115 9,255
A1 16 B1
A1 15318 12,879
A2 e 22
38,077 28.953
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statement

FOR THE YEAR EMDED 20 JUNE 2018

383 Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk reprasents the risk that the Company will encounter difficulties in meeting obligations with the financial liabilites.
The Company's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and fiexibility by maintaining sufficient bank
balances and committed credit lines, The {able below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial lizbiliies al 30
June 2018 based an contractual undissountad paymeant dates and presant market interast rates:

. e-s I ' :

2018
Long-term financing - 38,726 204,645 790,778 1,034 148
Short-term borowings 59,966 439,966 669,017 - 1,168,949
Trade and other payables 2521 246,963 315,553 z 565,037
Actrued mark-ug = 21,543 - 5 21,643
Due to a related party 269,147 - = - 269,147
331,634 747,188 1,189,215 790,778 3,058,825

2017
Long-term financing - 5,124 58815 453,901 517,840
Short-tarm borowings - afg:439 614,607 - 1,069,046
Trade and other payables 2521 173,708 274508 - 450,732
Accrued mark-up - 11,758 - = 11,758
Duc to a related party 13,527 - - - 13,527
16,048 545,030 47,931 453,801 2062910

384  Falr value of financial instruments
Falr value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderdy transaction between

markat participants at the measuremenl date. Investment in a subsidiary are carried at cost. The carrying values of all other
financial assets and liabllities reflacted in the uncansalidated financial statements appreximate thair fair values

3841 Fair value hierarchy
Financial Instrumeants carried at fair value are categorizéd as follows.
Level 1: Quated market price.
Level 2: Valualion technigues (market observable)
Level 3: Valuation techniques (non-market cbservables)

38.4.2 The Company hald the following financial instruments measurad at fair valua:

Financial assets

June 30, 2018

Short-tarm invastmants 520 590 - -
June 30, 2017
Shaort-tarm investmeants 566 566 . E
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

38.5 Capital risk management

The pamary objective of the Company’s capital management |s to maintain healthy capital ratios, strong credit reting and
optimal eapital atrustures in order 1o ansure ample avadanility af finance for is axisting and patantial investments projeets ta
support its business sustainakbilicy and future development and maximize its shareholders value

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustment 1a It In tha light of changes In economic conditions, The
Campany moniters eapital using a debt equity retia, which it net dant divided by total sapital plus Aet debt. Equity comprises of
share capial, reserves and revaluation surplus on property. plant and equipment. The gearing ratio as at 30 Juns 2018 Is as

follows:

. 2008 2017

wemneens (RUpees in "000)

Long-term financing B8B87.260 440,830
Short-term barrawings 1,123,374 1,044 918
Accrued markup 21,543 11,758
Total debt 2032177 1497506
Less' eash and bank balances (52,004) (£7.833)
Met debt 1,980,083 1,468,572
Share capital 1,421,175 1,421,175
Baszerves 2142382 2,186,646
Fovaluation surplus on property, plant and squipment 852 139 186,922
Total equity 4,415,706 3,784,743
Equity and net debt 6,306, 7A9 5,264,318
Gearing ratio
Inciuding revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment 3% 28%
Excluding revaluation surplus on prepeny, plant and aquipment 36% 25%

39. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Total number of omployees as at the regoriing date B75 713

Average number of emgloyees during the year 708 778

Total number of factery employees as al the raperiing date 152 139

Avorage number of factory employess durng the year 148 128
40. GENERAL

401  Flgures have hesn munded off to the nearest rupee

402  Certaln prior year figures have been reclass fied for betier prasantatian. Howseuer, there are na matarial reclassifications 1o

41. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These unconsalidated financial statements were authorised for lssue on 26 September, 2018 by the Board of Diraciors of the
Comgany.

sl - o

e = T—
Chief Executive Direttor Chief Finandial Officer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the members of Al Shaheer Corporation Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of Al Shaheer Corporation Limited
and its subsidiary (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
30 June 2018, and the consolidated statement of profil or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of cash flows, the consclidated statement of
changes in equity for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, Including
a summary of significant accounting policles and other explanatory Information,

in our opinion, consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financia! position of the Group as at 30 June 2018, and its consolidated finandial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting and reperting
standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis far Opinion

We conducted our audit in accoardance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable
in Pakistan, Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
rResponsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statemeants section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of the
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
In accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have cbtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for pur opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance In
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters wera
addressed in the context of cur audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

b
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Following are the key audit matters:

"Capital work-in-progress and related long-term financing facility

As disclosed in note 9.5 to the accompanying
consolidated financial statements, the Group
has incurred significant amount of capital
expenditure for ils new Chicken Processing
Plant, which is expected to be cperational by
next year, The expenditure capitalized to date in
relation to this new Chicken Processing Plant
has been classified as capital work-in-progress
as af 20 June 2018.

Further, as disclosed in note 21 to the
accompanying consolidated financial
statements, the Group has obtained long-term
tinancing facilities from commercial banks
amounting to Rs. &20 milien to finance the
capltal expenditure.

We considered material additions In capilal
work-in-progress and long-term financing as key
area of focus during our audit as the amounts
reparted are material to the consolidated
statement of financial position and therefare,
we have identified these as a key audit matter.

Qur key audit procedures In these areas
included, amongst others, obtaining an
understanding of the Group's process with
respect to capital expenditure and controls
relevant to such process.

We perfermed substantive audit procedures
through inspection of related contracts and
documents supparting various compaonents of
the capitalized costs.

We also considered whether the tems of cost
capitalized, including borrowing costs, meat the
recognition criteria of an asset in accordance
with the applicable financial reporting
standards.,

In relation to the long-term Iiﬂanclng facility, we
reviewed the significant terms and conditions
contained In the financing agreement executed
during the year.

We also inquired management in respect of
future compliance with the lean covenants and
any challenges expected in this regard.

We circularized and received confirmation from
lhe banks financing the Group. We have also
reviewed the maturity analysis of the financing
ta ascertain the classification of loan as per the
remalning maturity.

We further assessed the adeguacy of
consolidated financial statement disclosures in
accordance  with the applicable financial
reparting framework,

Preparation of financial statements under the Companies Act, 2017

As referred to in note 3.1 fo the accompanying
consolidated financial statemen ts, the COI'!'IPEHI:ES
Act, 2017 becamea applicable for the first time for
the preparation of the Group's annual financial
statements far the year ended 30 June 2018,

The Campanies Act, 2017 forms an integral part
of the statutory financial reporting framewark as
applicable to the Group and amongst others,
prescribes the nature and content of disclosures
in relation to various elements of the financial
statements.

In the case of the Group, specific additional
disclosures and changes o fthe existing
disclosures  have  been  Included In the
consciidated financial statements as referred Lo
note 3.2 to the consolidated financial statements.

Further, the Group has changed its accountl

policy relating to presentation and measuremen
of revaluation surplus on property, plant and
equipment as a cansequence of the application of
the Companies Act, 2017 with retrospective
effect. The impact of the said change in

We assessed the procedures applied by the
management for identification aof the changes
requirad in the consclidated financial statemenis
due to application of the Companies Act, 2017.
We considered the adequacy and appropriateness
of the additional disclasures and changes to the
previous disclosures based on  the new
requirements. We also evaluated the sources of
[nformation used by the management for the
preparation of the above referred disclosures and
the internal consistency of such disclosures with
other slements of the consolidated financial
statements.

In respect of the change In accounting pollcy for
the accounting and presentation of revaluation
surplus as referred to note B to the consalidated
financial statements; we assessed the accounting
implications in accordance with the applicable
financial reporting standards and evaluated its
application in the context of the Group.

[ -

Page 2
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accounting palicy has been disclosed In note 8 Lo

the consolidated financial statements.
The above changes and enhancements in the
consolidated financial statements are considered
impertant and & key audit matter because of the
volume and significance of the changes in the
consolidated financial statements resulting frem
the transition to the new reporting requirements
under the Companies Act, 2017,
3 Recoverability and recognition of deferred tax asset
As disclosed in note 11, the Group has | We evaluated the appropriateness of the items
recognized deferred tax asset on unused | which the Group has recognized as deferred tax
business losses and tax credits amounting to Rs | asset considering the factors including age and
211.757 millien, the expiry of the carry forward tax losses and
tax rates enacted. For this purpose, we involved
in order to ascertaln that sufficient future | our internal specialist, to assist us on the above
taxable profit will be available, the management | evaluation.
has prepared future projections of taxable profit
by taking inte account various assumptions | We evaluated the Group’s assumptions and
mainly comprising of future throughpul of the | estimates in refation to the likelibood of
new Chicken Processig& Plant, average inflation | generating future taxable income, principally by
and exchange rates and growth rate. E-EfFurm!ng sensitivity analysis and testing the
ey assumptions used by the management.
The analysis of the recognition and
recoverability of the deferred tax asset was | We have also assessed the adequacy of the
significant to our audit because of the significant | Group's disclosures in accordance with relevant
value of deferred lax assel and the assessment | laws as applicable in Pakistan (refer note 11).
of future taxable Income fnvolves significant
management Judgement, estimates and
assessment of timing of reversals.
4, Revenue recognition
The Group's revenue comprise of both local and | We performed audit procedures in relation to
Eﬂﬁuﬁ f'E-allles. I't_ll:lttal satlfaisl are qenerlated l?ruugh revenue including the following:
oth retall autiels and the corparate customers : b
; = We inspected the terms and conditions
involving large volume of transactions. of sale transactions for both export and
We identified revenue recognition and ils local sales and assessed the
reporting In  the consolidated financial appropriateness of revenue recognition
statements as a key audit matter due to large policies and practices followed by the
volume of transactions, and the amount of audit Group.
efforts in relation to this area. . N Skl cenliale BUER fevET
Please refer to note 28 for relevant disclosures recognition and reporting process
in respect of revenue. within export and local sales including
sales Lo retail and corporate customers.
= We performed analytical review
procedures and ether test of details for
export and local sales including
procedures ensure thal revenue has
been recognised in the appropriate
accounting period.

- We also assessed the adequacy of the
disclosures made in respect of revenue
in accordance with the [financial
reporting standards.

[ -
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information Gther than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the cther infermation. The other information comprises the
infarmation included in the Annual Report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditoer's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the ather information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially Inconsistent
with the conselidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of Lhis
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management |s responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and Companies Acl, 2017 and for such internal contral as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consclidated financial statements, management Is responsibie for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consclidated Financial Statements

Dur objectives are to obtain reasonsble assurance aboul whether the consolidated financial statemeants
as g whole are free from material misstatement, whether due {o fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1545 as applicable in Pakistan will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
Judgment and maintain professional skepticism througheout the audit. We alsa:

s [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures respansive to those risks,
and ablain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our apinign.
The risk of not detecting a materfal misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions;
misrepgresentations, or the averride of internal contral.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevanl to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the cireumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectivenass of the Group's internal control.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness ef accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
e
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+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going cencern basis of

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtainad, whether a materlal uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability te
continue as a going concern. |If we conclude that a materfal uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadeguate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. Howewver, fulure
events ar caonditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern,

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whelther the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events In a manner that achieves fair presentation.

s Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial infarmatian of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and periormance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsiole for our audit opinion,

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
liming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal controf
that we identify during our audit.

We alsa provide the Board of Directors with @ statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationshios and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related saleguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current perind and are
therafare the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the atdverse consequences

of doing so would reascnably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication,

The engagement partoner on the audit resulting In this Independent auditor’s report is Shabbir Yunus.

L {0 ¢ -

Chartered Accountants
ﬁ-_-ﬁ
Place: Karachi

Date: 27 Seplember 2018

Fage 5
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AS AT 30 JUNE 2018
A — . i 00 e—
ASSETS Restated Restated
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipmont @ 4,805,419 3442133 2850,348
Intangble asset o 5217 4 861 3,040
Deferrad tax geset 1 192,815 177 563 126,078
5,003 451 3624 557 2,783 260
CURRENT ASSETS
Block-in-trade 12 107,255 11E 618 167,554
Fuzl, unrieants and consumanties L1 ] 18,134 14,903
Trade debts 13 1.211,970 1.181.151 1,058 6BE
Loans and advances 14 EW,:WB‘ 495 314 476,607
Trade deposits and shor-term prepayments 15 21,368 20814 22,300
Short-term mweskmant 16 520 586 215,803
Crher recaivshles w 230,214 21E 447 172,038
Taxation - net 141,958 108 168 75,245
Cash and bank balances 18 52482 26 BT 25,216
2,353,998 2,192 809 2.217 545
TOTAL ASBETS 7,357 447 £.817 458 5,000,811
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Autharised capital
150,000,000 (2017: 150,000.000) ordnary
shares of Rs. 10/- each 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000
Iausd, subscnines and paid-up capital 19 14211475 1421175 12235804
Share pramium 1,607,705 1,507.705 1,653,078
Uranprop: mted proft 816,438 838,120 6853 516
Revaluation surpius en proparty, olant and aguipmant 20 B52,138 186 8922 187,078
Totsl equity 4,357 455 37830922 3819472
Mon-controling interast 20,809 23907 29 427
448,084 3807820 3848801
HON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-term financing 21 TOB.077 400 414 29,562
Dieferrad Dabalies 22 58,633 43,520 28,297
TBT ™6 447 Qa0 &7, 845
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and olher payables 3 568,385 455 088 315,048
Ehort-term borrowings 24 1,923,374 1048818 T34 583
Accrued mark-up 25 21,543 11,758 3,877
Due to a related party x5 281,181 13.827 T.564
Curent parbion of long-term financng 21 1Th183 40 416 33,188
271,667 1.565.687 1,054,061
TOTAL EQGLITY AND LIABILITIES 7,357 447 5817 458 5,000,811
COMMITMENTS 2

The annaxed notes 1 1040 farm an integral parl of 1hese consolidatad Mnancial stalements.

Chiel Executive Director Chief Financial Officer




Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

(2EEA=T AT

Note e (RUPEES In "000) ~wmmeeme

Turnover - net 28 5,373,148 6,386,642
Cost of sales 29 (4,151,927) (4,869 340)
Gross profit 1,221,221 1 528 702
Administralive and distribution costs 30 (1,313,049) (1.483.527)
Other income n 115,527 18492
Operating profit 23,699 51 667
Finance costs 32 {56,032) {81,204)
Loss before taxation 132,333) {19.537)
Taxation 33 {22,376) (12,535)
et loss for the year (54,709) {32072}
Attributable to:
Owners of the Halding Campany {51,411) {26 552)
Non controlling inieresis (3,298) [5.520)

{54,709) {32.072)
Loss per share — basic 34 (0.36) (0.19)

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,

Chiel Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

ozt 2T
NOtE  eeseseses [RUpEES i 000) memeeme=s

Net loss for the year (54,708} (32.072)
Other comprehensive income:

Items not to be reclassified to statement of profit or loss

account in subsequent years
Remeasurement loss on defined benefil plan 221 {10,871) (9,387)
Income tax effest 1,459 387
(2,412) {9,000)
Items that may be reclassified to statement of profit or loss
account in subsequent years
Revaluation surpius on property, plant and equipment 673,568 -
Income tax effsct 788 g
674,356 ]
Tatal comprehensive income | (loss) for the year 610,235 (41,072}
Attributable to:
Owners of the Holding Compary 613,533 {35,652}
Non contralling interests (3,298) (5,520)
610,235 (41,072)

The annaxed notes 1 ta 40 form an intagral part of these consclidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flows Statement
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

GASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING AGTIVITIES
Loss before taxation

Adjustments for:
Deprecialion
Amortisation
Prowision for defined benefit plan
Provision of prevision for doubtful debls
Liablitles no langer payanie written hack
Loss [ (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Gain on remeasuremeant of short-term investment
Gain on disposal of shot-term nvestment
Firance costs

Dperating profit before werking capital changes

{Increase) [ decrease in current assebs;
Fuel, lubricants and eansumahles
Stock-in-trade
Trade debis
Loans and advances
Trade deposits and short-term prepayments
Other recenables

Increase f {decrease) in current liabilities:
Trade and other payables
Due to a related party

Cash generated from operations

Tawnes prawd
Gretuity paid

MNet cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Addtions to:

- Froperty, plant and squipment
- Intanpgible assat

Sale proceeds from disposal of property, piart and squpment
Short-term invesiments - net

Met cash flows used In investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Long-term financing - net
Shart term borrowings - net
Finance costs pasd

Met cash flows from financing activities
Net increase |n cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The arnexad notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these consalidated financial statements

\UN’& '

T

Chief Executive

Mote

32

10

e {Rupees in "000) ——-——
{32,333) {18.537)
T8, 70T TET16
1,698 1,168
19,112 15,510
8,197 3710
13,230) {7,435)
304 (485)
(24) (777
- {2 835)
56,032 81,204
158 797 168 655
126 464 148,159
13,566 769
8,659 51,038
{29,0186) (113.673)
(87,595) (72,708)
(554) 1485
{17,767) {40,409)
(112,707) (179, 490)
114,545 A73 200
267 654 5963
382,199 485,253
395,956 854913
(68,168) {83,553)
(13.870) (3 668)
313918 351,692
(774,801) [B71.713)
(2,055) {2,180)
8,072 1,675
- 218,030
(768,784) (553 188)
d46 430 378,089
78,456 -
{46,245) (73,122)
478,641 304 967
23,775 3471
28,687 28218
52,462 28 687
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

(Rupwes in ‘'000)

Balarce as al June 30, 2016 -

as previously reported 1,235.504 1. A8%4078 -G8 516 AT . AA51 823
Effect of change in accounting podcy [note 5) - - - - 197 078 197.078
Balance as at June 30, 2016 - restated 1,236 204 1.658.076 BH3.616 289,927 187,078 3,844 501
Ol sonpr -
Other comprehensive loss - - 18,000) - - (2.000
Total comprehensive loss lor the yzar - = 135.552) (5.520) = (41,072}
lasue of 18 537 056 honus shanes 185371 (135,3'!‘!] - = - =
Feavaluation aurplug on propery, plant

and aqupmant realiesd on account of

Incrgmienial deprociation - - 10,156 - {10,166}
Bakance as it 30 June 2017 - restaied 1,421,178 1,507,705 B68,120 23,907 188,922 3,807,829
G e S N I s N -
Other comprehensive (loss] / income - - {9,412) - 674,358 54 948
Tatsl comprehensae (bes) | ineome for the pear - - (B0, A7) {3,298) B7d 356 610,235
Revaluation surplus on property, plant

and aguipmant realised on account of

incremenial deprociation - - 8,138 - (9. 138] -
Batance as at 30 June 2018 1,421.475 1,507,705 516,436 20,800 852,138 &W

The annexed notes | 1o 40 form an integeal part of these consalidzted financizl statements,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

1 LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS OF THE GROUP

The Group consists of Al Shaheer Corporation Limited {the Haolding Company) and its: subsidiary company Al Shaheer Farms
{Private) Limited (the Subsidiary Company) thai have been conzolidated in these consolidated financial statemants. Brief
profiles of the Holding Company and s Subsidiary Company are as follows:

1.1

1.2

Holding Company

Al Shaheer Corporation Limted (the Holding Company) was incorporated on 30 Junes 2012 and is quoted on Pakistan
Stock Exchange. The registered office of the Company s situated at Suite No. G/&/5, 3rd floor, Mansoor Tower, Block:
&, shahrah-e-roomi, Clifton, Karachl. The Gompany iz engaged in trading of different kinds of halal meat ineluding
goat. cow, chicken and fish, beth for export markel and local sales through chain of retal| stores,

Subsidiary Company

The Subsidiary Company was incorporated in Pakistan as a private fimited company The principal activity of the
Subsidiary Company s fo cary on all kinds of farming including agrcutiural, poultry, horicultural and dairy and o
purchase. acquire, keep, maintain, breed. sell or otherwise dispose of all kinds of cattie anc other farm of live stocks.
The registered office of the Subsidiary Company |s situated at Suite No. G/3/5. 3rd Floor, Mansoor Tower, Block-8,
Shahrah-e-Roomi. Clifton, Karachi, Pakistan. As of the consolidated statement of financial position date, the Holding
Company has §1% shareholding in the Subsidiary Company

F) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS OCCURRED DURING THE YEAR

During the year, the Group has incurred significant amount of capital expenditure amounting to Rs,. 740 millon for ihe
launch of a new site and a related lang term financing was availed amounting ta Rs 820 millian,

For a detalled discussion about the Group's performance please refer to the Direstors’ repart

3 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

a1

32

Thase consoldated financial stalemants have been prepared in ectcordance with the sccounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounbing &nd reporling standards applicable in Pakistan comprise aof
Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), issued by International Accounting Standard Beard (IASB) as
notified under Gompanies Act, 2017 (the "Act"), and provisions of and directives issued under the Act. Where the
provisions of and directives issued urder the Act differ from the IFRSs, the provisions of and directives issued under
the Act have been followed.

Tha Azl has also brought certain changes with regard to the praparation and preseniation of these consolidated
financial stataments These changes, amongst others, included change in respect of presentation and measurament
of surplus en revaluation of property plant and equipment as fully explained in note 8 of these consolidated financial
statements, change in nomenclature of primary statements. ete. Further, the disclosure requirements contained in the
faurth scheduls of the Act have been revised, resulting in elimination of duplicative disclosure with the |[FRS disclosure
raquirsmeants and incerparatien of additional f amended disclosures as mentionad In notes 1.2, 2 8 8.3, 13.1. 14.1,
18,1, 30.2, 33.3, 35, 36.1 and 38,

4 BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

41

a2

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the histoncal cost convention except for

ay  cerain Hema of propenty, plant and 2quipment are statad at revalued amount;
by  short term investments are carrizd at fair value; and
c}  definad benefit plan is measured at presant value

Thess consolidated financial statements have been presented in Pakistani rupees, which is the Group's functional
and presaniation currency.,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 230 JUNE 2018
B STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS APPLICABLE TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 Basis of consolidation

Thesa corsolidated financial statements include the financial etalements of the Molding Comgany and its Subsidiary Comgany, hete-in-
after refened 1o as "the Group’,

A company |58 subsidiary, Ifan eniity (the Holding Company) directly or Indiecty controls, beneficially owns or holds more than ity
percent of ifs voling securiies or ofherwise has power lo elest and appoint more than fifty percent of its directors

Buhsidaries are consalidated from the date an which the Group obtains cantral.and eontinue to be ennaalidated unbl the daze when
guch contrgd ceases.

The financial slatements ol he subsiduries are prepared for the same reporing year as the Holding Company, using consisien|
aceounting policiea The accodnting policses of the aunsxdanss have been changed to confarm with acoownting policies of the Grougp,
wihare requirad.

All intra-group balances, transactions and unealised gans and losses fresufling from intra-group fransachons and dividends ae
alimmated in ful,

‘Where the ewnerehip of a subeidiary s lese than 100% and theefone, a non confroling interee: (NC1) exigls. the NC e aliocated e
share of the total comprehensive income of the peried, even if that resulls in a deficil talance

The assets, Fabilitkes, income and erpenses of sutsidiary compames ang constlidated on a Fre by ine bass and carymg value of

nvastments held by the Holding Gampany is siminatad agning! the aubsidiary companies’ srarshaldess squity in the conaslidated
finandial slatements.

52 MNow Standards, Interpretations and Amaendments
T e Grnnp |ons xduplbd the Inllu-urtg armendments ko the accoumbing alwndards which beearme affective for the curtent e

IAS T — Statoment of Cash Flowes - Discioewrs Intistive - (Amendimant)
|45 12 Income Taxes — Recogrition of Delerad Tax Assals for Linrealized losses (Amendments)

The adoption of the above amenameants tn acoountmg standards ded not have any material effect on these conachidatsd financeal
statomants.

5.3 Standards, Interpretations and amandmants to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

Thas following standards, amendments and nltpretations wih respect to the approved accounting stardards ax aoplhcabls n
Pakistan windd b effective Fam the dates mentioned below aganst the respeciive standars o interpratation

Effective date
{arnual pericds

Standard er Interpratation beginning on or after)
IFRE 2 — Share Baged Payments - Classification and Measurement of

Ehare Based Paymen| Transaclions [Smendments) 01 Januasy 2048
IFRS 4 — Insurance Contracts, Appxying IFRS & Financal Instruments with

Insurance Contiacts — [Amandrmeants) ™ Januﬂ‘g 218
|FRE 8 — Francial Instruments 01 July 2018
[FRE 9 — Prepsymant Faatures with Megative Companzation — (Amandmants) 01 January 2018
IFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers 01 duly 2018
IFRS 18 - Leagas 01 January 2019
|45 18 — Plan Amendrmerd, Curteirment or Sellersnl {(Srendmens) M January 2019
A5 28 - Lang-term Interests in Aszocates and Jont Verhires - (Amendmeants} 01 Januasy 2049
IAE - a0 inveatment Propety: Transfers of Investment Progerty LAmendments) 01 January 2018
IFRIC 22 — Foreign Currency Traneactions and Advance Conalderation 01 January 2018
[FRIC 23 — Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 01 January 2049

The above standards and gmendments are not expectad 1o have any maleral imogel on the Group's consolidated fnancial
statemvents in the penod of intial application excepl for IFR3 15 - Revenoe from Contracts with Custormers” and IFRS § -
'Financhsl instruments’ The Group (s eurrently syalushing the impact of theqe standards

ﬂ_ﬁm%uﬂm



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

In addifion to the above standards and amendments, mprovements to vanous accounting standards have also béen Bsued by
the ASE in December 2015 and December 2017, Such improvements are generally effective for accounting perinds beginning on
o after 01 January 2018 and 01 January 2019 respectively The Group expects that such improvements to the standsrds will not
hawe any matarial impact on the Group's consolidated financial stalemants in the pericd of initial applcation:

The IASE has also issued the revised Conceptual Framewoek for Financial Reporting (the Conceptual Framework) in March 2018
which is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020 for preparers of financial statements who develop
accounting policies based on the Concepiual Framewark, The revised Concepiual Framework is not a standard, and none of the
concepts ovemide those in any standard or any requiremenis in a standard. The purpose of the Conceplual Framework is fo
agsisl 1858 in developing slandards, o help prepaiers develop consisten| accounting policess: if theie is no apphcable slandard in
pace and lo assist all parties to understand and intarprel the standards.

Further, following new standards have been ssued by LASB which are yel o be nolifed by the SECP for the purpose of
applicablkty in Pakistan

1ASB Effective date
(annual periads
Standards beginning on or after)
IFRS 14— Regulaiory Deferral Accounts 01 January 2016
IFRS 17— Insurance Corfracts 01 January 2021

6 BIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AMD ESTIMATES

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting stanciards regures the use of certain
cribcal accounting eshimates. It also refuires managament o exercise its judgment in the precess of applying the Group's sccounting
pobcies, Estmates and udgments are cortinually evaluated and are based on hislorical expenence and other factors, including
expaciations of future svents that are belizved to be reasonable under the circumslances. Revisions to accounting estmatles are
recognised in the peried in which the estimate s revised and |n any futune periods affected. In the process of applying the Group's
accounting polices, management has made the following estimates and udgrments which are significant to the consolidated financial
statements:

Praperty, plant and equipment

The Group reviews the appropriaieness of e rale of deprecistion. useful ife and regidusl valueg usad in the caleutation of depreciation.
Furiner, whara applicable, an estimata of the recoverable amourt of aseels 5 made for possible impairment on an annual basis. In
making these estimates, the Group uses the technical resources avaliable with the Group. Any change: In estimates in fulure might
afiect the carrying amount of respective classes of property, plant and equipment, with a8 corresponding effect on the depreciation
charge and imparmeni,

Revaluation surplus on propertly, plant and equipment

The Group reviews the appropristenass of the revaluation of property, plant and squipment (carmed at revaiued amounts) periodically
for the purpesa of ensuring that the cammving amount of the same does not differ materially from its fail value. In meking this
agsessment, the Group uses the technical resources avallable with the Group. The revaluation exercise i camied cut by Independent
professional valuers using various significant assumptions. Any change in assessment in future might affect the carrying amount of
respective classes of fixed assels, with comesponding efiect on surplus on revaluation of fixed assets.

Provision for doubtful debls and other receivables

The Group reviews iz doubiful irade debts and other receivable at each reporling date 1o assess whather provision for impairment is
reguired. In parficular, judgmeant by management is required in the estimation of the amount and Gming . of future cash flows when
delermiring the level of provision required. Such estmalss are based on gssumplions about a number of faciors and adual resulls
may differ, resulting n fulure changes to the provsions.

Taxalion

In applhying the estimate Tor income 1% payvable, the Group takes into account the applicabla tax lows and the dacislon by appeliata
guthoriiies on certain issues n the past Instance where the Group's view differs from the view taken by the income tax department at
the assessment stage and where the Group considers that s view on ivems of material nature i In accordance with law, the amounts
are shown as contingency,

Post retirement employee benstita

Thie cost of defined bensft plan is determined using actuaral valuabion. The actuaris! valuation nvolves making assumpbions about
dmscount rale and fulurs salary noreases. Due to long-term nature of the plan, such eslimates are subject to significant uncertainty,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

7 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
7.1 Property, plant and equipment

Cperating fixed assests

Cxcept for computer and acessories all ilems of property plant and eguipment are stated af revalued amount less accumulated
degreciation and imparment. Computers and accessones are slaled al cosl less accumulated degredation and Impaimmenl.

Depreciation is charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss applying the reducing balance mathad at'fhe rates mentioned
in note % io the congolidated financial statements. Depreciation s charged from the month in which an asset is avalable for use,
while no depreciation is charged in the month on which an-asset is disposeg off.

Maintenance and repairs are charged lo profit or loss as and when ingurred. Major renewals and improvements which increass
fhe assel's remaining useful aconomic ife or the performance beyond the current estimated levels are capitalized and the assets
so replaced, if any, are retired.

Gains or losz2es on disposals of operating assets, if any, are recognized in the consalidated statement of profit or lnss. The asaets
rasidual valuas, useful lives and depreciation mathodes are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year end

Increases in the carmying amounts arising on revaluation of certain ilems of property plant and squipment are recognizad, in
consolidaled statement of comprehensive income and accumulated In resarves in consolidated sialement of changes in aquity
To the extent that the increase reverses a decrease previously recognized in consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
Inerease |5 first recagnized In esnsclidated statement of profit o loss

Decieases thal reverse previous Increases of the same assel are first racegnized in consclidated statemeant of comprehensive
income to the exdent of the remaining surplus atiributable to the asset: all cther decreases are charged o consolidated statement
of profit or Inss

The carrying values of property, plant and eguipment are reviewed a1 each consolidated statement of financial position dats for
impairment when events or changes In circumstances indicate that carrying values may not be recoverable.

i such Indication exists where the carrying vaiues excesd the estimated recoveranle amounts the assets ane wntten down to
their recoverable amounts.

Capital work-in-progress

Capilal work-in-progress is slated at cost less impaimmenl and consists of expendilure incured and advances made in respect of
aperating fized assets and intangie assets in the course of their acquigivon, erection, construction and installation, The assets
are transfamed to relevant category of operating fixed assets or intangible assets when they are available for use,

7.2 Intangible asset

These are slated al cos! less accumulated amortization and impairment. Amortization s charged on reducing balance method
aver the uaeful (ves of the assets 2t the rates apecified in nale 10 of these cansalidated financial statemernta. Amontisation is
charged from the monih the asset is available for use upto the month of derecognition. Amartisation methods, useful lives and
residual values are reviewed el each reporling date and adjusted, if appropriate.

7.0 Investments at fair value through prafit or loss

An Investment is classified al faw value through profit or loss if it & held for trading or is designated as such upon inilial
recognition. These are intially measured at cost being fair value of consideration given, All ransaction cosls are recognised
dirgctly In consolidated statement of profit o loss. Al subseguent dates, these investments are measured at falr value,
determined on the baszis of prevaling market prices, with any resulting gain or loss recognised directly in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

7.4 Fuol and lubricants

Thiesa are stated at cosl.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

7.5 Stock-In-trade
These are valued ai lower of cost and nat reslizable value. The cost is delermined on weightad average basis and is computed

by uskng the avesage cost for the last month of the reporting period. The cost of steck comprises of cost of purchase, cost of
conversion and other cost incurred (n bringing e stock to their present incation and condition

7.6 Trade debts and other receivables
These are canied at onglnal nvoice amounts less an estimate made for doublful tade debls and other receivables based on
review of outsianding amounts. An estimale provision for doubtiul debt s made when colleclion of the full amount i no fonger
probskic. Balances conaklered bad ana rrecovarsbie arg witlen off, as and when ioentmied.

7.7 Leans and advances
Thate arg Stated &t coet.

7.8 Cash and cash equivalenis

These are stated ab cost. For the purpose of consolidisted staterrend of cash Mows, cash and cash equivalents comprisg of cagh
in hand and bank balances nel off nook overdrafis

7.8 Impairment
Financial assets

The Group aseesses al each reporting dale whether there is any objeclive evdence that 3 financial asest or @ group o financial
assets 5 impaired. A financlal assai or a group of financal assets = desmad fo be impaired If, and anly f, there = obpctive
evidetce of Impalrment as a resull of one or more events thal has occurred after the Initia? recognilion of the asset (an Incured
Aoms svant’) and that lnss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the inancial ass=t or the group of financizl
assets thal can be rediably sstimated. Any impaimmeant iosa an financisl assata o rocegnagd in consalidated statamant of prafit af
logs.

Mon-financial assoels
Tha campng valsas of ageste are reviewsed far mparmant when avents of changes in croumstandas indicata thot the camyng

walue may nol be recoverable I any such indication exisis and where e capying valies sxcesd the estimaled recoverable
amaunt. the assels o relalsd cashegenerstng unids are written down bo thein recovesable amount

7.10 Trade and other pavabies

Liahil ties tor trade and cther payahies ame camed at cost which is the fair valibe of the consideration t0 be paid in the future for
{he goods and servicas rocaivad, whether or not bilad to the Group

7.11 Staif relirement benefita
The Group operaies an un-approved and unfunded defined gratulty scheme for all permanent employees who have completed
{hve i quahfying year of service for spilerent of gatuly. The contribubions o the schemes ars made in scooidance wilh

the independent actuarial valuation. The lalest actuarial valuation was cammied out as of 30 June 2018 using Projected Unit Credit
method.

7.12 Taxatlon
Currant
Proviaion for aurrent lax is based an the laxables neone in accordancs with [necme Tax Ovdinance, 2001
Deferred

Deferred income tax is provided using the lability methed for all temporary differences at the reportng date between 1ax bases of
aszels and labilities and their camying amounis-For fnancial reporting purposes.

Deferred income tax ossets am recognised for sl deductibie emporary diferences. unused @x l0sses and tax cadits, If amy, 10
the extant that it s probable that taxable profits will be available aganst which such temporary differencss and ax basss can be
utilized.

Deterred income tax assets and iabities are measured al the tax rale hat s expecied o apply 1o e pear wien Be assel s
realzed or the lablity is sattied, basad on tax rates that have bean enacted or substantively enactad at the reporting data.

7.13 llarah contracts

Leases under Shanan compkant (jarah contracts, imespectve of whether a significart portion of the rsks and mesards of
ownership ase retaned by the lestor, are clossiied as jarah. Rontals under thesa arangementa are charged 10 consolidated
statemant of profit or lods on straight line basis sver the (ease lem
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

T 44 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present degal or constructive obligation 85 a result of past events and it &5
pratable that an cutfiow of resources embodying economic benefits will be requirad 1o ssttie the chiigation and 8 rafiable estimats
of theamount can be mada. Provisions are reviewed at each repoiting date and sdjusted Lo reflsct the cunrent best estimata.

7.15 Foreign currency transiations

Farsign surrency transactions are franalated inln Pak Rupaes (funshional eurency) using e axchangs rates ruling at the date of
the transaction. Manatary assets and kabilities in fareign currencias are retransiated inte Pak Rupases using the sxchange rmate at
the reporing date. Forelgn exchange gaing and |osses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the re-
translations @t yesr end exchange rates of monetary ascels and llabiities denominated in forsign currencies are taken (o
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

746 Financial instrumenis

Financial aszets and financiol liabilties ore recogrised at the ime when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrumant  Financial easets are deresognisad at the time when the Group ioses eantrol of the contmctual nghts that
comprise the financial assets. Financial habditea are derecogniaed at the time when they are extinguished that iz, when the
ohligation specified in the confract is dizcharged, cancetied, or expired. Any gains or losses on derecognition of financial aszets
and fimancial liabiithes are takan o consolidated statement of profit or loss,

747 Qffsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

# financial asset and a financial llablity 1= only offset and the net amourt |s reported 0 the consolidated statement of financiaé
poaition I he Group has legaily enforceable right 1o set off the recognized ameunt and intends either to settie on'a net basis or o
realize the sssat and sefile the liability simultaneousty, Income and expenses arising from such assels and fiablites ara also
oifset apcordingly,

T.18 Revenue recognition

Sales are recognized when signiflicant risks and rewards of cwnership of the goods have passed o the buyer which generally
caincides with dispatch of goods to customers.

7.18 Borrowing costs

Borrowing and ether related coasts directly attributabie to the acquisition, construction or preduction of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial pericd of time to gel ready for their irtended use, are added to the cost of those assets.
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their irlended use. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an
expense in the pancd in which they are incurrsd

7.20 Dividend and appropriation of reserves

Dividends and appropriation o resenves ade recognised 1o the consaldated financial statermant in the penoad in which these are
approved However, i these are approved after the reporting period but before the financial stalements are authonsed for issue
they arg dsciased in the notes 1o the consclidated financial staterments

8 CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

The specfic provissan { saction m the repesled Companies Ordingnce, 1984 relating to the revaluation surplus on property, plant and
aquipment has not bean camied forward In the Companies Act, 2077 Previously, section 235 of the repeated Companies Ordinance,
1584 gpecified the accounting treatment and presentation of the surplus on revaluation of progerty, plant and equipment which wae not
In accordance with the requirermants of IFRS, Accordingly, in accordance wih the reguirements of International Accounting Standard
(I1A3) 18, Properly, Plant and Equipment, revaiuation surplus on progerty, plant and equipment would now be presented under equity.

Following the application of LAS 18, the Greup’s policy for revaluation sunpius on property, plant and: equipment stands amended as
follows:

- Increases in the carryng amounts adsing on revahuation of properly, plant and squipment. are recognized in other comprebensive
income and accumulated in ressrvas in sharehoiders’ equity, To the exitent that the increase reversas a decrease previously
recognized in consclidatad statemant of prafit or loss, the increase s first recognized in consalidated statement of profit or loss
Decreases that reverse previous increases of the same asset are first recegnized in other comprehensive income to the extent of
tha remaining surplus altributable to the asseal. all cther decreases ara chargad 10 consolidatod slatement of profit or loss.

The change in accounting policy has besn accounted for retrospectively m accordance with the nequirements of 125 8 'Accounting
Polictes, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Emrors” and comparative figures have been restated.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

The effect of change in accounting palicy is summarizad below:

~ Asat3dJume2eiT 00000
Effect on consolidated
statament of financial
pasition nent

{Rupees in "'000)
Revalualion surplus on properly,
plant & equipment 186,922 - (186,922) 167.078 - {187.078)
Share capital and reserves - 186,922 186,922 - 197,078 197,078
e ===

Effect on consolidatad
statement of changes in
equity
Changes in equity - 186,922 186,922 - 197,078 197,078

Effect on consolidated statement of comprehensive income
Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment - 10,156 10,158

Thera was no cash flow Impact as a result of the retrospective application of ehanga in accounting policy.

. a8 2017

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT Note e (Rupaes in '000) -
Operaling fixed assels 9.1 1,822,270 1,165,953
Capital wark-in-sregrass 9.5 2,983,149 2,276.170
4,805,419 3,442,133
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

81  Operating fized assels

Frazhold land 283,237 = = 4,613 - EB7.840 =
Leasehold fand 170,418 - = 272,083 - Adz 08 %
Buildings o feshold land 185,471 20,055 - 20,060 B 0ESIE 10%:
Flant and mashinay 241,165 6,000 (8.218) (12,733) - 2TAE % -20%
Fusnliure and fiaune 186,335 15,511 - (3.927) {BTe) 187,043 10%
Motor vehicies 134299 ° 18,372 - = 112245} 140,420 16%
Ciffice squipment 186,838 4,623 {18415) (3785 {218} 166,830 18%
Taeks and e uipment 25,314 1,580 - - . 28,894 10%
COmpuloes and SeoRESonos 2512 T4 6,533 - (m) A8.7EE 10%
L 1414370 SL.ea = 5ee, 241 {3811 2084532

Frasshold fand 283,227 = : . - 283,287 -
Laasehold laand 170,415 = . 2 : 1TO416 :
Euidings on frazheld iand 150,853 5812 - - . 165 471 10%
Flant and machinery 228,162 12,004 - z = 241,188 %0k
Fusniture and fudure 155,361 30,474 . . . 1BE338 0%
Wictar vehicies 12748 8563 - - [2118] 14783 15
Office equipmer 174,535 11,880 x = (17 185 636 185
Tosls and eauigment 28713 1,601 . - . 23w
Compurtess and-sczessones 18,720 2,951 - 3 (188 21512 1%
T 132,840 3,380 : = (2.400) 1414370

* Includs aesets eosting Re. BZ.734 million (2017 Ra. 11270 millien) undar Diminshing Musharaka Artangemens,
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Freehold land - - . . - » BET.840
Leazahoid land - - - - - - 442499
Bulldings on feehold land 34,864 - 12278 . 54,450 2482 203,034
Plant and machinsry 44,676 £ 10,295 - - 64,970 172,146
Fumniture and fixdure 38,248 . 16,188 {186) - 64,224 182,818
Wintnr vehicles 44,712 8 14,959 (4,797) (32877 21,997 118.423
Offices eauipmen 53,834 {10,862) 17,398 (8) - 70,285 28,545
Tools and squipment 6372 - 1,696 - - 8,267 13,827
Computers and arcsssnnes 6008 10,862 3817 (67 - 20477 28,338

018 248407 - 26287 5328) 187,327) 2852 1.822,270

Freeshaid iand . . ! . - . 283,227
Leasehold land . . - - . . 170,418
Buidings an freehold land 31628 = 13.038 : - 44,564 120,807
Plant and machingry TP = 10968 - - A4 /Y5 40, g
Furniture and fixure 24,438 E 13,807 . . 248 182,080
Wotor vehicles 30475 - 15393 (1.166) - aa712 B9.581
Cifice aquipment 42,332 = 21481 (49 = BAE34 122,862
Tools and equipmeant #2332 e ‘2040 - - 827 18,042
Compuiers and amsesoies 5 057 < 1888 (&1) - BO0S 15,507

w017 170 47 - 75716 (1,256) 248407 _ 1185863
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814 The Croup nos camod oul B mvaluaben axesncs voeugn an madapendant vauer namey Sedruoan Asadsoaies (Pryalek Limided en 30 June 2018 The realustion hat resdiisa
i ko of Fe 673 5 mikisn

942 The Group cames its fresrok land sseskala and, Buidings, Tumilure and firluies, shice equpment, mater velioes and (oaln ard equiprient on fevaiuad amound. The lalest
revaliaten Was Sonducied of J0 June D01, Had lhere basn no Mevoluabicn. The bbak value of freshald (and widld have besn Rs. 280.717 (207 Rs. 451,1E7 mdiian.
taasahald lang He 17042 (2017 Ae 170420 mifan, bulding Ao B0.504 (3017 Re. 7RO62) millon, giard and macknarny R, 12744 (3097: Re, 92746} midlian, lursturs and
Filures Ra. 44101 OF: Ry 144.284) milicn, oflice sguipment Ra L8957 (2017 R 53.054) mvllon {oels and eguismants Ra 1 1513 milken (2317: R 11381 midkan’ and
ol velicies Rs BS G0 (2047 R 88 5311 milbon

91,3 Fomedsale vaue 55 ¢ 30 Jure 2018 of frea hedd and leass hod Bn0 s s 458 38 MBicn and Re 33767 Mdban, Rameaey,

9.2 Depreciation for e year has beeo alocabed e foliows. Mot e (RS i -
Covl ol sk il 44783 e
Agmimiateative ang delrbution coals & ﬂ,% 48,621

TA THTIE

43 Partisulars of immovable Assets in the name of the Group are as follows.

Addreasss
Hocaian Total Aren
Harachi Sula G, 3re Fioor, Mansdor Towsr, Biadl 5, CEon, E000 5o Fia
Harschi Eugwiey M 348 Do Shab Mutead, Tepu Songle 1R 32 e
HEracni Bangiow & D-143 KD& Scheme Mo, 5 Gitton 883.33 g Yards
Farschi Plok Mo GAE, BBt ST-AB. Kofangi Croeh Insustnial Park 780,594 Bg Yords
Rawalnirdi Flok a4, Reac Mo M4 RGC) Hawal indosinal Estate 240079 Yarda
Lahos Hnl'i'uhﬁypln._.‘-!lﬂhhlﬁnglﬁlhd Road i1 Ac=s

84 The detals of opecaling Faed assets dsposed off curing he pear are as follaws

Motor wehicies.
Prower Sokan Mpy 7 e Tender
Faton Truck (BRS-208) 128 270 1908 85t (571 Tender Mutinmsd haman
Faton Truck (BREFHM 1 2% 243 1] e 5 Tender Munummad koman
FAW POWER TRUSK [JY-5a44| 2640 1,630 EICE ] VO (4D Temider Muhaimmad haman
Tayoin Wiz (AKA-#6) a2 523 L on 368 Megcotialion Munammad Saknan
Tayeta VIS (KL= 248 4308 1273 3,085 1] . Megoeatian Khan Kahil Khan
Tayeda Wiz (AUPI21 9E0 L ] A5G Ag2 420 huperGraup  Hamendd Chahil,
Pty Employey
12,244 4 T8 Tdd7 T.204 f1eay
Building
Gonstruction & Asnouating Gantract  Bin Hashie
[Bin Hashim Jahary 876 - 1) Bl . tearninafion  Cramer
Office Equipment
MApgracate smour of acsats
Aiscosnd Naving book valug
f=as than Rs: 500,000 2% a5 1, a3 (a arlnus Marpus -
Gompaers
Angregate smount of Bassts
dispasad 58 havnpg Soak valie
feks than R 500,000 72 a7 A0d 78 (38} Warloug Waricas:
Cakt EXSE G2, L, A, (0,
207 Zﬁi 'Ili 1,205 1674 4!5_

“tiona of e dimctans or the Group has any miationshp s ihe pochaser
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85 Gapital wirk-in-grogress o (Ruipoes i D00} —
Land ‘88,130 44,111
it works 11,060 101 542
Prant and machinocy 1547206 1.388,501
Advancs to subphitns and conirastars 1,240,068 75
Intangitie Fsel urdar devsinpEman 786 18 538

| 2,583,149 2are 170
951 The meverent it capdal work-n-procress i as fafiows:

Fnipees in 000

Cipaning balancs i 0882 128 785181 1868 TR
Addilicn ourmg the year |wam zii;m 1'5’:53& m:ﬂs ;'Hm T4066
Transfers duntg the yaar 3,487
Clasing baimnes JE 11m EE _E!L 21,756 FXCERTT]

* ineluds Borewirg et amauntng Fa T04.25 mitien (2017 1 605 miion ) copealsas during tha voar usng coptsianten rate of 7 14% 1007 (2017 TEFL 813

10 INTANGIELE ASSET

ST ee————s

Gomputer safwane 10,226 RDSS 2281 25 535 1,693 7,084 ET
2018 [N 208 1z LELLH ] 784 ST
@ —hl 2,080 10226 4157 1363 238 2581
fe=— e o]
Nota (Rupeas in ‘D00]

11 DEFERRED TAK ARGET
Delerrad tax sgaeta on deductible tamporary difle rences:

Urusad tax kg=es | eradils 19,787 201,842
Proyizions 1 8074
223,593 Fi6,7#1

Doferrad tax fabiltios on p v diffo
Azoearaed 16X depragizton | | [14,283]
Hevatuation Suarpua on property, phan and equsmant I'I-I,HH 1 |

,158)

ﬁxﬂx 177,664

12 STOCK-IN-TRADE

Liwvasios E3.a03 80,740
Raw and packaging maberipk 20,877 1427
Finshed goods 23,879 24,781
107689 116G
13 TRADE DEBTS - Unsscured

Cansicerad good g
hameas 134 ATADE 825561
Lacal 262,850
1,411 [RCIRER
Cansidernd deubitul | 11,207 | 3710
Provisien for doubtful dabts 123 rﬂ-lﬂ'? e
122 (R [REIRED
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131

13.2

13.3

Particulars of export sales in respeet of outstanding debts: . Contract  Total
ammmemeeee (RUpEES IN "000) —oemeeee
Asia
2018 974,016 974,016
Asia
2017 928,261 928,261

There are na defaulting parties as of 30 June 2018
Az of the consalidated statement of financial pesition date, the ageing analysis of unimpaired trade debts is as follows.

Fast due but not impaired

( Rupees In '000)

2018 407,188 447,061 266,548 91,173 - 1,211,870
2017 635,626 408,157 122,575 11,338 13,437 1,191,151
(S~ TR —- - —]
Movement of provision for doubtful debts: Note {Rupees in "000) -
Opening balance 3,710 -
Charge for the year 8197 3,710
Closing balance 11,907 a710

14  LOANS AND ADVANGES
Loans - considered good - secured

Executives 141 20,827 14,848
Empioyees 6,884 9,876
27,711 20 824
Advances

Suppliers 524,853 362,280
Service providers and other vendors 31,484 105,160
Employees 2,861 2,050
559,198 469 450

586,909 498,314

14.1 This includes loan exiended to an executive amounting to Rs.18.8 million (2017: 19.8 million) which is in the nature of house
loan. The loan is secured against his personal property. This loan s recoverable in 200 monthly instaliments and is interest

free.
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15

16

17

18

R |- S | A
e [Rupees in '000) ———--—
TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM PREPAYMENTS
Trade deposits 17,148 17,552
Frapaymenis
- takaful 2,820 1484
- athers 1,400 1,793
4,220 3,282
21,268 20814
SHORT-TERM INVESTMENT
Investment at fair value through profit or loss 580 566
OTHER RECEIVABLES
Sales tax recaivables 226,486 193,317
Fazcavablz rom shareholders 174 1,496 2663
Others 2,232 16,437
230,214 212447

1T Reprasents amount recenable from shareholders on account of e on bonus shares ssued during the year 2005,

20T

CASH AND BEANK BALANCES Note (Rupees in ‘000)

Cash in hand 13,703 25382
With banks!
Saving accounts 181 3,048 1594
Currant accounts 36,107 27184
1824 183 38,155 28,1848
Book overdraft {396) (25,8893}
£2.462 28 BBT

18.1 These carmy prefit at the rates ranging betwaen 1. 7% 10 3.79% (2017; 1 7% to 3.7% ) per annum

18.2 Included herein are balances amouniing to Rz 19.98 millicn (2017 Hs. 21.52) million which are held in accounts
maintained under islamic banking

18.3 Includes Rs 1 T37 million (2017 Rs. 3 201 million) held with Meezan Bank Limited {a ralated pamy)
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18 |ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

. 2008 2017 {Rupaas in "000) ——
Mumber of shares in thousands  Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
29,541 29541 (saued for onah 299, 4007 299 407
26,000 26000  issued for considaration
other than cash 260,000 260,000
B8 17T 8B177 lssued as bonus shares 861,768 861,768
14‘."1 18 142,118 1421178 1421175

18.1 As &l Jure 30, 2018, institubions and others held 29.574 487 and 112,542,541 shares, respectively (June 30, 2017; 35 393,153
and 105,723 B35) Voting nghts, board selection, righl of first refusal and block voling are in proportion lo their shareholding

C s 2017
20 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND Mote {Rupoos in "000) ———
EQUIPMENT
DCpening balance 203,787 215,945
Revaluabon surplus on property, plant and equipment during the y=sar 873,568 &
Trangfer to unappropriated profit in respect of incremenial depreciation during the year {10,857) (12.158)
366,498 203787
Related deferred tax liability
Cpening balance (16.865) 11B.867)
Lability reversed during the year 7as -
Inerernental depraciation charped during the year 1,156 1,283
Adjustment due to changa n tax rate 552 (fel-}
(14.359) (18.865)

852,139 185,522
21 LONG-TERM FINANCING - Securad

Diminishing musharaka

Askan Bank Limited 211 100,000 8,500
Cubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited 21.2 TE4.583 400,000
Hahit Metropolitan Bank Limited 21.3 14,190 16,541
Al Baraka Bank 214 B,487 14,789

H87T,260 440,830
Less: gurment maturity shown undsr cument Bahilites (179,183) (40.418)

708,077 A0 414

21,1 Represenis diminishing musharaka facility in respect of purchase of various fixed assets for 3 period of 5 vears Incluging 1
year grace period . I cames prolit at the rate of 3 momh KIBOR + 2% per annum. The facilily & secured by exclusive
charge of Rs. 124 million over plant -and machirery and Rs. 100 million ranking charge over fixed assais of the Group. The
musharaka units are to be purchated commendng from July 2018 on te basis of percentages set out in the musharaka
agresnent.

1.2 This includes (he Tollowing facilities.

a

—

Durmiineshing musharaka facility amounting to Bs. 383.33 mellion n respect of procurement and inslallaton of chicken
procezsing plant for 8 penod of 4 years inckiding 1 year grace peniod. R carries profit &t the rate of 3 manths KIBOR +
1.5% per annum, The faciity 5 secured by equitable mortgage charge auer the Group's building

b} Diminéshing musharaka facility amounting o Rs. 31.25 million to retire the wsance LG for the procurement of genearator
for a period of 2 years | It carrfes profit at the rate of 3 months KIBOR + 2% par annum, The facility ks secured by exdusive
charge over the leased assels f generator.

L=

—

Dimimishing musharaka facility amounting to Rfs. 350 million i respecl of procurernenl and mstallation of chicken
processing pland for & period of 4.5 years including 1.5 years grace period H camies profit at the rate of & months KIBOR +
2% per annum. The facility is secured by exclusive charge over land & building and plant & machinary of the Group's
shickan plant located in Lahore
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

21.3  Represents dimenishing nioahanaka facility in ieapect of purchase of metor vehicles for & period of 3 years. It eames profic
at the rats of 6 manthe KIBOR + 2% par annum. The facility i aacired by registratian of vehicles in the nama of a bank
and 10% Growp's share for diminishing muosharaka:

214 Represents diminishing mushamka fac ity in respact of purchase of motor vehicles for @ pericd of 3 years. It camies profic
al the rate of & manths KIBOR + 1.8 % perannum The faclity is secured by registration of vehicles in fhe name of 8 bank.

0 zeve L 09T
22 DEFERRED LIABILITIES Hote smmienae (RUAPEES i D) m———eee
Diefinad banefit plan - gratuity 221 59,629 43 825
221 Amount recognised in consolidated statement of financial position
Opening balanc: 43,526 28207
Gharge for the year |z 18,810
Recognised in othar comprahsnalva income 10,871 o387
Banefits paid {12.870) 1 BB8)
Ciosing balance 50639 43585
22.2  Ewxpense racognised In consolidated statemant of profit or logs
Current seivice cost 16,642 14 102
Mgt interest cost 2470 1,408
48,112 15.510

223 Principal actuarial assumptions

The FEnllowing are the significant actearial aszumplions used 0 tha actuarial valuation

oA TR
Expected tate of increase in salary 8.50% B.758%
Valuation diacount rate 8.50% 6.75%
Average expecied remaining working e of employees T0% of EFU &1-  T70% of EFU B1-
86 mortality &8 maortality
Labla tatde
Expected witrdrawal rate Age Dependent Age Dependent

224 Sensitivity analysis

Present value of defined beneft obfigations {1,728) 1,850 1,633 (1,743)

Present value of defined beneft abligatans {1.256) 1,347 1,334 (1,267}

== T 2ame=
23  TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Note {Rupees in ‘000)
Credifors:
Trade 57,909 &7 381
Man-rade 395378 311384
453,287 358778
Actrued labdities 36,910 7863
Advancs o Customens - 985
Witnhoiding tax payable 20,454 3E 624
Warkers' Profits Participation Fund 231 18,370 17847
‘Workers Weltars Fund 12,751 12.751
Fetention monay 2,821 24821
Otar payables 21093 11.763
586,386 450730
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
. 18 2047

231 Workers' Profits Participation Fund Note (Rupees in "000) —-—-
Cipening balance 17.547 15,896
Interest on WPRF 1,823 1,651
Closing balancs 19,370 17.547

24 SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS - secured

Wurabaha - islamic banking
Summit Bank Limited 251 350,000 420,000
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited 252 290,100 275,116
Dubal Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited 25.3 169,975 148,802
Acgkari Bank Limited 254 100,000 50,000
Fay=al Bank Limited 265 100,000 100,000

Diminishing Mugharaka - |alamic banking 258 23,333 =

Rurnning Musharaka - Summit Bank Limited 257 59,966 .

1123374 1044818

241 I cames profit at the rate of 6 months KIBOR + 1% 10 3% per annum for local facility. Rs. 145.04 million is secured by
specific charge over plant and machinery and Rs 50 million is secured by pan passu charge over receivables. The
remaining facility s secured by first martgage change over Cadap Land amounting to Rs. 367 millian and Rs. 240 million
ranking charge over stocks and receivables of the Group.

24.2 It carrles profit 8t the rate of relevant LIBOR | KIBOR + 1% per annum. The facllity Is secured by first pan passu charge
over recelvables for Rs 334 million and first exclusive charge over specific plant and machinery of the Group for Rs 87
million 2nd Rs.50 million respectvely, duly insured in bank's favor.

243 This includes local as well as foreign currency facility carrying profit at the rate of KIBOR + 2% and LIBOR + 2% per
annum respectively. The facility 1s secured by the first registered par passu hypothecation charge over receivables
including trade receivables for Rs, 157 million and the remaining facilifiy Is secured against exclusive charge over specific
plant and machinery of Bz, 43 million, Kz, 64 million and propery of Bs. 50 million,

244 |t carnes profit al the rate of KIBOR + 1% per annum. The facility is secured against 1st pari passu hypothecation charge
of Rs 134 million owver receivables of the Group

24.5 It carries profit at the rate of KIBOR + 1% per annum. The facility s secured against 15t par passu hypothecation charge
of Rs.34 million over receivables of the Group and Rs, 115 million exclusive charge over plant and machinery of the Group.

246 I cames profit at the rate of & months KIBEOR + 1% per annum for the faciity. The facility is secured by exclusive charge
aver plant and machinery af the Group of Rs 184 237 million

257 It carries profit at the rate of 5 months KIBOR + 1% to 3% per annum for the facility. The facility is secured by exclusive
charge over plant and machinery of the Group amaunting to Rs.184.237 millian.

25 ACCRUED MARK-UP {Rupees in "000)

Accrued mark-up on’
- Long-term financing 5,268 1,407
- Short-term borrowings 16,275 10,351
21,543 11,758

28 DUE TO A RELATED PARTY

Includes interest free loan obtained from Chief Executive of the Group. The loan is unsecured and is repayable on demand.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FOR THE ¥YEAR ENMDED 30 JUNE 2018
e e

(Rupees in "000) ==ce——

27 COMMITMENTS

- Butstanding letter of credits - 81,372
- Dutstanding letter of guaraniees 14,006 11,548
- Capital commitments 215,688 163 077
- Fost dated chequas 16,530 23 807

- The Group has entered into ljarah agreements with a bank in respect of rental of vehicles for a period of 3 years. Future
minimal rentals payable under jarah agreements as at year end are as follows:

Note  ——— (Rupees in '000) -——

Within one vear 5 45
28 TURNOVER - net
Sales 5,488,731 6,405 484
Trade discount {122,583 (35 842)
5273, 5,396 542
28 COST OF SALES
Live stock consumed
Opening stack 80,740 118 697
Purchases 4,065,198 4739751
Recovery against livestock residuatis - nat (150,792) {174 B63)
Ciosing stock 163,403) (B0 740)
3,831,742 4 602738
Conversion cost
Salaries, wages and other benafits 281 60,040 58 002
Electricity, dizssel and ralated expansas 31,710 27 8598
Repairs and maintanance 12,049 17 B57
Depreciation g2 24,783 28,885
Clearing and forvwarding 28,057 40,131
Packing maienal 43,291 55 585
Marination 11,988 8 350
Others 18,817 15,245
228,708 253,851
Cost of goods available for sale 4,160,449 4,856 700
Finished goods and fugls and lubricants
COpening stock 36,320 48 560
Closing stock 144,842) (36.320)
(8,522) 13 240
4,151,827 4 860 040

29,1 Includes Rs. 2.93 million (2017 Rs. 2.271 millieon) in respect of staif relirement benelits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 20 JUNE 2018

Note e {RUPSES i '000) memioe

30 ADMINISTRATIVE AND DISTRIBUTION COSTS
Salaries, wages and other benefits 301 331,567 350,086
Electricily, diessl and relaied expenses 45 473 46 661
Repzir and maintenance 13,881 B.179
Fuel and vehicle mainténance 15,725 34680
Travelling and conveyancs 13,096 18,481
Telephens and communication 12,140 15.305
Cargo 454 546 BO7 934
Marketing and acvertsamant 69,617 38,926
Rl rates and taxes 165,204 167 588
Food 10,600 12,8490
Depreciaton 82 51,054 40,821
Amortization 10 1.699 1,168
Legsl and professional 10,504 13,456
Software Maintenance & Developmant Coat B.112 B 8689
Danation a0z 17 408 16,5149
Office suppliss 7,702 14,418
Poslage and courler 639 860
Takaful 11,242 13,353
Slall welfare 2,282 15,089
Provision for bad debis B.1g7 370
Security 1,377 1.107
Training 1,922 e e
Claaning 7.525 7,882
GCommisaion on credit cart facilitias B.B4T 8.272
Auditors' remunaration 303 3108 2.700
ljarah rentals kL 1,337
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipmenl 04 -
Qthers 21,288 15,881
1,313,049 1.483,527

30.1 Include Rs. 16.16 millllen {2017 Rs. 13.3 millen) in respect of ataff retirement benefits.

30.2 Represents donaticn made to Indus Hospital, Jamia Darul 'Ulom Karachi, Karachi ‘Vocational Training Cenire and
Masjid Jemiat-ul-lsiamia. None of the directors end their spocuses had any inlerest in thesa donations

I 1T
——— (Rupees in "000)
30.3 Auditors’ remuneration
Bud Tee 1,875 1.700
Hai yearly review s00 500
Certifications and clther services 5§30 300
st of pocket sxpenses 200 200
3,105 2.700
31 OTHER INCOME
Income from financial assats
Gain on farward confracts - 1,108
Profit an saving accounts 149 47
Gain on remeasurement of short-term investments 24 [if)
Gain on dispasal of short-term invesiments - 2,936
173 4 BES
Income from non - financial assets
Exchange gain - net 47,058 -
Liablitees no fonger payable wiitten back 3230 7435
Gain on disposal of progerty, plant and squipmearnt - 466
Others 15,066 5.727
115,354 13.627
115,537 18,492

ﬁ_amw_wm



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

IS
32 FINANCE COSTS (RUPEES TNt D00) =memmemmes

Prafit on financing 18,030 53,075
Bank chages 15,717 17,388
Exchange loss - 1,230
Interast on WPPF 1823 1.681
nhers 20 462 T.850

55,032 81,204
TAXATION
Ciurrant 35,506 51 627
Prios {126) 9,006

35,380 B0,633
Deterred {13,004) (48,098

22376 12,535

33.1 As the charge for current year taxation is based on Final Tax Regime in case of export sales and minimum tax in ¢ase of local sales,
therefore. tax raconciliation is not presented.

33.2  The retum of income for fhe tax year 2017 has been filed which is deemed e be an assessment order in view of the provisions of

Section 120 of the Inceme Tax Ordinance, 2001.

31.3 Management's assessment of Tax Provision

The Group compubes B« based on the generally accepled interpretations of the fax laws 10 ensure that the sufficiant

the purpose of taxation is available which can be analyzed as follows,

LOSS PER SHARE - basic

Met bass for the yoar

Veighted average ordinary shares
af Rs. 10/- each - (Mumber in "000)

Loss per share (Rupees) - basic

Managerial ramuneration

Benus
Gratuity

Board masting fees

Number of persons

35 REMUNERATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

- (Rupees In '000)

pravigion for

G 62T 51,50 126

. 8 TR 8 A

'EME '33,345 -
(Rupees in ‘000) ——

(51.411) (28,552)

142,118 142,118
{0.36) (0.19)

Executives

28,470 23_.5 75 21,260 20,295 66,676 105,027

- - - - - 4898

= = - - 2,386 3,740

- - 2,250 3,080 . -

28,470 28.575 23 510 23,385 9 052 113 BES-

1 k| 10 B 22 26
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

FRelated parties of the Group comprse major shareholders, directors, companies under common directorship, key
management personnel and stafl provident fund. Details of transactions with related parfies during the year, other than
Ihosa which have been disciosed elsewhers in these consolidaled financial statements are as follows:

i3

{Rupees in "000)

Companies under common directorship

Sales 157 T2
Frofit on bank accounts . 24
Key management personnel

Seftiemant of iabilities by Chiet Executive on behai of the Group 16,957 5,963
Lean received by CEQ during the year 250,695 x

Following are the related parlies with whom the Group had enlered into fransactions or have amangement / agreement in

placa,
S.no Company Mame Basis of relationship
T wir. Kamran Ahmed Khail Kay Management Personnel
2 {4th Street Pizza Company (Private) Limited Companies undar common
directarzhip
3 Enrich Foods (Private) Limited Companies under common
directorship
4 Meszan Bank Limited Companies under common
directorship

37 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's actibes expose it to a varkety of financlal nsks such as market risk, credit risk and Bquidity risk The Group's
overall risk management focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks lo minimize potential adverse
effects on the Group's financial performance. The Group's Board of Directors oversaes the management of these risks
which are summarizad below;

371 Market risk

Warkel risk is the rigk that the fair value of fulure cash flows of a financizl ingtrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market risk comprisas two types of risk: interest rate risk and currency risk

37.1.1  Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk (3 the rizk that the fair valoe or future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctoate
pecause of changes in market interest rates, The Group's expasure to the nsk of changes in market
interesl rates relates primarily lo the Group's long-term and shori-term financing arrangement at floating
Interest rates to meel its business operations and working capdal requirements. The following table
demonstrates the sensilivity 1o a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held

conatant
Increase !  Effect on loss /profit
dacraase in hefare tax
basis points Rupees in '000
2018 +100 {20,108)
-100 20,108
2017 +100 {14 B57)
-100 14 857
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

3712 Currency risk

Currancy risk is-the risk that the fair value or futurae cash fows of a financial Instrumeant will fuctuate dua to
change in a foreign exchange rates, The Groups exposure fo the risk of changes in foreign currency
exchange rates risk primarily relates o the Group's operating activities i.e. bank accounts and receivables /
payatles in foreign currencies. The Group manages is foreign currency risk by effective fund management
and taking forward contracis. The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible
change in the US Dollar exchange rate:

Increase | Effect on loss /

decrease in US profit before

Dollar to tax
Pak Bupees Rupees in '000
2018 10% 66,435
10% B8 ,495)
2077 10% 92 826
=105 {92, 8286)
37.2 Credit risk

Craaft risk is the risk which arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge its
abligation and cause the ather party 1o incur a financial loss. Concenbrations of credit risk arise when a number of
counterparties are engaged in similar business activilies or have similar economic fealures that would cause their
ability to meet contractual abligatians to he similarly affected by changes In economie, political ar ather conditions,
Concentrations of cradit nsk indicate the relative s=nsitivity of the Group's performance 1o developrments affecting a
particular indusiry,

The Group seeks to minimize the credii risk exposurd (hrough having exposures only to customers considared credit
warthy and ohtaining securities where applicable. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reparting date is:

Carrying value

SR T ] —

Investment 580 566
Tracde debis 1,211,970 1,181,151
Leoans 217N 28 824
Trade deposits 17,148 17,532
Other receivablas 3,728 40,999
Bank balances 39,155 29,164

1,300,302 1,308,251
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

A7.24  Credit quality of financlal sesets

Tha credil qualty of financial assets thatl are neithar past nor impaired can be assessad by reference to extarnal credit
ratings or 10 historical information about counterparty default rates as shown below,
PEase N 2017

——--— (Rupees in "000)

Trade debts

Customers with no defaults in the past one year 407 188 635,627

Bank balances

Ratings
AT+ 18,628 68719
A-14 5,193 9,255
Al 15 81
A1 15,318 12,879
A-2 - 22

38,166 29,188

373 Liguidity risk

Liquidity sk represents the risk that the Group will encounter difficulties in meeting obligations with the financial liabilites. The
Group's objective s Lo mainlain a balance betwee conlinuty of lunding and Naxibility by maintsining sulficient bank balances and
committed credit lings . The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Group's financial liabiltiss at 30 June 2018 bassd on
contraciual undiscounied payment dates and presert markel interest rates:

i 000)

2018
Long-term financing - 38,726 204,645 780,778 1,034,148
Shart-term borrowings 53 986 439 966 669,017 -. 1,168,943
Trade and cther payalies 2,511 248,309 315,553 - 566,383
Acerued mark-up - 21,643 - - 21,543
Dus to a related party 281,184 > = = 281,181
e _ Taeeai | Tueeais __Teeqvs 3072308
2017
Long-term financing - 5124 GE815 453,201 517,840
Short-term borrowings - 454 4358 614,607 - 1,069,045
Trade and clher payables 2,524 178,038 274,509 = 455 068
Accrued mark-up - 11,758 - B 11,758
DUs 1oy & ralated party 13.52T - - - 13 527
6048 549,350 547 531 A55,501 7.067.238

37.4  Fair value of financial instruments
Feir value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market

participants al the meassurement date. Investment in a subsidiary are carried al cesl. The carrying values of all other financial
assets and Nabilities reflected in the uncensolidated financia! statements approximate their fair values.

37.41 Fair value hierarchy
Financial Instruments carried al fair value are categorized as follows:
Lavel 1 Custed market price.
Level 2 Waluation lechniques (market observable)
Level 3: Valuation techniquies (non-market ohservables)

37.4.2 The Group held the following financal nstruments measured at fair value.

Financial assats

June 30, 2098
Short-tarm invastmants 580 580 = -
June 30, 2017
Short-term investmeants 566 &8 - -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 20 JUNE 2018

37.5  Capital riak management

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to maintain healthy capital vatios, slrong credit raling and optimal
capital structures in order to ansure ample availability of finance for its existing and potential investiments projects 1o support its
business susiainability and future development and maximize its shareholders valus,

The Group manages its capial structure and makes adjustment to it in the light of changes In economic conditions. The Group
manitors capital using a debt equity ratio, which is nst debt davided by total capital pius net debt. Equity comprises of share capital,
resernes and revaluation surpius on property. piant and equipment. The gearing ratio as-al 20 June 2018 is as follows:

-——— (Rupees in '000) ——
Long-term financing 887,280 &40 B30
Short-term borowings 1,123,374 1,044 518
Accrued markup 21,543 11,758
Total debt 2,032,177 1,487 506
Less: cash and bank balances |52 462) (28.687)
Net debt 1,879,715 1,488,819
Share capital 1,421,175 1,421,175
Resenves 2,124 141 2,175,828
Fevaluation surplus on property, plant and eguipment 852,138 186,922
Toetal equity 4,397 455 3783922
Equity and net debt 68,377,170 5.252 741
Gearing ratio
Including revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment 31% 28%
Excluding revaluation surplus on property, plant and egquipment 36% 28%

38. NUMEER OF EMFLOYEES 30 June 2018 30 June 2017
Total number of employees as at the reporting date 683 721
Average number of employees during the year 08 782
Total number of factory employess as at the reporting date 152 138
Average number of factory employees during the year 148 128

39. GENERAL

391  Flgures have been roundad off to the nearest rupee.

39.2  Cerain prior year figures have been reclassifisd for hetter presentation. However, there are no material reclassificstions to report

40. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue on 28 September, 2018 by the Board of Directors of the

gl s s 23
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Pattern of Shareholding

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

Dirsetocs and thelr spousefs] and minos children

KAMAAN AHMED KHALIL 2 34,390,569 2430
NOOA LA RAHM AN A3 1 2.364,163 1.66
RUEHSAMNA ASGHAR 3 LEE6 0.00
MAVEED GODIL % 7,265,505 511
AN AN L 1 1,632 400
CAFSAR ALAM i 1,538 o.00
MUHANBED AMIN i 5 o.on
SARFARAZ RAHMAN 1 1 0.00
ZAFAR SIODICUE 1 1 0.00
U AR AHMED KHALIL ol 2,743,001 193
Aswociated Companies, undertakings snd meluted parties - - -
Exwcutives 1 394 0.00
Public Sector Companies and Corparations 3 4,578, D00 LB
Banks, g finante - Nar g finance comp

irsurance campanies, takatul, modarabas and pension funty 13 6,542, 54 4831
Mlutual Funds

COC - TRUSTEE ATLAS STOCK MASKET FUND 1 S0L.329 a3
OO - TAUSTEE MEEZAN BALANCED FUND 1 1,15 .00
OO0} - TAISTEE LINTT TALIST OF PAKISTAN 1 Sl a.0n
00 - TALSTEE AL MEFZAN MUTUIAL FUND 1 a1 n.on
COC - TALUSTEE MECTAN ISLAMIC FUSND 1 1,774 a.00
CDC - TRUSTEE ATUAS ISLAMIC STOCK FURD L 525,214 037
COC - TRUSTEE NAFA STOCK FLIND L 3,430,813 1.
COC - TRUISTEE ALFALAH GHP BLAMIC STOCK FLIND 1 inm 0.60
COC - TRUSTEE HAFA ISLANIC ASSET AMLLOCATION FURD 1 2,104 887 o.Ta
EDE « TRUSTEE NAFA |5 AMIC STOCK FUND 1 3,002,960 ars
COC - TRUSTEE NAFA |SLANSC ACTIVE ALLOCATION EGLATY FUND L A30001E 030
COC - TRUSTEE MEEZAN ASSET ALLOCATION FUND 1 3,562 Lili i
COC - TRUSTEE UL STOCE ADVARKTASE FUMND 1 4,107,563 148
CDC - TAWSTEE AL-ANMEEN SHARIAK STOCK FLMND 1 2358000 leg
COC - TAUSTEE ASKARI ASSET ALLOCATION FUND i 8,263 E]
M CF 5 LTRUSTEE ASKAR| ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND X E5.412 004
COC-TRIFSTEE NAFA ASSET ALLOCATION UMD & 186,500 0.1
€00 - TAUSTEE ASKARI EQILETY FUND 1 5412 .05
COC - TALSTEE AL-AMEEN ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION SUND i 0,000 ana
COC-TRUSTEE AL-AMEEN ISLAMIC RET. SAY, FUND-E00UITY SLE FUND 1 572,500 040
COC-TAUSTEE UBL RETIREMENT SAVINES FUND - BQLITY SLI8 FUND 1 456,500 LS
COC - TREISTEE AL AMEEN SLAMIC DEDICETED-EQLITY FUND 1 4,537,500 318
COC - TRUSTEE ALHAMRE ISLARIC STOCK FURD i 1,286,000 040
COCATRLSTEE ALHAMES |SLAMIC ASSET BLLOCATION FUNDG L 53,000 oos
MCBFSL - TRUSTEE PAK OMAN ADVANTAGE ASSET ALLOCATION FUND L E 23,000 003
FACBFEL - TRUSTEE PAK DMAN ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND 1 112,500 008
COC-TRUSTEE FIRST HAZIE ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 1 BO000 006
COC - TRUSTEE UBL DEDI CATED EQUITY FUND 1 20,000 ool
General Pubiic

& Lozl 5173 5873251 4133
I, Fareign 2 1690 oo
Foreign Companies 2 1ILITEO0 aod
Others L= TA56.496 495
Totals 5796 163, 117437 100,60

Sharcholders of moie Shares Held Peroentags

AR AAN AHMED KHALIL 34,390, 565.00 24,10
MAVEED GOIRNL 7265 565.00 511
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NOTICE OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF
AL SHAHEER CORPORATION LIMITED

Notice is hereby given that the 4th Annual General Meeting of AiShaheer Carparation Limited ("Company”) will be
held at Rayal Rodale, 34th Street Phase-\ Extension, Defence Housing Authority, Karachi on Wadnesday,
October 22, 2018, at 9:00a.m. for transacting the following business;

Ordinary Business
1. To confirm the minutes of 3rd Annual General Meeting held on October 25, 2017,

2. To recelve, consider and adopt the Stand-alone and Consclidated Audited Financial Statements of the Compa-
nyfor the financial year ended June 30, 2018 together with the Directors' and Audilors’ Report thereon,

3. To appoint auditors for the ensuing year ending June 30, 2019 and fix their remuneration. EY Ford
Rhodes, Chartered Accountants, retire and being eligible have offered themsalves for re-appeintment.

Sd.
Company Secrefary
Seplember 28, 2018

Notes:

1. The individual Members who have not yet submitted photocopy of their valid Computarized National Identity
Card (CNIC) to the Company/ Share Registrar, are once again reminded to send the same at the sarliest diractly
to Company's Share Regisltrar, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, COC House, 9%-B, Block B,
S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi = 74400.

The Corporate Entities are requested to provide their National Tax Number (NTN). Please give Folio Number with
the copy of CNIC! NTN details. Reference is also made to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP) Nofifications SRO 779(1) dated August 18, 2011, and SRO 831 {I) 2012 dated July 05, 2012, which
mandates that the dividend warrants should bear CNIC number of the registered member or the authorized
person, except in case of minor(s) and corporate members.

2. Share Transfer Books will be closed from October 18, 2018 to October 22, 2018 (both days inclusive) when no
transfer of shares will be accepled for registration. Transfers in good order, received at the office of Company's
Share Registrar Central Depository Company of Fakistan Limited, CDC House, 89-8B, Block B, SM.C.H.S., Main
Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi — 74400 by the close of the Business on October 17, 2018 will be considerad for entitle-
ment

3. All Members/ Shareholders are entitied 1o attend and vote at the meeting. A Member may appaint a proxy who
need nol be a Member of the Company.

4. Duly completed instrument of proxy, and the other authority under which It is signed, or a notarially certified
copy thereaf, must be lodged with the Company Secretary at the Company’s Reqistered Office (Suite # G/5/5, 3rd
Floor, Mansoor Tower, Shahrah-s-Roomi, Block 8, Clifton) at least 48 hours befare the time of the mesting.

5. Any change of address of Members should be immediately notified io the Company's Share Registrars, Central
Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block B, S.M,C.H.5., Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi
= 74400.

CDC Account Holders will further have to follow the under-mentioned guidelines as laid down by the Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan:
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A. For Attending the Meeting:

i) In case of individuals, the accouni holder or sub-account holder and / or the person whose securilies
are in group account and their registration details are Uploaded as per the regulations, shall authenticate
his/her identity by showing his/her original Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or original pass-
port at the time of attending the meeting.

i) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney with specimen signa-
ture of the nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of the meeting.

B. For Appointing Proxies:

i} In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder andfar the person whose securilies
are in group account and their regisiration detalls are uploaded as per the Regulations, shall submit the
proxy form accordingly.

it) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names. addresses and CNIC number shall
be mentioned on the form.

iii} Attested coples of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with
the proxy form.

iv) The proxy shall produce hissher original CNIC or original passport at the time of meeting.
v} In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors resolution/ power of attorney with specimen signa-

ture of the person nominated lo represent and voie on behalf of the corporate entity, shall be submitted
along with proxy form to the Campany,

FORM OF PROXY

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

I f ‘'We of in the district of
being a member of "AL SHAHEER CORPORATION LIMITED" and holder of ordi-

nary shares as per Registration Folio No./CDC Participant |.D. No./Sub-Account No. CNIC

Mo,/ Passport No, entitted to wvote, hereby appoint

Mr /Mrs /Miss of (full address)

{being member of the Company) as my/aur proxy to attend, act and vete for me/us and on behalf at the
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 22nd day of Cclober, 2018 and/or at any adjourn-
ment thereof,

Dalted. Signature

Presence of:

1.

B msm



Important Mote

1. This form of proxy, duly completed and signed, must be deposited at ihe registered office of the com-
pany sifuated at Suite # G/5/5, 3rd Floor, Mansoor Tower, Block 8, Shahrah & Rooml, Ciiffon, Karachi.
2. This form should be signed by the Member or by his/her atiomey duly authorized in writing. If the
member is a Corparation, its common seal should be affixed to the instrument.

3. Amember entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint any other Member as hisfher proxy
to attend and vote on his/her behall except that a corporation may appoint a person who is a Member.

For CDC Account Holders/Corporate Entities

in addition to the above, following requirements have 1o be met

I. The Proxy form shall be witnessed by two parsons whose names, addresses and CNIC Numbers shall
be mentioned on the form.

I, Attested coples of CNIC or Passport of the beneficial owners and proxy shall be furnished with the
proxy form

iii, The proxy shall produce hisfher eriginal CNIC or original Passport at the time of the mesting

iv. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney with specimen signa-
ture shall be submitted along with proxy form.
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Minutes of 3®° Annual General Meeting
Al Shaheer Corporation Limited

Wednesday October 25, 2017
Royal Rodale, DHA, Karachi

The 3™ Annual General Meeting of AlShaheer Corporation Limited (“Company™) was held at
Royal Radale, 34th Streel, Phase-V Ext, Defence Housing Authority, Karachi on Wednesday,
October 25, 2017, at 11:30 a.m.

At the start of the proceedings of the meeting, due to Ieave of absence of Mr. Noor ur Rahman
Abid, Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company, the directors of the Company in
accordance with section 134 of the Companies Act, 2017 elected Mr. Kamran Ahmed Khalili, to
be Chairman of the meeting.

The proceedings of the meeting started with a welcome note to the sharcholders by the Company
Secretary.

Recitation
The proceedings began with recitation of verses from the Holy Quran.

Permission from Chair
The Company Secretary informed the Chair that the Quorum is Complete' and requested to
proceed,
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Presentation of Resolutions
The Company Secretary proceeded with the resolutions as per the pre-circulated agenda sent to
the members through the notice dated October 3, 2017.

Ordinary Business
1. To confirm the minutes of Annual General Meeting held on October 26, 2016.

a. The company secretary read out the minutes of the Annual General Meeting held on
October 26, 2016 and requested the members for their approval.

b. After discussions, the following resolution was unanimously passed by the house,

“Resolved that the minutes of the Annual General Meeting held on Octaber 26, 2016 be and are
hereby approved.”

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Stand alone and Consolidated Audited Financial
Statements of Al Shaheer Corporation Limited for the financial year ended June 30, 2017
together with the Directors’ and Auditors’ Report thereon.

a. The Stand alone and Consolidated Audited Financial Statements of the Company were
presented and members were invited for their comments.

b. The members asked various guestions on the [financial statements and the general
functioning of the Company.

¢. The Chairman of the meeting responded o the commenis of the members and provided
satisfactory and detailed responses.

d. The Chairman also informed the members of current pressures faced by export business of
the Company. The Chairman informed the members regarding the launch of the “Poultry
Project™ at Lahore and gave insight of the project.

e. After due discussion and on receiving satisfactory responses, the following resolution was
passed by the house;
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“Resolved that the Stand alone and Consoildared Audited Financial Starements of Al Shaheer
Corporation Limited for the financial vear ended June 30, 2017 together with the Directors ' and
Auditors ' Report thereon are duly adopired.

3. To appoint auditors for the ensuing vear ending Jume 30, 2018, EY Ford Rhodes
Chartered Accountants, retire and being eligible have offered themselves for
reappointment.

The following resolution was unanimously approved by (he house:

"Resafved that EY Ford Rhodes Chartered Accountents, be and arve hereby
reappointed on retirement as the stetidory auditors of the Company for the year

ending June 30, 2018 ",

“Further resolved that CFOQ & Company Secreiary of ihe Company be and are
hereby authorized to sign necessary documents, proposal and engagement letters
ete. necesyary for appointment of EY Ford Rhndes Chartered Accountanls as
auditors fur the vear ending June 30, 201587

Vote of Thanks
There being no other item on agenda, the meeting concluded with a vote of thanks to the Chair.

Sd/- Sd/-
Chairman Company Seecretary




Annexure-A

Attendees and Proxy Shareholders in the
Annual General Meeting 2017

REPRESENTING

SHAREHOLDERS

SHARES
TOTAL 5489 1,42,117,427
PRESENT IN PERSON
o B 42,243,586
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